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Ix)uis J. Congem MAYOR 
l)ecembel 14. 1998 

CITY OF KENNER 

I Ionnrable Mayor and City Councilpersons City of Kenner, Louisiana 1801 Williams Boulevard Kcnncr. Louisiana 70062 The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kenner, Louisiana, for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1998 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the prcsentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material aspects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and rcsuhs of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable thc ~eader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. Thc Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and singlc audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the most recent GFOA Certificate, the City's olganiza/ional chart, a list of principal officials and a map of the City. The financial section includes the general propose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statcmcnts and schedules, as well as the auditor's report on the financial statements and schedules. The statistical section inchldes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear basis. Thc City is rcquired to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and 1996 Amendments and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "'Audits of States, Local Govemmcnts, and Non-Profit Organizations". Information related to this single audit, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit lZindings, Conective Action Plan and auditor's reports on compliance and on interual controls, are included in the single audit section of this report. CITY OF KENNER The City is the largest incorporated area in Jefferson Parish, a suburban parish (county) in the New Orleans Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area. It is bounded on the north by Lake Pontchartrain, on the south by the Mississippi River, on the east by unincorporated Jefferson Parish, and on the west by St. Charles Parish. The map of the City, which is enclosed in this Introductory Section, reflects a total area of approximately 15 square miles. Since 1946, the City has contained the site for the New Orleans International Airport. REI~ORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES The City is a unit of general local government under the Census Bureau's criteria. It is a home rule chattel city incorporated under the constitution and laws of the State of Louisiana on July 1, 1974. A seven-person council and an elected mayor govern the City, as reflected in the organizational chart of the City's administrative departments included in this introductory section. The City's department directors with the exception of the Police Department, which is governed by an elected chief, report to the Chief Administrative Officer who in turn reports directly to the Mayor. 
1801 WILLIAMS BOULEVARD , KENNER, LOUISIANA 70062 . (504) 468-7200 



This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of services. These ser~6ces include police and hre pro~ection; sanitation services; the construction and maintenance of highways, staeets, and infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural events. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements of the reporting entity present the primary government (the City) and its component unit. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. ]'he criteria used in detemlining whether financial accountability exists include ale appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing board, the ability of file primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary govermnent. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. In addition, a componeut unit can be another organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship with the primary government (the City) is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading ol incomplete. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is included in the City's reporting entity as a blended component unit because of its operational relationship with the City and because its exclusion would render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. "/'lie REPORT FORM The authoritative promulgations by the Govermnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) were applied in the preparation of this report. As outlined in these promulgations, the City's funds are grouped into three bmad fund types (governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary) and two account groups (general fixed assets and general long-terna debt). In general, governmental funds measure income (the flow of current financial resources), whereas proprietaly funds measure wealth (the preservation mid changes to capital). This report is prepared in a pyramid form whereby at the base are statements on individual funds. Next the conabining statements combine each fund of the same type to give totals for each of the seven generic fund types. Finally, the six statements under the heading "General Purpose Financial Statements" smmnarize these seven generic fired types and two account groups, and other significant accounting information. MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ECONOMIC OUTLOOK For tile Year Sales tax increased slightly after decreasing last year. Other revenues such as occupational licenses and court fines also increased. The City continues Io receive significant revenue from the Treasure Chest Casino providing funds for capital improvements. These funds are dedicated to capital outlay and debt service. The expansion of the Civic Center, which was funded by a contribution of city and state funds, was completed which should help the City's tourism. Work began on a new fire station in North Kenner. Work also began on the new police complex and jail and the City started acquiring the land for a new gym budgeted for South Kenner and anothel City park in North Kermer. Additional improvements were made In the City's infrastxucture as well as recreational facilities and more new equipment was provided for various departments. The City started receiving a reallocated hotel/motel tax from the state which is dedicated 1/2 to further improvc the Rivertown area and 1/2 for additional improvements in Laketown. Sewerage improvements, which were funded by a low interest loan from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality were completed. Drainage improvements in South Kenner began which are being paid for by a $1 million federal grant. 



For the Future The City's sales tax revenue is expected to grow at a steady pace. This will help offset increases in the costs of providing services to the public. The riverboat casino is expected to continue to provide significant funds for further capital outlay The City received two federal grants totaling seven ($7) million dollars. Five ($5) million is for further sewerage improvements and will be used to expand the City's newest treatment plant and close down the City's two older plants. The expansion will add enough capacity to accommodate the City's needs in the foreseeable future. The other two ($2) million is for expansion of the Science Center and will help further develop rite City's Rivertov, ql area. The City also budgeted the initial funds to merge the Kenner firemen's pension and relief fund into the Louisiana Firefigbter's Retirement System. This will improve the benefits to the City's firefighters as well as reduce potential liability of the City. 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION Internal Accounting Control Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. "/'he internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. "/'he concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Siogle Audit As a recipient of federal, state and parish financial assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws aud regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management. 1 believe that the City's internal control structure adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of propel recording of financial transactions. As a part of the City's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal f'mancial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the City has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the City's single audit for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1998 are included in the Single Audit Section of this report. Budgetary Control In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City's governing body. Activities of tile General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Enterprise Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length fma~cial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the fund level, except for the General Fund which is at the departmental level. Any amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of a deparlanent require Council approval. The Mayor can approve changes to the budget within a department, as long as the total is not changed. The govemment also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Besides comparing current year expenditures to the prior year, comparison to budget is of paramount importance in a government's financial reporting. The City Council annually adopts a budget for each governmental fund type 



(except capital projects are budgeted on a project basis) and proprietary type funds (except for the Internal Service Funds). Budgetary accounting is not used for the Self Insurance and Health Insurance Internal Service Funds because management considers effective budgetary control achieved since their amounts, which are charged back to other funds, are included as expenditures in each Fund's budget. Budgets are adopted by June 1 for the fiscal year which begins the following July 1. Revenues and expenditures are budgeted on the modified accrual or accrual basis as appropriate for the fund type. Encumbrances of the current year are recorded as obligations against budgeted appropriations and are included in tile columns titled "budgetary" in file statements in the financial section of this report. Unencumbered appropriations in any year are dedicated to capital outlay of the department and budgeted in thc following year. GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS Legal restrictions and generally accepted accounting principles require the operations of recurring governmental functions to be presented in separate funds. However, it has been found that it is much easier to grasp the statc of governmcntal finances when data from different funds is consolidated on one report. The General Fund, special revenue funds receiving resources from taxes (specifically, the One Percent Sales Tax of 1984, the Garbage Collection, Roads and Bridges, Street Lighting and Fire Department Funds), and debt service funds each contain part of the entire scope of recurring governmental operations. Special revenue funds receiving resources fiom intergovernmental or miscellaneous revenue and capital improvements funds are used for non-recurring outlays of the City. The following schedule presents a summary of revenues of funds used to report recurring governmental operations for thc fiscal year-ended June 30, 1998 and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to priol year revenues. 
Revenues Taxes Licenses and pelTnits lntergovemmental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Special assessments lntercst Miscellaneous Tota 

Amount $ 41,957,832 2,363,845 2,623,098 1,646,482 1,506,680 29,271 1,123,888 __ 243~822 

Percent of Total 81.48 4.59 5.09 3.20 2.93 .06 2.18 .47 

Increase (Decrease) ~om1997 $ 1,280,948 22,572 336,733 18,649 201,857 0 16,908 76,951 $ 51,494,918 100.00 $ 1,954,618 
The increase in taxes was due to sales taxes and riverboat revenues lntergovemmental revenues increased due to an increase in law enforcement grants received from the state 

Percent of Increase (Dccrcase) 3.14 .96 14.73 1.15 15.47 0 1.53 46.11 



The following schedule presents a summary of expenditures of funds used to report recurring governmcutal operations for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1998 and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 
CnrrenI: General government Public safety Public works llealth and welfare Culture and recreation Transit and urban development Miscellaneous Debt service: Principal Interest and fiscal charges Agent fees 0 Total 

Amount 
$ 8,148,929 16,539,725 6,862,236 769,305 3,859,815 408,806 1.944.224 

Percent of Total 
18.39 37.30 15.47 1.73 8.70 .92 4.38 

Increase (Decrease) from 1997 
(133,841) (728,716) (70,899) 4,607 526,825 (ll3) 377.633 3,200,029 7.22 (955,412) 2,600,860 -- 13,500 $ 44,347,429 

5.86 .03 100.00 
(108,405) 0 $ (l,088,321) 

Percent of Increase (Decreasc~ 
(1.62) (4.22) (1.02) .60 15.81 (.03) 24.11 (22.99) (4.00) 

General government expenditures decreased due to decreased professional fees in connection with scwcrage improvements which were completed. Public safety expenditures decreased due to land purchased in the prior year for the new police complex and jail Cultule & recreation expenditures increased due to expenditures for the two new gyms in North Kenner Miscellaneous expenditures increased for writing offdelinquent assessments receivable I )ebt service expenditures decreased due to paying off equipment leases in the prior year General Fund The following table summarizes the changes in fund balance of the General Fund compared to the prior fiscal year 
Revenues Expenditures Net other financing sources (uses) Excess 

$ 30,071,189 (30,611,372) (2,085,168) (2,625,351) 

1998 $32,274,982 (30,358,526) 
FUND BALANCF INCREASE (DECREA~ $ 2,203,793 252,846 851,326 2,936,494 2,767,782 5,393,133 Beginning fund balance 19,492,506 . 16,867,155 (2,625,351) 

Ending fund balance $ 16,867,155 $ 2,767,782 



The reasons for file changes in the General Fund revenues and expenditures are the same as tile changes in revenues and expenditures for recurring governmental operations which were explained earlier. The increase in net other financing sources is due to prior year transfers of funds from the riverboat to capital projec funds. Tbe Fund Balance reserved for restricted expenditures decreased due to the write off of delinquent spccia assessments. The significant balance in the General Fund fund balance reserved for capital expenditures is due to funds remaining in department budgets, which by ordinance are dedicated to those departments for future capital outlay. The majority of file funds are in the Police Department which are earmarked for fl~e new police headquarters and jail. The General Fund fund balance designated for subsequent year expenditures is primarily for funds accrued from tile riverboat in tile year-ended June 30, 1998 but budgeted for expenditures in the subsequent year when they are received Focusing on the General Fund alorte does not present a complete picture of tile City's expenditures for rectlrring government functions. Part of the expenditures for this purpose are accounted for in selected special revenue and debt service funds and are included on the schedule of expenditures shown previously. Special Revenue Funds The fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds did not change significantly. The Fire Department funds increased due to funds escrowed for future equipment purchases. Debt Service Funds The fund balance of the Debt Service Funds did not change significantly 
The fund balance of the General Capital Projects Fund did not change significantly because although several projects were completed, additional funds are received each year from the riverboat for new projects. The fund balance in the Capital Projects Funded With Bond Proceeds fund decreased due to completion of the expansion of the Civic Center and sewerage improvements funded through the loans from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality as noted earlier. Enterprise Funds The Department of Wastewater Operations has a deficit in retained earnings due to depreciation taken on assets which were purchased through EPA grants under which the majority of the funds were provided by the EPA. The Civic Center Operations Fund also has a deficit in retained earnings due to depreciation taken on assets acquired through bond proceeds. lntemal Service Funds The retained earnings in the Self-Insurance Fund decreased due to increased reserves Fiduciary Funds The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund fund balance increased due to contributions and other revenues for the cunent year in excess of operating expenses. The Deferred Compensation Fund is no longer included in the City's financial report because the City adopted GASB statement #32 whereby the City's plan was amended and the assels of the plan now belong to the employees and are held in a lrust for the exclusive benefit of the employees. 



The following table sunmlarizes the changes in tile City's bonds and certificates outstanding, notes and othei deb during the fiscal year: 
Outstanding July 1, 1997 $52,091,000 

Issued During Year Paid During Year Outstanding June 30. 1998 0 $ 3,200,000 $48,891,000 Of the total amount outstanding, $1,595,000 was in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, $29,470,000 was in Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, $11,820,000 was in sales tax bonds, $5,075,000 was in excess reveune bonds, $59,000 was ill Paving Certificates, $240,000 was in notes, and $632,000 was in capital leases. Please see Note G in the Notes to Financial Statements for details of changes in long term debt. The ratio of net long-term debt to assessed valuation and the anaount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the City's debt position. This data for the cuncm fiscal year and file prior fiscal year is as follows: 
Fiscal Year 1998 1997 

Net Long-Tema Debt $40,909,508 $43,930,001 
Ratio of Net Long-Term Debt to Assessed Value 12.17% 13.29% 

Net Long-Term Debt Per Capital $551.49 $593.63 
Net long-term debt includes general obligation bonds, special tax bonds, and special assessment debt with governmental commitment less amounts available in the Debt Service Funds. The ratio of net long-term debt to assessed value and net long-term debt per capita decreased due to payments made during the year. The City's ad valorem debt is rated Baa by Moody's Investors Service. This rating was changed from Baal in 1988 The City's sales tax debt is rated "AAA" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Group. CASII MANAGEMENT The City has a fiscal agent contract to handle its operating accounts. Transaction balances are kept in sweep accounts, where balances are swept into overnight repurchase agreements earning Federal Funds rates less 150 basis points, and investable balances are kept in money market accounts. The City, however, still reserves the right to remove investable funds and invest them at other institutions. The balances in the money market accounts and file repurchase agzeements are reported on the balance sheet as "investments". Funds being held as reserves on bonds and amounts being accumulated to pay principal and interest on bonds are held in trust accounts. The Irastee invests the funds under the direction of the City. Bond proceeds being used for construction are invested in U. S. Government Securities for terms based on file draw down schedules of the projects. The investments are made using the services of a financial investment advisory company with which the City has an agreement to provide these services. Total interest earnings for all the governmental fund types and expendable lrust funds of the City decreased to $1,561,567 this year from $1,636,997 last year. The decrease is due to lower interest rates and lower available cash balances. Funds available in tile general fund increased due to unspent funds in departments budgets which arc carried forward for equipment and improvements in those departments, principally funds the police department has for the new police complex and jail. Funds available in construction funds decreased due to projects completed which were noted earlier. 



The following table shows the changes in total cash and investments for those funds by purpose, during fae fisca year: 
Sinking funds Constmctiou funds All other funds RISK MANAGEMENT 

Balance on 6/30/97 $ 6,163,925 $ 8,458,236 $ 13,215,504 
Balance oil 6/30/98 $ 6,346,851 $ 5,495,264 $15,846,060 

Increase (Decrease) $ 182,926 $ (2,962,972) $ 2,630,556 
To account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss, the City has established a Self-lnsurance Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each general liability claim, with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $750,000; coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each auto liability claim, with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by tile fund up to $750,000; and coverage for up to a maximum of $300,000 for each worker's compensation claim, with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fired up to $1,000,000. The Self-lusurance Fund also provides coverage for auto/physical damage which requires a $1,000 deductible per departnaent per occurrence. The remaining balance on the claim is paid by the Self-Insurance Fund. See Note P in the Notes to Financial Statements for additional details. I.EGAL COMPLIANCE The Single Audit Act of 1984 (P. L. 98-502) and related 1996 Amendments requires reports by the Auditors on compliance and on tile internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, the City's compliance with requkements applicable to each major program and internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. These reports, along with the City management's responses to the non-compliance findings, are presented in the Single Audit Section of this report. INI)I'I~ENDEN'[ AUDIT Louisiana municipalities not audited by the Legislative Auditor are required by La. R.S. 24:517 to have conducted annually an audit of their accounts by a certified public accountant. Moreover, the City Charter (Section 2:28) requires that the Council shall execute a contract each year with a certified public accountant or a finn of certified public accountants for an examination of the accounts of the City to include all funds appropriated by the Council. These requirements have been complied with and the opinion of the finn of Rebowe & Company, Certified Public Accountants - A Professional Corporation has been included in this report. AWARDS The Govemmenl Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excelleuce in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1997. This was the fifth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
City of Kenner, Louisiana For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporting. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSU L1 ANTS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORA] ION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-rnail rebowe@rebowe.com 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

ttonorable Mayor and Members of the Council City of Kenner, Louisiana We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements of the City of Kenner, l,ouisiana, as of and for the year-ended June 30, 1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Kenner's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statcmcnls based on our audit. Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with gcncrally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contai~ed in Govermnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requirc that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Government Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues, requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the year 2000 issue. The City of Kcmmr, Louisiana has included such disclosures in Note V. Because of the unprecedented nature of the ycar 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not bc fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City of Kenner's disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue made in Note V. Further, wc do not provide assurance that the City of Kenner is or will be year 2000 ready, that tim City of Kenncr's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the City of Kenner does business will be year 2000 ready. In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we been able to examine evidence regarding year 2000 disclosures, tim general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of Kenner, Louisiana as of June 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year ~.hen ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 



Jn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 1998 on our consideration of the City of Kenner's internal control over financial reporling and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louisiana, taken as a whole, and on the combining and individual fund account group financial statements. The accompanying financial infornaation listed as supplementary information and statistical data in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louisiana. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information, except for that portion marked "unaudited", on which we express no opinion, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose, combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all malerial respecls, in relation to the general-purpose, combining and individual fired and account group financial statements taken as a whole. 
Decembc," 14. 1998 



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS June 30. 1998 

ASSE I'S AND OTIIER DFBI3 S Assets: Cash Equity in pooled cash and investmenls Investments Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for uncollecfbles) Ad valorcm taxes Accounts Intergovernmental Special a.~scssnlcnts Special a~sessments - delinquent Intcresl Olher Due from otber fimds Inventory, at cost Prepaid items I)cposits Property. plant 8nd equipnlent (net. where applicable, of acctlnudsted depreeialion) Other debits Amount ~va~lable: in Debt Service Funds in Special Revenue f:unds Amount to be provided for retirement of Iong-lerm debt TOTAl. ASSI!3 S AND OTIIER DEBITS 

GOVERNMENTAl, FUND TYPI!8 
GENERA SPECIAl REVEN[JI 
173,739 $ 716,192 940,720 920,495 906,383 1,188.531 
4,463,464 2,959,42l 2,636,867 25,974 389 3,882,783 69,394 32,114 

16 

I)EBT SERVICE 
227,600 20,160 6.099.091 

CAPHAI, PROJIiC'IS 
430,668 527,952 4,536,644 

7.572 691,642 213.275 58.543 
247,284 2,432,571 160,337 1.400 

$ 8,143,340 $ 7,264,945 

375 466 920,060 



PROPRIETARY FUNI) TYPES 
!NTERPRISI" 
537,531 323.415 

,298,542 111.360 403,150 3.669 
73.664.497 

INTERNAL SERVICE 
FII)UCIARY I:UNI) TYPES ACCOUN] GROUPS 
TRUST AND AGENCY 

3,314,699 10,657,214 
,202,334 267,291 
85.541 34.127 
586 

$ 
GIiNERAI FIXED ASSETS 

89,923.673 

GENERAl LONG - TERM DEFIT 

7,109,036 240,000 

"IOqAL (MEMORANI)UM ONI,Y) 
$ 2,875.264 2,732,743 37,702,562 
1.202,334 4,471,036 6,912,298 58,543 25,974 86.305 1,680,419 7,507,111 69,394 437.250 3.669 
7,109,036 240,000 

76,485,966 5; 3,893,026 $ 12,558,301 $ 89,923,673 $ 50,631,997 $ 279,985,069 

17 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINFI) BAI.ANCF. S! IEl"l - AI.I. FUND TYPES AND ACCOUN'I GROUPS (CONTINUI~I)) June 30, 1998 

.IABII I'I IES, IiQtll I Y AND OTI IER CREDITS ~iabdi0es: Accounls payable C<mt~acts payable Retainages payable Currem portion of morlgagc note payable Current portion of noles payable Accrued liabilities Es0mated claims payable 1 )cposi~s ou fntu~e events Deferred conq~nsation benefits payable Duc to other funds Due to other governments Refunds payable I)c ferred revenues Other liabilities Compensated absences Noles payable Morlgagc nole payable General obligation and special sales tax bonds Special assessment debl wilh governmental commdmenl Capital leases "1 O'1AI, LIAIIII.I'I IES 'quily and other cred0s: lnvestmenl in general fixed assets ('ontrlboled capital Relained earnings Unreserved (deficit) Fund balances Reserved for kncumbranccs Invemory Prepaid items Noles payable - Section 10g Ioanx Reslnctcd expenditures Capital expendilures I)ebl service Employees' pension benefits Unreserved l)esignaled for subsequenl years' expenditures Designated for capital addifions and improvemenls Undesignate6 10] AI. RE I AINEI) EARNINGS/ FtlND BAI.ANCE qOTAI. I!QIAITY AND O'111ER CREI)IJ'S 

GOVERNMENTAl. FUND '1YPES 
GI~NERAL 

,664.858 695.246 .012.956 160,825 

4.819.444 

1,057,468 69.394 32,114 956.460 2.976.892 

I ,O33 ,g~A 
19.634.937 19,634,937 

SPECIAl. REVENOE 
66,358 7.690 
09.406 

l)E1Jq SERVICI CAPlqAI PROJEC'tS 
598,609 78.564 

3,800,004 395,295 
792.068 155.909 

4,875,526 

192,381 1,400 240,000 593.540 
973,434 

q O'I AI. LIABII.I'I IES, I{QUITY AND OTIIER CREDITS $ 24,454,381 $ 8,143,340 
"lhe accompanying notes arc an integral pert of this statemenl 
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55 909 

7.109036 7.109.036 5.566.972 



PROPRIETARY FUNI) TYPES INTERNAL SER~1CE 
134.018 $ 789.551 1.624 3.736 23.325 1.833.628 104.076 311,908 744 
I O9.631 2,116 23 673 

92.291.233 (16.519.3743 

(16.519.3743 75.771.859 

,269,103 

.269.103 1,269,103 
$ 76,485,966 $ 3,893,026 

FIDUCIARY FUNI3 TYPES ACCOUN'I GROUPS TRUS1 ANt) AGENCY 

.334.302 178.195 13.328 

,540,043 

11,018.258 11.018.258 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

89.923.673 

GENERAl, LONG - TERM DEIfl 101AI, (MEMORANI)UM ONLY) 
2.616.770 7.690 78.564 1.624 3.736 494.274 1.833.628 104.076 

58.544 632.161 
89.923.673 92.291,233 

4.912.162 4.544.320 1.870.940 
213,561,652 

$ 89.923.673 $ 50.631.997 $ 279.985.069 



REVI'NUI!S ]axes l.icenses and permits lntergovernmental Charges for services Fines and forfcilures Special assesslncnls Interesl Miscellaneous TO'] AL R|'VI!NUI~S 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA COMBINED S] ATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPI~NI)ITURF.S, AN[) CItANGES IN FUND BAEANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAl. FUND TYPES Year Ended June 30. 1998 

EXPliNI)ITURI(S Current General government Public safety Public works llealth and welfare Cuhure and recreation ] ransil and urban development Miscellaneous Debt service Principal Inlerest and fiscal charges Agent fees Miscellaneous "I O] AE IIXPI~NI)ITURES EXCESS (I)I~FICItINCY) OI: REVENUES OVER (UNI)ER) I~XPENI)I] URES OTIIER FINANCING SOURCtIS (USES) Operaling transfers in Operating Iransfers out Proceeds flora 1.1)EQ loan "IOTAI. O311ER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} EXCESS (DEFICII~NCY) OF REVENUES AND OTI IER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER) I(XPI!NI)ITURES AND OTIIER FINANCING USES FUNI) BAI,ANCIiS A3 BF, GINNING 01: YEAR A'I ENI) OF YEAR 
]'he accompanying holes are an inlegral part of this statement. 

GOVERMENTAI, FUNI) TYPI!S 
GENERAl. SPECIAL REVENUE 24,671,715 $ 2,363,845 2,623,098 390,106 1,506,680 585,134 134.404 
8,148,929 2,640,525 2,586,922 769,305 3,859,815 408,806 1.944,224 

30,358,526 
916,456 
7,097,854 (6,246,528) 

6,867,155 $ 19,634,937 

20 

l)Et~q SERVICIi 3.190,143 $ 1.045,333 1,256,376 
47,731 77.725 

4,008,181 4,366,611 136,369 885.600 

9,396,76 
3,574,056 (9,807,649) 
86.954 

29,271 422,870 101,355 

3,20/I,029 2.600,860 1,500 12,000 
(1,164,919) 
62,908 (7,446) 
(9,457) 

$ 



$ 
CAPI]AI. PROJECTS 

405,832 30.000 011,517 
175,440 L864,233 1,398,486 4,367,607 

(6,794,249) 
5,776,544 (1,549,739 

5,566,972 

TOTAl, (MEMORANDUM ONI.YI 41,957,832 2,363,845 4,244,116 1,646,482 1,506,680 29,271 1,561,567 443,484 

3,200,029 2,600,86~ 1,500 12.000 
377.835 
17,61 (17,61 1,362 1,362) 
377.835 
35,200,924 

21 



REVENUES 3axes Licenses and pemfits Inlergovemmental Charges for services Frees and forfeilutes Inlctcst Misccllaneous 3OIAL REVI'NUF S EXPI:NDI I URI:S Cu~ent GcnerM government Public safety Public works I lealOi and welfare ( ulture and recrealion 3 tansit and urban dcvelopnlclH Miscellaneous 303 AI, EXPENDITUR] S 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMEN3 OF RI~VENUES, EXIqiNI)ITURES, AND CtlANGES IN FUNI) BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAl., SPFCIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUND TYPF.S Year Ended June 30, 1998 
GENERAl. FUND 

$ 24,671,715 2,363,845 2,623,098 390,106 1,506,680 585,134 134.404 

ADJUSTMEN'I "I O BUDGE3 ARY IIASIS llUI)GETARY $ 24,671.715 2,363,845 2.623,098 390,106 1,506,680 585.134 134,404 32,274,982 

$ 25,009,396 2.300.955 1,g09,960 354,715 1,448,447 751,500 75.930 31 750.903 
8,820,353 21,934,439 2,872,429 790,608 4,521,029 431,453 1,670,900 30,358,526 (781,6817 29,576,845 41,041,209 I XCI SS (I)I'FICIENCY) OF RIiVENUES OVER (tINDER) EXPI NDI1 URES 1,916,456 OILIER FINANCING SOURCI S (USES Operalmg transfers in O[~eraling transfers out 1OIAI, O1 IIER FINANCING SOURCES 

7,097,854 -- (6,246,528) 
EXCESS (I)I'FICIENCY) 01: REVI'~NUES AND OTII ER FINANCING SOURCI S OVER EXI'ENOITURES AND OILIER FINANCING USES 2,767,782 781,68 FUND BAI.ANCES A3 Ill;GINNING OI YEAR 16,867,155 889,829 

(9,290,306/ 

VARIANCF 1 AVORABI .E (UNI AVORAItl .E) 

803,265 9,661,621 315,697 19,865 654,345 22.647 613,076) 464,364 
7,097,854 6,130,535 967,319 (6,246,528t (5,647,374) (599,1541 483.161 368165 
7.756.984 17,756,984 



REVENUES ]a~es Inlergovemnlcntal Charges for se~ices Inlcrcst Misccllaneous 10"1AI REVENUES EXPENI)I 1 URES CunerU Public safety Public works Culture and recreation Urban development 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMEN'I OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGE'I AND ACTUAI. GENERAl., SPECIAl. REVt'NUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUND TYPES (CONI INUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

7OqAI. I~XPI'.NI)I3 URES EXCESS OF RI VENUES OVER EXPENDI 1URES O3 IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Olrerafng tlansfers m Ojmratlll8 transfers OOl 

SPECIAL RF, VENUE FUNDS ADJUS3 MI NI "10 AC] UAL BUDGE3 ARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY $13.190,143 $ 1,045,333 1,256,376 147,731 177.725 
4,008,181 4,366,61 I 136 369 885,600 

08,547 48,826 2,259 

$ 13.190.143 1.045,333 1.256.376 147.731 177.725 15,817.308 
3.899.634 4.415,437 138.628 885,600 

$13.373.998 1,805.226 1,263,156 64.685 35.111 6.542.176 
5.036.940 5.562,398 581.971 1,268,205 

VARIANCI: I'AVORABLF (UNFAVORABI E~ $ (183.855 (759.893 (6780 83.046 142,614 
137.306 146.961 443,343 382.605 9,396,761 . (57.462) 9,339,299 12,449.514 3,110,215 6.420.547 3,574,056 (9,807.649) 30'I AI O3 IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) __ (6,233,593) EXCESS (I)EFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTIIER FINANCING SOURCe'S OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND O]31ER FINANCING USES 186.954 I'UND BAI.ANCES A3 Ill:GINNING OF YEAR. AS RES'I A"I El A1 INI) OF YEAR 

57.462 

3.080,860 (167.278) $ 3,267.814 $ (109.816) 

23 

3,574,056 4.308.585 (9,807,649) (10,035,357) 
2.385.347 
(734.529) 227.708 . (6,233,593) (5,726,772) (506.821) 
.878.526 
.878,526 



RINENUI~S 3a~es Sl~cial assessmenls lnlcresl Miscellaneous 10IAI, RI~VENLIES I;XPENI)IIURI(S Dcbt semite Principal hoerest and fiscal ~halges AgeD1 fees Miscellaneous 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUFS, EXI'IT~NDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUNI) BALANCE - BUDGET AND AC'I UAI, GENERAl,, SPECIAl, REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNI) TYPES (CONTINUEI) Year Ended Junc 30. 1998 

10]AI EXI'i NI)n ORES I'XCESS (I)EFICIliNCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNI)ER) EXPENDI1 URES OqlIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES Ol~r aling transfers ill Operaling ttausfers OUt 

ADJUSq MEN'I TO AC'I UAI, BUDGE'I ARY BASIS BUDGE1 ARY 
4,649,470 
3,200,029 2,600,860 1,500 12.000 5,814,389 
(I,164,919) 1.162,908 -- ('/,446) 10IAI, O3 tlI R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 1,155,462 I'.XCESS (DH:ICII;NCy) OF REVI~NUES AND OTIIER FINANCING SOIJRCES OVER (13NDER) I XPl NDFIURI S AND O'l'I IER FINANCING USES FUNI) BAI,ANCLS Aq BI GINNING OF YEAR A1 END OF YEAR 

(Continued 

$ 
VARIANCI' FAVORABI,L (UNFAVORAIII,I) 4,~5,934 $ 4,140,563 $ 29071 422,870 34L000 101,355 101,355 4,649,470 
44,589) 29,271 81,g70 4,582,918 66,552 

3,265,079 2,651,082 1,500 12,0~0 

1,162,908 (7,446) 

65,050 50,222 
5,272 
81,~24 (177,953) (9,446) 55,462 1,340,861 (185,399) 

(9,457 7.118.493 3,675 



"I O'I AI. REVENUES 

CITY OF KFNNER, I.OUISIANA COMB1NIil) S'] A'I'F~MI~NT OF REVI!NUIiS I!XPt~NI)ITURES. AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAl. GI!NERAL, SPECIAl. REVENUE AND DFBT SI'RVICE FUN[) 3YPES (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

1 XI'ENDI] t)RES furrenl General govenmlerll Public safely Ptlblic works Ilea0h Brld welfare Cll0llle alld recr~alio]l qrans0 and urball dev~lopmenl Miseella~eolls Debt se~ic~ I'rirlcipal Intetesl and fiscal charges Agenl fees Miscellaneous 'l O ]AI. I~XPENI)I] URES EXCESS 0)EFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDI R) EXI'ENI)ITURES O]HER 81NANCING SOUR( ES (USES Operating transfers in Operafng transfers oul 

'1 O] ALS (MEMORANDUM ONLY 

52.741360 
8,148,929 6,648,706 6.953,533 769.305 3,996,184 1,294,406 1,944,224 3,200,029 2,600,860 1,500 12,000 

ADJUS3 MEN] 10 BUDGE] ARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

131,841) 476,254) 18,636 1,438 9.126 

45,569,676 __ (839,1433 
11,834,818 (16,061,623) 3 O] AI. O'1 III;R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (4,226,805) EXCI SS (I)E,tlCIENCY) O} REVENUES AND OTltER FINANCING SOURCES OVFR (UNDER) EXPI NDI] L/RES AND O3 IIER FINANCING USES FUND BAI .ANCI::S A7 BEGINNING 08 YEAR 

"lhe acccompanyin8 .otes arc an i.tegral part of this statemenl 

$ 41,957,832 2,363,845 3,668,431 1,646,482 1,506,680 29,271 1,155,735 413,484 
$ 42,523,957 2.300,955 3,615,186 1,617,871 1.448.447 1,157,185 212,396 

VARIANCI I AVORARI .E ([IN} AVORARLIi) 

52,741,760 52,875,997 (134,2373 
8,017,088 6,172,452 6,972,169 770,743 4,005,310 1,294,406 1,683,976 3,200,029 2,600,860 1,500 12,000 

839,143 8.011227 

839.143 
11,834,818 (16 06 ,6233 (4,226,805) 

8.820,353 26,971.379 8,434,827 790,608 5,102,998 ],699,658 1,670.900 
803.2~,5 0.798,927 1,462,658 19,865 1,097,688 4~35,752 I 13 076 65.050 50,222 
4.585.614 

27,066,508 722,551 27,789,059 

25 



OPERA'IING RI VENUES Intergovernmenlal Charges for services Miscellaneous 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STA'I'FMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CttANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)IFUND BALANCE - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES Year Ended June 30.1998 
ENTERPRIS $ 13,961 5,540,748 5.407 3 O'I AI. OPERATING RI'VENUES 5,560,116 OPERATING EXPIiNSES Per.sonnel expenses Supplies and office expense Building and maintenance expenses Oulsidc services "1 ransportation Insurance claims Insurance premiums General expense l)cpreeiafon Other 

INI ERNAI SERVICE $ 4,208,182 
54,350 14,179 470,170 5.825,351 942,565 300 58,032 2,010,259 88,951 
1,098,751 2,382,600 

TOqAI (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 13,961 9,748,930 5.407 9.768,298 

2,010,259 88,951 "1"O] AI. OPERATING I!XPENSES 8,521,592 4,423,916 12,945,508 OPERA] ING INCOME (LOSS) (2,961,476) (215,734) (3.177,210) NON-OPERATING I/EVI~NUES (EXI'ENSES Ad valorenl taxes I lotel/mo|el taxes Cable television franchise fees Intcresl revenue Interesl expellse 
448.662 365.184 498,148 34,976 (3,3211 61,87 q O'1AI, NON-C)PERATING REVENUI!S 1,343.649 161,871 NI'T INCOMI" (LOSS) 

448,662 365,184 498,148 196,847 (3,3211 505.520 (I,617,827) (53,863) (1,671,690 RI~]AINEI) EARNINGS (I)EFICIT)/FUNI) IIALANCE AT IIEGINNING OF YEAR (14,901,547) 1,322,966 (13,578,581) AT END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes arc an integral parl of this statement, 26 

$1,269,103 $ (15,250,271) 



ADDITIONS Contribulions: Participants Employer: City of Kenuer State of Louisiana - fire insurance tax 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PENSION TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS Year Ended June 30, 1998 

nvestlnent Income: Net appreciation in fair value lnleresI 1)ividends Total Investnleut lnconle l.ess Investment Expense 
Net Investment Income Total Additions 
DEDUCTIONS Members' benefits Refunds to lerminated employees Continued service incentive Administrative expenses TOTA L DEDUCTIONS NET INCREASE 
PLAN NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT I'ND OF YEAR 
The accompanying notes are all integral part of this statement 27 

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF 
227.033 339,576 34.067 700.676 
417,984 344,987 95.527 858.498 31.58 
826,917 2.527.593 
653,979 38,216 2,448 37,063 731.706 795,887 
9,222,371 018.258 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STA'I'EMENT OF CASLI FI,OWS - I'ROP1EJ ARY FUNI) TYPES Year Ended June 30, 1998 

NCREASI (DliCR|'ASE) IN CAS}I AND CASH EQUIVAI J!NTS: Cash flows from operating activities Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: Depreciation Change ill current assets (increase) decrease Receivables Due from other funds ]tltergovcnln~c~ltaJ Prepaid expenses Cllangc in currenl liabilities increase (decrease): Accounts payable Deferred revenue Accrued liabilities Due to other funds Deposits oll future events ( olnpensated absences "10TA1, AI)JUSTMI{NTS Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities Cash flows from noneapital financing activities: Ad valorem taxes 1 lotel/motel taxes Cable television fi'anchisc fees Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities (:ash flows from capital and related financing activities: Principal payments - note payable Principal payments - mortgage payable Interest paylnents Acquisition of properly, plaid, and equipment Net cash tlscd by capital and relatcd financing activities 

ENTERPRI SE INTERNAl SERVICI! 30"IAI, (MEMORANI)UM ONLY) 
$ (2,961,476) $ (215,734) $ (3,177,210) 

215,183 702 (19,155) (357,847) 
(79,064) 532,485 (2,081) 

83 02 55 47 
(45,459) (20,9121 533,410 165,167 11,170 (38) 2,041,140 451,340 2,492,48(I 

(920,336) 
448,662 365,184 498,148 

(7,852) (1,619) (3,321) (270,276) 
(283,068) 

235,606 (684,730) 
448,662 365,184 498,148 
311,994 
(7,852) (I,619) (3,3211 (270,276) 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROP1ETARY FUND TYPES (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

Cash flows from investing activities: Purchases ofinvcstments Procecds frommaturities ofinvestments lnterestreceived Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (:ash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 
RFCONCII,IATION TO BAI .ANCE SI IFFT ACCOUNTS Cash lgquity in pooled cash and investments (:ash and cash equivalents, end ofyear 
NONCASI 1 INVI!STING, CAPITAl., AND FINANCING ACTIVrI'IFS: Contributions of capital Acquisitions of property, plant, and equipment through capital contributions 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

ENTERPRISE 
34.976 
34.976 
43.566 
860.946 
537.531 323.415 

INTERNAl SERVICE $ (12,822,915) 12,330,246 158,819 
(333,850) 
(98,244) 676.571 578,327 

TOTAl. (MI'MOI',ANI)UM ONI.Y) $ (12,822,915) 12,330,246 193.795 
(298,874) 
45,322 ,393,951 439.273 

$ 578,327 $ 115,858 323.415 860,946 $ 578,327 $ 1,439,273 
$ 2,135,977 (2,135,977) 
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2.135.977 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30. 1998 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL1CIES City of Kenner, Louisiana's (the City) system of government is established by its Home Rule Charter which became effective in 1974. The City operates under a mayor-council form of government. The financial statements of City of Kenner, Louisiana have been prepared ill confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below. REPORTING ENTITY Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, the financial statements of tile reporting entity present the primary government (the City) and its component units. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government (the City) are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability, ]n addition, a component unit can be another organizalion for which lhc nalure and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are included in the City's reporting entity either as a blended component unit or as a discretely presented component mlit because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the City. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is a legally separate entity from the City. It is governed by a five member Board of Trustees of which three of these members include tile City's Mayor and two members of the City's Council. For financial reporting purposes, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is reported as if it were a part of the City's operations (blended) because its purpose is to finance and provide a retirement system for the fire department employees of the City and because its exclusion would render the fiuancial statements itmomplete or misleading. The Police Chief is an elected official elected by the citizenry in a general, popular election. The City Council approves the annual budget for the Police Department and dedicates portions of tile City's revenues to fund this department. The Police Department is not legally separate, and therefore is a function of the primary government and its operations are reported as a pan of the City's General Fund. 2. FUND ACCOUNFING The City uses funds an~l account groups to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate "fund types". 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANI" ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general activities, including the colleclion and disbursemenl of earmarked monies (special revenue fimds), the acquisition or construclion of general fixed assets (capital projects funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net iucome is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided either for outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departmeuls or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other govermnents, or on behalf of other funds within /he government. When these assets are held under the Ienns of a formal Irusl agreement, either a pension trust fund, a nonexpendable trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The lernls "nonexpendable" and "expendable" refer to whether or not the governmenl is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the government holds on behalf of others as their agent. 3. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measuremerd focus. Wilb this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. All proprietary funds and pension trusl funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measuremenl focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds arc included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and relained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) ill ne~ total assets. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds, tinder the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers ad valorem (property) taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when lhe relaled fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due. Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, beer taxes, parking taxes and certain state shared revenues such as tobacco taxes, parish transportation funds, and video poker monies. Sales taxes collected and held by intermediary collecting governments at year-end on behalf of the City government also are recognized as revenue. Fines and permits are not snsceptible to accrual because generally they are no~ measurable until received ill cash. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATFMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) In accordance with Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprielary Funds and Olber Oovemmenlal Entities Thai Use Proprietary Fund Accounting" it is the policy of the City's proprietary funds to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. ']'he City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both tile "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in tile current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior 1o lhe occurrence of qualifying expendilures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 4. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device and budgets are legally adopted at tile fund level, except for the General Fund for which appropriations are adopted at the department level. Budgets are included for the following funds: General Fund Special Revenue Funds One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Community Development Block Grant Garbage Collection and Disposal Roads and Bridges Street Lighting Fire Department DebI Service Funds General Debt Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Enterprise l'unds Department of Wastewater Operations Civic Center Operations Budgetary data for the Capital Project Funds are not presented since these funds are budgeted over the life of the respective project and not on an annual basis. Budgetary accounting is not used for the Internal Service Funds (Self Insurance and Health Insurance Funds) because management considers effective budgetary control achieved since their amounts, which are charged back to other funds, are included as expenditures in each Fund's budget. Expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level, except for the General Fund which is at the departmenlal level. Approprialions lapse at year-end. Furthermore, appropriations which are not expended nor encumbered are dedicated 1o capital outlay for that department and are rebudgeted in the following year. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service Funds, and Proprietary Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purcbase. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTI: A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 5. ENCUMBRANCES Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve thai portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Enterprise Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures nor liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent fiscal year. 6. CASH, INVESTMENTS AND POOLED ASSETS Tile City maintains three cash and investment pools as follows a. General Pool - maintains cash balances for all funds except the paving assessments, sewerage assessments, and the Pension Trust Fund. b. Paving Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances for tile General Fund and Debt Service Fund c. Sewerage Assessments Pool - maintains cash balances for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund The City follows tile practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for restricted funds due to Trust Agreements and Bond Indenture Agreements, and the City's component unit, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. Total cash, investments, and accrued interest on investments of the Pool arc reported in all funds as "Equity ill Pooled Cash and Investments". Funds with a negative Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments report the advance as an inlerfund payable and the General Fund, which has been determined to be the receivable fund by management, reports an offsetting interfund receivable. Interest earned on pooled cash and investnmnts is allocated to each individual fund based oil its month end "Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments". Tile entire cash balances in the General Pool Cash account, the Capital Projects Funded with Bond Proceeds and the Enterprise Funds are swept and invested into overnight repurchase agreements earning Federal Funds rate less 150 basis points. Tile market value of the underlying security in tile repurchase agreement transaction is always 105% of the carrying amount of repurchase agreement. Interest is allocated among funds in the General 17001 Cash account on the basis of ending monthly cash balances. The balances not needed for transactions in the other accounts are deposited in individual money market funds earning interest at market rates; no checks can be written on these accounts. Cash reported on the Combined Balance Sheet includes amounts in demand deposits, certificates of deposit, and short-tenn investments with a maturity date within three months of the date purchased. State Law R.S. 39:1225 provides that tile amount of the security shall at all times be equal to 100% of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by any governmental agency insuring bank deposits, which is organized under the laws of the United States. 

Effective July 1, 1997, tile City adopted tile provisions of Govemmental Auditing Standards Board Statement (GASBS) No. 31, "Accounting and financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools." GASBS No. 31 requires all investments be reported at fair value with gains and loses included ill the statement of revenue and expenses. The effect for the year ended June 30, 1998 was to increase income by $212,568. There was no effect on income or equity for the year ended June 30, 1997. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) For purposes of the statement of cash flows of the Proprietary Funds, following items: demand deposils, petty cash, eertil3eates of deposit and short-ternl investments with a maturity of three months or less. 7. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

cash and cash equivalents includes tire equity in pooled cash and investments" 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 8. INVENTORIES The costs of materials and supplies acquired by the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. The inventory of such materials and supplies at June 30, 1998, would not be material to tile fluancial statements. However, the inventory of parts for vehicle maintenance, which is accounted for under the consumption method, is considered to be material and is recorded in the General Fund at cost, determined by tire first-in, first-out method. 9. PREPAID ITFMS Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 1998 are recorded as prepaid items. 0. FIXED ASSETS GENF~RAIJ IqXED ASSETS Fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital asset acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in govermnental funds, and the related assets are reported in |he general fixed assets account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are capitalized as general fixed assets. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not depreciated. PROPRIETARY FUND ASSETS Depreciation of property, plant and equipment in the proprietary fuod types is computed using the straight-line method with estimated useful lives as noted in Note F. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thai do nol add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable. Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The moount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until completion of the projecl with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) COM PF.NSATED ABSENCES 

In Proprietary Fund types, annual and sick leave are expensed when earned by the employee. A liability is recorded for accumulated annual leave and vested sick leave as of the end of the fiscal year using employees' current rates of pay. In accordance with Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, "Accounting for Compensated Absences", an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated with the future paymenl of compensated absences. 2. I.ONG-TF.RM OBLIGATIONS l.ong-tenn debt expected to be financed from governmental funds is accounted for in the general long-term debt account group. Long-term liabilities expecled "to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. 3. FUND EQUITY 

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

5. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only Io facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns does not present financial position and results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTF B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetaD, data reflected in the financial statements are as follows 

b. The proposed budget is summarized and advertised and, within 30 days thereafter, public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. c. The operating budget is then legally adopted through council ordinance prior to June 

General Fund Revenues and other financing sources Expenditures and other financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses ~;pec al Revenue Fund__~ Revennes and other financing sources Expenditures and other financing uses Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and olher financing uses Debt Service Funds Revenues and other financing sources Expenditures and other financing uses 

ORIGINAL 
$ 38,599,405 38,599,40_5 

$ 20,598,460 22.121.567 

INCREASE REVISED (DECREASF.) 
$ 37,881,438 46,6885,~83 $ (717,967) 8.089.178 
$ (8,807d~45) $(8,807,14fi) 
$ 20,850,761 22,484,871 

$ 5,923,779 _. 5,929,661 Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other financing uses $ (5,882~ 
$ 5,923,779 _ 5,929,661 

$ 252,301 363,304 
$ OII,00~) 

$ (5,882) $ The sources for these supplemental appropriations include the prior year's fund balances and current year federa grauts. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE 11 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) The accmnpanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Actual and Budget (Budgetary Basis) - General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Fund Types presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, with actual data on the budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differs from those used to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a reconciliation of the resulting basis, timing, and entity differences in excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses for the year- ended June 30, 1998, is presented below: 
:.xcess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) Adjustments Timing differences: To adjust for encumbrances Entity differences: qo adjust for fimds not budgeted 

GENERAL SPECIAl. REVENUE 1)EBT SERVIC 
$3,549,463 $ 225,642 $ (9,457) 
(781,681) (57,462) 

18,774 F.xcess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) $2,767,782 $ 186,954 $ (9,457) ~XPI'2NI)ITURES 1N EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS The following fund had expenditures in excess of appropriations for the year-ended ,June 30, 1998 
:allerprise Fund Civic Center Operations 

EXPENDITURES APPROPRIATIONS 
$1,783,221 

EXCESS 
$ (13,)7~ 

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Civic Center Operations Fund. However, tile net operating loss is the budgeted amount approved for the Civic Center Operations, Although expenditures exceeded appropriations, the net operating loss did not exceed the budgeted net operating loss due to actual revenues exceeding budgeted amounts. Budgetary control is maintained at the departmental level for the General Fund. Certain sections within departments of the General Fund reported expenditures in excess of appropriations, ltowever, since no department's expenditures exceeded appropriations, further disclosure of these sections is not deemed necessary. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE B - STFWARDSItlP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) D1;FICIT FUND BALANCES~RETAINED EARNINGS The following funds had deficits ill fired balance/retained earnings at June 30, 1998 
Enterprise Funds Department of Wastewater Operations Civic Center Operations 

DEFICIT IN FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS 

The deficits in the Enterprise Funds arc a result of depreciation expense 
NOTI" C - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

$ 14,234,391 2,284,983 $ 16,519,374 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $5,608,007 and tile bank balance was $4,268,820. The bank balance is categorized as follows: Amount insured by the FDIC, or collateralized with securities held by tile City's agent in the City's name 
The City's investments at year-end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by tile City at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by tile City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which tile securities are'held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which tile securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust deparhnent or agent but not in tile Cily's name. 
U. S. Government securities U. S. instrumentality securities (FNMA, FHI.B, etc.) Corporate bonds Stocks 
Mutual funds Total Investments 

CATEGORY 
$ 1,807,822 
24,729,986 2,492,335 . 5,352,590 

2 FAIR VALUE 
$ $ 1,807,822 
24,729,986 2,492,335 5,352,590 34,382,733 3,319,829 

The mutual funds are owned by the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund and Debt Service Funds. The corporate bonds and slocks are owned by the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE D - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS A reconciliation of total equity in pooled cash and investments is presented below 
Euuitv in Pooled Cash and Investments Cash (Bank Overdraft) Repurchase Agreement 

GENERAl. pOOl, $ (2,085,468) 3,972,152 
PAVING ASSESSMENTS POOI SEWERAGE ASSIiSSMENTS POOI, $ 841,673 $ 4,386 TO3AI,S $ (1,239,409) 3.972.152 Total Equity in Pooled Cash and lnveslments $ 1,886,684 $ 841,673 $ 4,386 $ 2,732,743 nuilv in Pool By Fund Tvne General Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Enterprise Trust and Agency Total Equity in Pun 

$ 94,661 920,495 20,160 527,952 323,415 1 
$ 841.673 $ 4,386 $ 940,720 920,495 20,160 527,952 323.415 
$ 841,673 $ 4,386 $ 2,732,743 

The amount which is shown as a bank overdraft represents outstanding checks for which the bank has invested in a repurchase agreement. The repurchase agreement and the amount shown as bank overdraft arc held ill the same bank account, therefore, there is no actual bank overdraft but rather excess funds invested in the repurchase agreement pursuant to an at,rcement held with the bank. NOTE E - RECEIVABLES Receivables at June 30, 1998 consist of the following (in thousands of dollars) SPECIAl, GIINERAL REVENUE Rcccivables: qaxes $ - Accounts 4,464 Inlergovemmental 2,959 Special assess- meats 616 Inleresl Other Gross receivables Less: allowance for estimated uncol- lecliblcs 8,039 590 

2,637 
247 

DEB] CAPITAl SERVICE PROJECTS ENTERPRISE $ ~ 213 
I 
$ 144 
1~360 

IN I'ERNAI. SERVICE FIDUCIARY "IO1 AI 

1,733 43 

1,246 4,464 6,912 

Net Iotal receivables $ 7,449 $ 2,884 $ 757 $ 214 $ 1,442 $ $ 1,690 $14,436 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE E - RECEIVABLES (CONTINUEI)) An allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is established based on historical collection experience and other relevant circumstances. The allowance for estimated uncollectibles at June 30, 1998, consists of the following alnounts: 
General Fund Enterprise Funds Department of Wastewater Operations Fiduciary Funds Ad Valorem Tax Collection 
NOTI- F - FIXED ASSETS 

$ 590,013 
$ 62,111 
$ 43,175 

Tile following is a sumnlary of changes in tile general fixed assets account group during the fiscal year: 

Land Buildings ]mproveulenls other than buildings Furniture, fixtures and equipment Vehicles Construction 

BAI.ANCI: JUI.Y I, 1997 ADDIr IONS COMPLETED RETIREMEN'I CONSTRUC I ION 
$ 9,884,872 $1,361,108 $ $ 11,074,887 2,830,920 
34,845,701 1,815,310 
9,636,552 8.806.687 852,663 496.332 n progress 10,848,495 ..~2637,458 7,167,312 

BAI,ANCI,; JUNI;30.1998 
$ 11,245,980 13.905.807 
36,661,0 
11,489,215 10,303,019 6,318,641 Total general fixed assets $ 85,097,194 $11,993,791 $ $7,167,312 $ $ 89,923,673 

The City is in the process of having a physical inventory taken of its fixed assets. However, at tile time of this report, the inventory was not complete. Therefore, any required adjustments to the fixed assets of the City of Kenncr, as a result of the physical inventory, are not reported in these financial statemenls. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) Construction in progress is comprised of the following Aur IIORIZATION JUNE 30t 1998 EXI'ENDED TO JUNE 30,1998 COMMITI'ED REQUIRED |:lIT[IRE FINAN{?IN(; General Government: Autocad Mapping System $ 174,60Q $ 174,349 $ 251 $_ 251 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 174,600 $ 174.349 Public Safety: Proposed jail Police headquarters N. Kenner |:ire Station Police training facility renovations Mobile Data System CAD system 
$ 736,720 435,276 1,167,236 5,346 1,267,868 391.510 TOTAl. PUBI.IC SAFETY $ 4,003,956 Public Works: Paving Management Syslem South Kenner Drainage l.oyola Drive Project Drainage Master Plan Vehicle Maintenance Building 1.itl Station 
$ 391,473 284,820 545,250 223,000 42,860 571,367 

$ 546,976 435,276 432,909 5,346 950,910 315.964 $ 2,6873,3~!8~ 
$ 396,553 180,706 526,598 222,875 37,012 ss85,~!93 TOTAl. PUBLIC WORKS $ 2,058,770 $ 1,922 3,~37 Culture and Recreation: Riversiar Theatre l.aketown Pcnisula Improvements Kenner Jr. ltigh Repairs LaSalle Landing Galatas & Butch Duhe Gyms Kennerville Park - Tennis Courts Kennerville Park North Kenuer Park Property 

$ 440,192 26,500 26,344 17,600 2,350 13,536 10,000 20,000 

$ 416,485 25,846 21,934 17.192 2,350 11,108 7.742 11.146 TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION $ 556,522 $ 513 8=9~03 
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$ 251 
$ 198,871 

$ 2sl 
$ 198,87 751.937 751,937 316,958 80.045 ~7,811 

$ 9,603 104,685 18,761 125 5,847 12,774 

316,958 80.045 
$ 9,603 104,685 18,761 125 5,847 12.77d $ 151,395 ~ 151,795 

26,463 654 4,410 40g 2,428 2,258 8,854 

$ 26,463 654 4,410 408 2,428 2,258 8.854 
$ 45,475 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Transit and Urban Development Community Resource Center Emergency Shelter Grant Multipurpose Center 
A't1111ORIZAl'ION TO DA'I E 
$ 943,368 40,128 61.728 

EXPENI)EI) 10 JUNE 3011998 
$ 943,368 39,323 38.080 $ 805 23,648 

REQUIRED F'tlT'tlRE FINANCING 
805 23.648 TOTAL TRANSIT AND URBAN I)EVE&OPMENT $ 1,045,224 $ 1,020,771 $ 24,453 $ 24A53 TOTAl. CONSTRUCTION IN I'ROGRESS $ 7,839,072 $ 6,318,641 $1,569,785 $ 1,569,785 

The following is a summary of proprietary fixed assets at June 30, 1998: ENTERPR1SF FUNDS 
Land and improvements Building and improvements Furniture and fixtures Vehicles and field equipment Construction in progress Total Less: aecanmlated depreciation Nm 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS $ 1,825,937 59,748,821 148,597 983,929 14,145,696 76.852.980 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS TOTAl. $ 5,311,741 16,470,931 2,812,431 
24.595.103 

7,137,678 76,219,752 2,961,028 983,929 14,145,696 101,448,083 24,246,547 3~537,039 27,783,586 $ 52,606,433 $ 21,058,064 $ 73,664,497 The following estimated useful lives (in years) are used for computing depreciation and amortization 
Buildings and improvements Utility plants, stations and lines Vehicles, machinery and equipmen Furniture and fixtures 
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ENTERPRISE FUNI)S DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 0-15 50 5 10 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS 20-50 5 10 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT1NUEI)) June 30. 1998 

NOTE G LONG-TERM DEB1 BONDS AND CERTIFICATES Long-term debt at June 30, 1998 includes the following serial bonds and certificates: RANGE OF ANNUAL PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 
DESCRIPTION General Obligation, Special Tax and Excess Revenue Bonds 

FINAL INTEREST MATURITY RATES DATE FROM TO 
(IN TIIOUSANI)S OF DOLLARS) AMOUNJ AMOUN] ISSUED OUT- STANDING 

General Obligalion Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 5.10- 5.75 03-01-05 $ 200,000 $ 260,000 $ 2,595 $ 1,595 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 5.10- 6.125 06-01-12 $1,445,000 $ 2,945,000 36,580 29,470 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 2.95 06-01-16 $ 450,000 $ 740,000 11,428 10,535 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1995A 2.95 06-01-16 $ 55,000 $ 90,000 1,463 1,285 Excess Revenue Bonds, Series 1996A 4.88 01-01-01 $ 690,000 $ 760,000 3,450 2.175 Excess Revenue Bonds, Series 1996B 5.45 01-01-06 $ 300,000 $ 435,000 3,450 2,900 $58,966 $ 47,960 Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment Paving Certificates 7.75 04-01-00 $ 29,272 $ 293 $ 59 TOTAL BONDS AND CERTIFICATES 
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$59,259 $48,019 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES 1"O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE G - 1.ONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) Additional infonnalion pertaining to the foregoing bonds and certificates is as follows GFNI'RA1J OBLIGATION, SPECIAL TAX AND F.XCESS REVENUE BONDS General Obligation Refunding Bonds These bonds are secured by, and payable from Ad Valorem taxes collected in the Ad Valorem Tax Bonds Fund. At June 30, 1998, $1,595,000 of such bonds were outstanding and $236,258 was available in the Debt Service Funds. 2. Sales Tax Bonds The Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992 and the Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A are all obligations of the City. These bonds are secured by, and payable from the City's allocation of the proceeds of sales taxes collected pursuant to Louisiana Legislative Acts 188 of 1954 and 29 of 1966 collected and remitted by the Parish of Jefferson. At June 30, 1998, bonds outstanding were $29,470,000, $10,535,000 and $1,285,000, respectively. The amount available in tile Debt Service Funds was $5,233,652. The amounts outstanding for the Sales Tax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A represent the unpaid amounts drawn down as of June 30, 1998 through loans obtained from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality. These loans are secured by the Sales "Iax Bonds, Series 1994 and 1995A. The City has developed a Wastewater Compliance Plan as a result of an EPA Administrative Order to perform those tasks necessary for its three wastewater treatment plants to comply with the effluent limitations of their discharge pennits. In July 1994, the City obtained approval for a loan in the amount of $11,430,000 from tile 1,ouisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ), of which $11,427,803 was actually received. The loan will be repaid over a period of twenty years commencing with the completion of the project. The loan serves as an interim construction loan, whereas amounts are drawn down from LDEQ Oil a monthly basis as funds are needed. Interest payments and an administrative fee is payable semi-annually at a rate of 2.45% and .50%, respectively, based on the total amounts drawn on the loan. At June 30, 1998, the loan had an outstanding balance of $10,535,000. Total interest and administrative fees paid during the year-ended June 30, 1998 were $268,956 and $54,889, respectively. Due to the shortage of funding, in April 1995 the City obtained approval for a second l.ouisiana Department of Environmental Quality loan in the amount of $3,395,000, of which $1,462,875 was actually received. The loan will be repaid over a period of twenty years commencing with the completion of the project. The characteristics of this second loan are similar to those noted on the first loan above. At June 30, 1998, the loan had an outstanding balance of $1,285,000. Total interest and administrative fees paid during the year-ended June 30, 1998 were $32,697 and $6,673, respectively. The funding necessary to service these loans was obtained from the dedication of the 1954 (1/2 cent) and 1966 (1/2 cent) sales tax revenues. 3. Excess Revenue Bonds Certificates of Indebtedness Series 1996A and 1996B are to be used for various capital projects. These cerlificates are collateralized by a pledge of the excess revenues from the General Fund. At June 30, 1998, bonds outstanding were $2,175,000 and $2,900,000, respectively. The amount available in the Debt Service Funds was $1,626.115. 
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NOTE G - I.ONG-TERM I)EBT (CONTINUED) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT WITH GOVERNMENTAL COMMITMENT These certificates are collateralized by and are payable from, the irrevocable pledge and dedication of the funds to be derived from the collection of the assessments, in annual installments, levied on the real properly improved, using the funds derived fiom the sale of specific certificates. In case of properly owner default, the certificates would be backed by tile full faith and credit of the City. Therefore, in accordance with the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 6, the governing authority of the City has been deemed to be "obligated in some manner". At June 30, 1998, $58,544 of such certificates were outstanding and $13,011 was available ill the Debt Service Funds. NOTES PAYABLE In December 1992, City of Kenner issued a long-term note for $700,000. The proceeds were to be loaned ill accordance with tile HUD Section 108 Loan Guarantee program. The loan did not materialize, therefore, the proceeds have been invested to finance the payment of the note payable. The investnmnt is accounted for in the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund. The long term note is payable over a period of 6 years with iuterest payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 6.59% to 6.83%. At June 30, 1998, the note payable had an outstanding balance of $240,000. Notes payable were entered into for the purchase of various equipment and vehicles which are accounted for in the Civic Center Operations Enterprise Fund. Interest rales on these long-term notes range from 9% to 14%. A1 June 30, 1998, the notes payable had a total outstanding balance of $3,736. MORTGAGE PAYABLE In June 1978, City of Kenner obtained a loan in the amount of $40,000 at an interest rate of 9.75% for the purchase of land and an existing building. This loan is accounted for in the Wastewater Operations Enterprise Fund. At June 30, 1998, the mortgage payable had an outstanding balance of $25,297. GENERAL DEBT Canital l.ease Obii~.ations The City has capital lease obligations on various facilities and equipment. See Note Q - Lease Commitments - General. Compensated Absences General All employees, except police and fire employees, earn sick leave at the following rates Full time employees: 1 day/month not to exceed 12 days/year Regular part lime employees'. 1/2 day/month not to exceed 6 days/year 
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NOTE G I.ONG-TERM DEBT(CONTINUED) Employees earn annual leave in varying amounts according to years of service as follows Service Full time employees: 0-5 5-10 over 10 Regular part time employees 0-5 5-10 over 10 

Amount 
I day~month 1 1/2 day/month 2 days/month 
1/2 day/month 3/4 day/month 1 day/month Employees arc required to use their annual leave during the calendar year following the year in which it is earned. Annual leave not used by December 31 of the calendar year is determined for each employee. Half of this leave is lost and half is carried forward to be paid upon separation of service. This carryforward time is not available to be taken as annual leave ill future periods. Annual leave is payable upon separation of service. Sick leave is accumulated without time limitation and is payable up to a maximum of 90 days upon retirement or death. In accordance with Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, "Accounting for Compensated Absences", an additional liability is recorded for salary related payments associated with thc future payment of compensated absences. Such salary related payments consist of the City's portion of Medicare lax withholding. Fire Departmenl Firefighters receive 18 days of ammal leave after one year of service. After 10 years of service employccs receive one additional day of annual leave for each additional year of service to a maximum of 30 days per year. Vacation time not used by December 31 is lost. 

Police Department Police personnel earn annual leave in varying amounts according to years of service as follows 
Years Service 0- 1 Year 1 - 10 Years 10 - 20 Years Over 20 Years 

Civil Service Amount -0- 120 Hours 160 Hours 200 Hours 

Non-Civil Service Amount -0- 05 Hours 40 Hours 75 Hours These hours are accrued on January I st, and are for use only in the calendar year. Hours not taken by December 31st are lost. If an employee terminates employment, they are paid for the annual leave they have remaining on the books. 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE G LONG-TERM DEBT(CONTINUED) Police personnel earn sick leave al the following rates Full time employees: Regular part time employees 1 day/month not to exceed 10 days/year 1/2 day/month not to exceed 5 days/year Upon retirement, employees are entitled to receive pay for accrued, unused sick leave days up to a maximum of 90 days. 
CItANGFS IN LONG-TERM DEB'I During the year-ended June 30, 1998, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported iu the general long-term debt account group (in lhousands of dollars): 

Balance at July 1, 1997 Bonds and certificates Compensated absences Capitallease obligations Nole payable 

ONI)S AND CERTIFICATI~S SPECIAL GENERAL ASSESSMENT OBLIGATION DEBT WITtl SPECIAl, TAX GOVERNMENTAl, GI~NI;RAL & EXCESS REVENUE COMMITMENT NOTFS I)EBq 
$50,96 
50.96 

$ 88 $ 

Bonds and certificates retired (3,001) (29) Additional compensated absences 
Payments made on: Capitallease obligation Note payable Balance at June 30. 1998 $47,960 $ 59 
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355 355 
$ 1,580 687 ,049 ,580 687 355 2,267 53,67 
6 (3,030) 161 
(55) (55) (115) (115) $ 240 $ 2,373 $ 50,632 
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NOTE G LONG-TERM DEBT(CONTINUED) Annual debt service to maturity, including interest of $19,302,697, is as follows 

YEAR-IiNI)ING JUNE 30~ 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004-2008 2009-2013 2014-2016 
COMPLIANCE 

N THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS BONDS AND CERTIFICATES OTHER 
GFNERAI, ()1~I JGATION $ 289 284 283 281 283 554 
$ 1,974 

SPECIAl. ASSESSMEN] I)I[B] WIT[I SAIJ~S EXCESS GOVERNMEN I'AL lAX REVENUE COMMITMENT $ 3,984 3,979 3,987 3,988 3,982 19,928 16,790 2,565 $ 59,203 

$ 1,254 1,254 1,252 457 457 
$ 34 32 

ENTi'RPRISE FUNDS MORTGAGE AND NOTES NOTES TO'IA $ 127 $ 129 8 4 4 4 4 21 
$ 45 

$ 5,696 5,682 5,526 4,730 4,726 21,875 16,790 2,565 $67,590 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. AI)VANCE REFUNDING Ill a prior year, the City defeased certain special tax bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds into irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and tile liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. Debt outstanding at June 30, 1998 relating to these prior year defeasances is as follows: Special Tax Bonds Special Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1987A Special Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1988 
NOTE tl - RESF.RVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCE The nature and purpose of the reserves and designations are as follows Reserved for Encumbrances 

$ 9,360,000 5,005,000 $14,365,000 

This reserve was established for outstanding purchase orders and other commitments for unperformed contracts for goods and services which the City intends to honor. Reserved for Inventory This reserve was established as all offset against the asset, inventory, because it does not constitute all available spendable resource of the General Fund. 
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NOTE tl - RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) Reserved for Prenaid Items This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, prepaid items, because it does not constitute awl available spendable resource of the General Fund. eserved for Notes Payable This reserve was eslablisbed as an offset against the portion of cash and equity in pooled cash and investments which represenls assets reserved for the repayment of the notes related lo the Section 108 Loans. Reserved for Restricted Exoenditures This reserve was created to restrict tile use of all resources remaining in the Special Assessment Funds included in tile General Fund. "llle restriction is mandated by the terms of the bond indentures in that tile amounts oll hand arc to be used only for similar projects in the assessment area. Also included in this reserve are ninnies which are restricted for law enforcelnent purposes. Reserve for Canital Exoendilures This reserve represents tbe amount of unexpended and unencumbered funds remaining in a departmental budget dedicated for capital expenditures in the next fiscal year. This restriction was dedicated by ordinance. The reserve also includes Video Poker Revenues which are dedicated In Capital Expenditures. Reserved for Debt Service This reserve represents tile amounts reserved for payment of principal and interest maturing in fulure years Ftmd Balance Reserved for Emolovees' Pension Benefits This reserve was created to restrict the use of all resources contributed to or earned by the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. This amount is required to be fully reserved under the Plan. )esi~nated for Subsenuent Years' Expenditure This designation represents the expenditures budgeted in 1998-1999, paid from funds remaining in 1997-1998 esi~nated for Canital Additions and lmorovements The proceeds of various bond issues and the interest earned on the investment thereof are designated for capital projects in lhe various capital projects funds to the extent that such amount has not been reserved for encumbrances. 
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NOTE 1 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS nterfund Assets/Liabilities ndividual fund interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1998 are as follows: 
UNI) Genera Special Revenue One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Community Development Block Grant Garbage Collection and Disposal Roads and Bridges Street 1.ighting Fire Department Drug F'.nforcement Forfeiture Local l.aw Enforcement Debt Service General Debt Ad Valorem Tax Bm~ds Capital Projects General Capital Projects Capital Prqiecls Funded With Bond Proceeds 

Enterprise Department of Wastewater Operations Civic Center Operations ntemal Service Health Insurance 
Fiduciary Ad Valorem Tax Collection Airport Sales Tax 
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RECEIVABLE . FUND $ 3,882,783 
675,684 2,153 170,462 734,374 173,538 676.360 
2,432,571 61,462 98,875 160,337 920.060 920,060 
11,360 

PAYABLE FUND $1,664,858 
2,382,306 724.972 585,966 89,717 8,633 II848~_]0 3,800,004 
152,210 243,085 395,295 
311,908 111,360 311,908 744 
1,245,205 89,097 1,334,302 $7,507,111 
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NO'H" I - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) A summary of operating transfers by fund type for the year-ended June 30, 1998 is as follows 
UNI) General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
)ebl Service Funds 

NOTE J - AD VALOREM TAX 

TRANSFERS TO OR FROM Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Prqiects Fund 
General Fund Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds 
General Fund Debt Service Funds Special Revenue Funds 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN $ 6,585,640 7,446 504,768 7.097.854 469,984 3,087,282 16,790 3,574,056 
134,727 1~028,181 1,162,908 
5,776,544 

OPt~RA'I ING TRANSFERS OUT $ 469,984 5,776,544 6,246,528 6,585,640 3,087,282 134.727 9.807.649 

504,768 028,181 16,790 549.739 
$ 17,611,362 

The ad valorem tax on real property is levied as of November 15th of each year. The tax becomes an enforceable lien on the property on the first day of the month following the filing of the lax rolls by the Assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December lst). The tax bills are mailed by the City in early December and are due upon receipt. The laxes become delinquent on January 1st in the year after levy. The taxes are levied on property values delermined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. All land and residential improvements are assessed al 10 percent of their fair market value and other property at 15 percent of its fair market value. Ad valorem taxes are levied (per $1,000 assessed value) in varying amounts for maintenance and operation, debt service and capital improvements for the City. The number of mills levied for 1997 and 1996 are as follows: 
(ieneral Fund Garbage Collection and Disposal Fund Fire Department Fund Ad Valorem 'lax Bonds Fund Deparlment of Wastewater Operations Fund TOTAL 
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1997 .MILLS 3.51 2.71 12.42 1.13 1.93 

1996 MILI.S 3.51 2.71 12.42 1.30 1.93 



NOTE K - SAI.ES TAX 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

A sales tax of 8.75% for the period of July I, 1997 through June 30, 1998 was collected on purchases ill the City of Kenner (food and drugs are taxed at a 6% rate, and hotelhnotel rooms at a 9% rate). Of the 8.75% total, 4.0% is levied by lhe state, and 4.75% by Jefferson Parish, for itself and other local government subdivisions within tire Parish. The following table for parish taxes lists the effective year of each authorized tax rate, the Parish-wide tax rate (which includes 1/6% retained by the Parish), the rate collected for the benefit of the Jefferson Parish School Board, and the rate collected for the benefit of the City of Kenner. 
Effective Date 1954 1966 1980 1981 1984 1993 1994 

Parish-Wide Rate 1% 1% 1/2% 1/2% 1% 1/2% 1/4% 

School Board Rate City Rate 1/2% 1/2% 0% 1/3% 1% 0% 1/4% 4 3/4% 2% 2 7/12% 
The Parish Sheriff's Office (a separate reporting entity) collects all parish taxes, except on motor vehicle sales, and retains 11% as a collection commission on the share going to local governments. The state collects parish taxes on motor vehicle sales, and remits them back to the Parish of registration. 

NOTE L - INTEREST COS']" Interest cost in the amount of $363,215 was capitalized during the year-ended June 30, 1998. Interest expense incurred in the proprietary funds during the year was as follows: 

nteresl expense 
ENTERPRISE FUND% DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS $ 2,553 

NOTE M - SEGMENT INFORMATION-ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS $ 768 
The City maintains two Enterprise Funds of which one provides sewer services to the residents of the City and one is used to account for the operations of the Pontchartrain Civic Center. Segment information as of and for the year- ended June 30, 1998, is as follows (in thousands of dollars): 
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NOTE M - SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Type of service Operating revenues Depreciation Operating loss Operating transfers in Ad valorem tax revenues ltotel/motel taxes Franchise fees Net loss Current capital contributions Properly, planl, and equipment, nel Net working capital Total assets Total long-term liabilities Total fund equity 
NOTE N - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 
Sewerage $ 4,358 1,496 (1,866) 449 
(1,4,16) 900 52,606 1,288 54,357 26 53.869 

CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS TOTAl. Facility Rental $ 1,202 514 (I,095) 
365 498 (202) 1,236 21,o58 845 22,129 21,9o3 

During tile year, contributed capital increased by the following amounts (in thousands of dollars) ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Balance at July I, 1997 Additions: Contributions of fixed assets financed by: Sales tax bonds Excess revenue bonds Stale bonds 

DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS $ 67,203 $ 22,952 $ 90,155 
2,012 (776) 900 2,012 (776) Balance at June 30, 1998 $ 68,103 24,188 $ 92,291 

NOTE O - TREASURE CIIEST RIVERBOAT CASINO AGREEMENT 

$ 5,560 2,010 (2,961 ) 449 365 498 (1,618) 2,136 73,664 2,133 76,486 26 75.772 

The City of Kenner and Treasure Chest Casino, L.L.C. entered into a lease of property in Laketown, Kenner on December 3, 1993 for Treasure Chest Casino, L.L.C.'s riverboat gaming operations. The term of the lease is divided into three phases, an Initial Term, a Primary Term, and at the Lessee's option, one or more Renewal Terms. The "Initial Term" oftbe lease began on the date of execution and continued until July 1, 1994. Tile "Primary Term" of the lease is for five years beginning on July 1, 1994 and the Lessee has the option to extend the term of this lease for six additional Renewal Terms of five years each. Tile Lessee agrees to pay "Initial Rent" to the City 
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NOTE O - TREASURE CIJEST RIVERBOAT CASINO AGREEMENT (CONTINUED) should the opening date occur during the Initial "Penn at an amount equal to $2.50 for each passenger throughout the remainder of the Initial Term. Commencing with the Primary Term, the Lessee paid to tile City a minimmu annual rent ("Base Rent"). The Base Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was $1,600,000. The Base Rent shall be determined for each subsequent lease fiscal year of tile lease by multiplying tile actual number of passengers during tile first three quarters of the lease fiscal year by $2.50. The Base Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was calculaled based upon 640,000 passengers. Commencing with the Primary Tema, in addition to the Base Rent above, tile Lessee shall pay to the City an amount equal to $2.50 for each passenger ill excess of the number of passengers per lease fiscal year used to determine the Base Rent for that particular year ("Per Capita Rent"). In accordance with the "Initial hnprovement Plan", the Lessee paid to the City a "Lump Sum Advanced Payment" in the amount set forth in tile Initial hnprovement Plan, the proceeds of which were used by the City In make certain infrastructure improvements. The Lessee agreed to make certain leasehold improvements at pre-approved costs and was entitled lo recapture the Lump Sum Advanced Payment and that portion of the costs of the leasehold improvements by means of credits against tile rent. The Lessee was entitled lo deduct from its monthly rent payments 250 of such payments until the lessee has received a credit equal to the cost of the rent credit improvements. Total rent credits allowed under the lease of $2,619,000 have been fully utilized as of June 30, 1997. Commencing on tile opening date, ill addition In the Initial Rent, Base Rent and Per Capita Rent, tile Lessee shall pay to the City the "Percentage Rent" in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of its net gaining proceeds and any admission fees in excess of $10.00 per passenger or tile "minimum percentage rent". There will be no Minimum Renl during the Initial Tenn. The Minimum Percentage Rent for the first year of the Primary Term was $312,853, and for each subsequent base fiscal year, an amount equal to lbe Percentage Rent for the first three quarters of the preceding base fiscal year. Such Percentage Rent shall be used to subsidize Cily projects such as City Recreational Facilities, City Playgrounds, Tourism Advertisement and Brochures, Convention Center/Hotel Shuttle, Trolley Transportation, City Museums, Alzheimer's ('enter Operations, City Sponsored Summer Camps, and City Senior Citizens Activities. Any funds remaining shall be dedicated to City capital projects. The Kenner Police Department is entitled to 24% of all lease revenues received by the City, and shall not be subject to ally Rent Credits. During the Primary Term of this lease and each Renewal Term, tile lessee agrees to pay to the Kenner Police Department tile greater of $400,000 or I% of net gaming proceeds. n September 1994, tile riverboat casino began operations The City is cmrently in dispute with the Parish of Jefferson over the right of Jefferson Parish to levy a $2.50 admission fee upon the patrons of the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino. Also, the Parish of Jefferson has filed a lawsuit against lhe City contesting lhe annexation by the City of Kenner of a portion of Lake Pontehartrain where the Williams Boulevard Boat l.aunch and the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino are located. While the City is not being sued for a sum of money, this lawsuit could affect the City's right to collect revenue from the Treasure Chest Riverboal Casino. Management and its outside legal counsel are of the opinion that the possibility of losing this lawsuit is remote. During the fiscal year-ended June 30, 1997, the Appeals Court denied Jefferson Parish's claim thai they were entitled to collect the $2.50 fee for each passenger boarding the Riverboat. This decision was virtually dispositive of the case and no further action has been taken on it by the Parish of Jefferson. The lawsuit was a declaratory judgment brought by the City of Kenner against the Parish of Jefferson. It has not been dismissed but tile Appeals Court decision described above virtually ends any chance that Jefferson may have to a claim for the boarding fees. 
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NOTE P - RISK MANAGEMENT The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to tons; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss, the City has established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund). Under this program, the Self-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $250,000 for each general liability claim with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by tile fund up to $750,000; $250,000 for each auto liability claim with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $750,000; and $300,000 for each worker's compensation claim with commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund up to $1,000,000. The City purchases commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Also, the Fund provides coverage for auto/physical danmge which requires a $1,000 deductible per department per occurrence. The remaining balance on the claim is paid by the Fund. All funds of tile City with employees, except for tile Civic Center Operations Fund, participate in the program and make payments to tile fund based on an actuarial valuation dated July 1996 adjusted by the actual performance of the programs using historical experience. The claims liability of $1,833,628 (which includes claims incurred but not reported of $798,303) reported in the Fund at June 30, 1998 is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Stalement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if infomration prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 30, "Risk Financing Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 10", requires that specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses and estimated recoveries be considered in calculating the claims liability. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during fiscal 1998 and 1997 were as follows: 

996-1997 997-1998 
IIEAI,'I'tl INSURANCE 

Beginning of Fiscal Year Liability_ $1,687,231 $1,301,143 
Current Year Claims and Changes in Claim .Estimates Payments $ 416,517 $ 1,061,760 $ (802,605) $ (529,275) 

Balance at Fiscal Year-End $1,301,143 $1,833.628 
The City provides health and accident insurance to its employees through health-maintenance organizations (1 IMO's) and commercial insurance carriers. The City has no additional liability other than the initial premiums. NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES IATIGATION The City is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally from personal injury, properly damage, and excessive assessment claims. The City Atlorney and outside counsel have reviewed these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the City. As a result of such review, the various claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable", "reasonably possible", and "remote" contingencies as defined in GASB Codification C50. The City's "reasonably possible" loss contingencies at June 30, 1998 for which an amount of liability can be estimated, approximates $685,000 and are not reflected in these financial statements. All probable claims have been accrued as liabilities in the City's Self-Insurance Fund. See Note P for additional details. The City is also currently in dispute with the Parish of Jefferson over the right of Jefferson Parish to levy a $2.50 admission fee upon the patrons of the Treasure Chest Riverboat Casino. See Note O for additional details. 
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NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) FEDERAI.1JY ASSISTED PROGRAMS The City receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state govermnental agencies ill the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and condilions specified in the grant agreements. The programs are audited in accordance with the Single Andi~ Act of 1984 and 1996 Amendments and also subject to further examination by the grantor agency. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds, tlowever, in tile opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements. EPA ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER On November 30, 1990, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued the City an Administrative Order for sewerage effluent violations. As a result, the City has initiated a sewer rehabilitation project for which costs are approximately $15 million. Failure to comply with the provisions of the Order could result in mouetary fines or an EPA administrative penalty. See Note G for additional information regarding the financing of the sewer rehabilitation project. AGRt:.EMENT FOR OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES OF TIlE KENNER WASTEWATER COL1.ECTION AND TREATMENT SYSTEMS In July 1995, the City entered into an agreement with Professional Services Group, Inc. ("PSG") for the management, operation and maintenance of the Wastewater Collection and Treatment Systems. PSG offered employment to all personnel of Kenner who were currently assigned full-time to the Wastewater Department. The term of the agreement is for five years commencing on July 1, 1995. PSG's compensation under the agreement consists of an annual fee. For the first four years of the agreement, PSG's annual fee is $4,409,261. The annual fee will be adjusted at the end of the fourth contract year in accordance with the CPI Adjustment Formula as stipulated in the agreement. EASE COMMITMF.NTS - GENERAL l,eases are accounted for in accordance with GASB Codification Section L20-Leases, which requires classification of leases as capital or operating leases. Governmental fund assets under capital leases are recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the lease obligations are recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Capital lease The City entered into a Municipal Lease and Option Agreement for the purchase of various equipment to be leased/purchased by the City. On September 11, 1996, a lease/purchase and escrow addendum was made to the original lease/purchase agreement dated December 7, 1995. Monthly payments began in October 1996 for a term of 10 years with payments of $8,384 per month. Funding for the lease payments will result from the energy savings derived from the installation of such equipment. 
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NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) The following is a schedule of the future minimum value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, Year-Ending June 30th 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004-2007 Total minimum lease payments Less amount reprcseuting interest Present value of future mininmm lease payments 
Operaling leases 

lease payments under the capital lease together with the presenl 1998. Governmenta Funds $ 100,613 100,613 100,613 100,613 100,613 326,992 830,057 197,895 $ 632,162 
The City is committed under various leases for buildings. These leases are considered for accounting purposes to be operating leases. [.ease expenditures for the year-ended June 30, 1998 amounted to $47,532. Future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows: Year-Ending June 30th 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 Thereafter 
NOTE R - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

Amounts $ 47,532 47,532 47,532 47,532 47,532 59,415 $ 297,075 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. In 1996, the U.S. Congress passed the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, which requires that employer governments place all amounts deferred under IRC Section 457 into a trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. This change was allowed as early as January 1, 1997, but must be done by January 1, 1999. In prior years, these assets were solely the property of the City and subject to claims of the City's general creditors, and were reported in the City's financial statements. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the City amended its Plan to comply with the requirements of the Act. Thus, lhe City no longer has ownership of the Plan assets and they are no longer reported in the City's financial statements. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE R - I)EFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (CONTINUED) At June 30, 1998, the Plan had assets consisting of cash and investments totaling $1,063,181, and liabilities for the employee benefits totaling a like amount. Investments are managed by tile Plan's trustee (PEBSCO). The choices of tile investment option(s) are made by the Plan participants. 
NOTE S - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS In addition to the pension benefits described in Note T, the City provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits, authorized by City resolution, to all retirees with 20 years or more of service. Expenditures for posirelirement health care and life insurance benefits are recognized as the premiums are paid by the City, which is required to pay only the retirees' portion. The retiree must pay the portion of the premium related to any dependents. At June 30, 1998, sixty-eight retirees were eligible and were receiving such health care benefits. Total health care premimns amounted to $205,767, of which $153,914 (75%) was paid by the City and $51,852 (25%) was paid by the retirees for the year-ended June 30, 1998. Life insurance premiums paid by the City for sixty-six eligible relirees amounted to $2,367 for the year-ended June 30, 1998. These post retirement health care and life insurance benefits are not accounted for as a defined benefit pension plan thus Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 26 "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Healthcare Plans Administered by Defined Benefit I'ension Plans" does riot apply. 
NOTE T - PENSION PLANS GENERA The City reporting entity participates in three defined benefit pension plans. Assets are held separately and may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members oflhe respective plans, as follows: Substantially all of tim City's full-time, permanent employees, other than those employed by the Kenner Fire Department and Kenner Police Department are participants in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, State of Louisiana (the Municipal Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. All full-time officers of the Police Department of the City are participants in the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (the Police Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The employees of the Fire Department of the City are participants in the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (The Firemen's Plan), a single-employer defined benefit plan. PI.AN DESCRIPTIONS Municipal Employees' Retirement System, State of Louisiana (The Municipal Plan) Employees of the City participate in Plan A of tim Municipal Plan. Under the Municipal Plan, employees with 10 years of service may retire at age 60, employees with 25 years of service may retire at age 55, and employees with 30 years of service may retire regardless of age. The monthly amount of the retirement allowance is equal to 3 percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of service. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's death, under certain conditions, are payable to the surviving spouse. The Municipal Plan retirement information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1997. The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial report may be obtained from the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriate, at the office of the parish clerk of court. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE q" - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) Municioal Police Emolovees Retirement System (The Police Plan Members of the Police Plan are eligible for normal retirement after they have been a member of the plan for one year, if they have 25 years of service at any age or they have 20 years service and are age 50 or have 12 years service and are age 55. Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 I 1:2233. The monthly retirement benefit is equal to 3 1/3 percent of the member's average monthly earnings during the highest consecutive 36 months, multiplied by years of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of member's final compensation. Retirement benefits are payable monthly to the retiree, and upon the death of the retiree, under certain conditions, are payable lo the surviving spouse and minor children. The Police Plan retirement information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1997. The Municipal Police Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report thai includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The financial report may be obtained from the Baton Rouge office of the Legislative Auditor and, where appropriale, at the office of the parish clerk of court. iremen's Pension and Relief Fund (The Firemen's Plan) All permanent active employees of the Fire Department are eligible for participation. Under the Firemen's Plan, members prior lo April 1, 1978, with 20 years of service may retire. Contribution requirements were determined and authorized by Act 765 of the 1989 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature and approved by the City Council of the City of Keuner, Louisiana Resolution 13 - g679 dated February 15, 1990. Contribution increases are established under Act 558 of the 1995 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Members after March 31, 1978 and on or before September 30, 1995 with 30 years of service are eligible to retire. Members after September 30, 1995 with 30 years of service and upon reaching age 55 arc eligible to retire. Retirement benefits for members prior to April 1, 1978, are 66 2/3 percent of monthly salary at the time of retirement for 20 to 24 years of service, 75 percent of salary for 25 to 29 years of service, and 85 percent of salary for 30 or more years of service. Retirement benefit for members after March 31, 1978, is 85 percent of the monthly salary received at time of retirement. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's deafl~, under certain conditions, arc payable to the surviving spouse. The Firemen's Plan retirement information in this note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, June 30, 1997. The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund issues a publicly available financial report thal includes financial stalemeuts and required supplementary information. The financial report may be obtained from lhe Cily of Kenner, Louisiana. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The City's financial stalemenls are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds arc recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. METtIOD USED TO VALUE INVESTMENTS As required by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosure for Defined Contribution Plans", investments are reported at fair value. Short- lerm investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Corporale bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities from issuers of similar credit ratings. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. Besides investments in the U.S. Government and U.S. Government obligations, the Plans had no investments in any one organization which represented more than 5% of the net assets available for benefits. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES 1"O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTE T - PI:NSION PLANS (CONTINUED) COVERED PAYROLL The total payroll, as well as the covered payroll, for each of the plans for the year-ended June 30, 1998 were as follows: 
Municipal Plan Police Plan Firemen's Plan CURRENT MEMBERSHIP 

$ 8,470,090 6,030,622 2,575,496 
COVERED $ 7,385,163 4,008,165 2,522,592 

At June 30, 1997 (latest date for which such information was available at the date of this report), the plan membership of the Firemen's Plan consisted of: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees who are enlil|ed to receive benefits but are not yet receiving benefits Active plan participants Fully vested Partially vested Total 3 8.33 116 Membership data for the Municipal Plan and Police Plan, cost-sharing multiple-employer plans, are not available by individual employer. CONTRIBUTIONS REQUIRED AND MADE 3"he funding policy for the Firemen's Plan provides for employer contributions of 13.0 percent and employee contributions of 9.0 percent of the gross salary of participating employees. These rates were established by state statutes and adopted by the City. Contributions rates are not actuarially determined. In addition, the employer also contributes the fire insurance tax it receives fi'om the State of Louisiana which makes the effective employer contribution percentage 18.78%. The Plan further provides thai the City of Kenner shall replenish the Fund in amounts equivalent to any deficit resulting from the payment of the benefits provided by the Plan. Contributions required and made for the single-employer plan is comprised of the following as of June 30, 1998 FIREMEN'S PLAN Contributions required and made Employer Employee 
Contributions made as a percentage of covered payro Employer Employee 

$ 473,643 22%033 $ 700,676 
18.78% 9.00% The unfunded pension benefit obligation as of June 30, 1997 (latest date for which such information was available at the date of this report) was $4,450,991. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTt- T - PENSION P1.ANS (CONTINUED) The funding policies for the Municipal Plan and the Police Plan provide for contributions at actuarially detcnnined rates. The contribution rates of the Municipal Plan are determined using the frozen attained age nonnal cost method, with tile unfunded accrued liability being funded over a 33 year period. Member contributions are established by state statute and are 9.25% of covered payroll. The contribution rates of the Police Plan are determined using the entry age normal cost method, with the unfunded accrued liability being funded over a 33 year period. Member contributions are established by state statute at 7.5% of covered payroll. Contributions required and made for the Municipal Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan were as follows Citv Emnlc, vees Annual Year Ending Required June 30 Contribution 996 997 998 032,832 083,879 106.852 
Contribution 440,889 445,409 424,502 

% of Covered Payroll Contribution 6.75 6.25 5.75 591,943 638,470 682,350 
% of Covered Payroll 9.00 9.00 9.25 

Contributions required and made for the Police Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan were as follows 
Annual Yem Ending Required June 30 1996 1997 1998 
Contribution 563,170 579,326 661,347 

C 
Contribution 307,184 315,996 360.735 

% of Covered Payroll 9.00 9.00 9.00 

Emnlovees 
Contribution 255,986 263,330 300.612 

%of Covered Payroll 7.50 7.50 7.50 
The Municipal Plan and the Police Plan, cost sharing multiple-employer plans, do not conducl sepalate measurements of assets and actuarial accrued liability for individual employers. The City's contributions to the Municipal and Police Plans represented 6.1 and 3.0 percent, respectively, of total contributions required of all employers. TREND INFORMATION Historical trend infonnation is presented in order for a reader to assess the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefts as they become due. Six-year historical ~'vnd information is presented in the Supplementary Information Section of this report for the Firemen's Plan. Six-year historical trend infonnation for the Municipal Plan and the Police Plan is available in the separately issued reports. NOTE U - APPROPRIATION OF STATE MONIES Anorm)riation of Slate Monies from Refinancin~ of Louisiana Suoerdome A sports and enler~ainmenl package was approved by the Louisiana Legislalure on June 9, 199z1 and signed into law. This package involves new bond financing and the refinancing of existing debt on the Louisiana Superdome. One project included in tiffs package is a $1.5 million grant to tim City of Kenner for expansion of the Pontchartrain Center. 
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CI'IY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 

NOTF 1J - APPROPRIATION OF STATE MONIES (CONTINUED) On December 15, 1994, a resolution was passed by the City of Kenner Council, whereby the City would provide additional funds to lbe Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District "that could be added 1o the $1.5 million of state monies presently dedicated for the expansion of the Center. This additional financing was a result of the City's issuance of Certificate of Indebtedness Series 1996B. On January 4, 1996, the City of Kenner entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District (the "District") for expansion of the Center. The District has issued $48,000,000 of ttotel Occupancy Tax Bonds, Series 1995-B and has allocated an amount not to exceed $1,500,000 from tile proceeds of the bonds for the expansion of the Center. The City of Kenner has contributed $2,430,453 of proceeds from its issuance of Certificate Indebtedness Series 1996B for the remainder of the construction contract, including contingencies of the Project. I11 1996, the District awarded a construction contract, including contingencies, in the amount of $3,684,344 which was paid in part by a contribution from the City of $2,384,344 and the remainder by a contribution from tile District of $1,300,000. The remaining allocation of District monies were used for professional fees, soil boring and other "soft" costs relating to the Project. Construction has been completed on the Project. As of June 30, 1998, $4,215,062 was expended on tile Project 
NOTE V YEAR 2000 ISSUE (UNAUD1TED) The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other electronic equipment that nlay adversely affect tile government's operations as early as fiscal year 1999. The City has contracted with their computer consultants for establishing a year 2000 project. A $30,000 budget was approved for the Assessment Stage, which is the actual process of identifying all of its systems and individual components of the systems. During this stage, tile consultants will prepare an inventory of computer systems and other electronic equipment that may be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conducting City operations. The consultants will also confirm compliance with primary processing vendors, test system and program compliance, report findings to the task force, and determine a monetary value for the Remediation Stage. The Assessment Stage is scheduled to be completed with a full report due on March 1, 1999. Upon completion of the Assessment Stage, the systems will need to be remediated, and tested and validated. As of June 30, 1998, no costs have been expended on the project. The Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office collects sales taxes for distribution to the City of Kenner. The Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office is responsible for remedialing its sales tax system. Jefferson Parish collects sewerage and water revenues for distribution to the City of Kenner. Jefferson Parish is responsible for remedialing its sewerage and water billing system. The State of Louisiana distributes a substantial sum of money to the City in the form of various tax revenues and federal and state grant payments. The State is responsible for remediating its systems. The City has yet to contact these and other external parties as to their compliance with the year 2000 issue Because of the uuprecedenled nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the City of Kenner is or will be year 2000 ready, that tbe City's remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the City does business will be year 2000 ready. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) June 30, 1998 

NOTE W - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS remen's Pension Merue In March 1998, the required three-fourths vote of the active and inactive members approved the merger with the Stalewide Firefighlers Retirement System (SFRS). Approval for the merger was received from tile SFRS and the Joint Retirement Committee. The City Council approved the merger in July 1998 and is reviewing a draft copy of the agreement sent by SFRS regarding the payment of the merger liability. This liability is estimated at $316,307 for 30 annual payments. Because of the difference in contributions between the City's contributions of 13% as compared to the SFRS's 9% and the inclusion of the Fire Insurance Premium Tax paid iron tile Plan by the City fills liability is reduced to all estimated $94,231. This amount is estimated al $1,250,000 when the present value of the liability is eompuled over 30 years. The City has budgeted $250,000 ill the 98/99 fiscal year for this liability. It also plans to budget tile same amoun for the fiscal years 2000 through 2003. Police Denartment lteadauarters and Jai On July 2, 1998 the City accepted tile lowest bid for construction of the Police Department lteadquarters and Jai Complex for a contract amount not to exceed $9,917,000. 
NOTE X - AVAll.ABIIATY OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL REPORTS Separate audited financial reports for the year-ended June 30, 1998, containing additional information as required by the revenue bond indentures, and more detailed information regarding operating results, are available from the City for the followin~, funds: 
Enterprise Funds Pontchartrain Center Operations 
Pension Trust Funds Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS 



(TillS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 



GENERAl. FUND 
The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City of Kenner, and accou its for the fi lancial resources and expenditures not accounted for in any other fund. 



ASSETS Cash Equity in pooled cash and investments lnveS[lllClllS Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowances for uncollectibles) Accounts Imergo,Jernmemal Special assessmenls - delinquent Interesl Due from other fnnds Invenlory Prepaid items TOTAL ASSETS 
1,1ABII,,I'I'I['S AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Due to other funds Due to other governments Deferred revenue Other liabilities TOTAL LIABILITIES 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND BALANCE SttEET June 30. 1998 

Fund balance Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for invenlory Reserved for prepaid items Reserved for restricted expenditures Reserved for capital expenditures Unreserved Designaled for subsequen't years' expendilures Undesignated TOTAl. FUND BALANCE TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 65 

173,739 940,720 906,383 
4,463,464 2,959~21 25,974 389 3,882,783 69,394 32.114 $ 24,454,38 

$ 924,016 361,543 1,664,858 695,246 1,012,956 160.825 4.819.444 
1,057,468 69,394 32,114 956,460 2.976.892 2,938,728 1.603.881 9,634,937 $ 24,454,38 



 
CI]'Y OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. }:UNI) SCIIEDUI.F OF REVENUI';S, I'XPENI)ITURES, AND CttANGI'S IN FUND BALANCI - BUDGET AND ACTUAl. Year Ended June 30. 1998 

REVENUI S qaxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Charges for services Fines and forfeitures hltercst on invesled funds Miscellaneous 30"IAI. REVENUli8 iXPIiNI)I] LJRI'.S General govcrnrnenl Public safely I'ublic works llealth and v,,el farc Culture and recreation 3 ransit and urban dcvelopmenl Miscellaneous 

AC] UAI $ 24,671,715 2,363,845 2.623.098 390,106 1,506,680 585,134 134.404 

AI)JUS'I MEN'I I0 BUI)GE'I ARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

(131,841) (367,7073 (30,190) 1,438 6,867 (260,248) 

$ 24,671,715 2,363,845 2,623,098 390,106 1,506,680 585,134 134.404 
$ 25,009,396 2,300,955 1,809.960 354,715 1,448,447 751,500 75 930 

VARIANCII I'AVORABI.II (UNFAVORABI.Ii) 337,681 62,890 813,138 35,391 58,233 166,366 58,474 
8,017,088 2,272,818 2,556,732 770,743 3,866,682 408,806 1.683.976 3 O3 AI. I!XPENDI] LIRES 30,358,526 (781,681) 29,576,845 XcEsg OF (I)EFICII N('Y) OF REVI NUI S OVER (UNI)ER) EXPI~NI)II LIRI~g 1.916.456 781 68 Oil IER FINANCING SOURCES (USI~S Opcratolg transfers it* Operating transfers out "IO'IAI OJtlER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

7,097,854 (6,246,528) 
iXCESS (DEFICIENCY) Ol REVI';NUES AND O111ER SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXI'I~NDI] URES AND OTIIER I.JSES 2.767.782 FUND HAI.ANCE A1 HEGINNING OF YIIAR 16,867,155 A'/END OI YIAR 

803,265 9.661,621 315.697 19.865 654,345 22,647 (13,0761 
2,698,137 (9,290,306) 988443 2,097,854 6,130,535 967319 (6,246,528) (5,647,374) (599354) 483.161 368.165 

671,510 
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TAXES Ad valorem tax Sales tax ricer tax Parking tax Franchises lilcctricity servlce Gas service Off-track wagering 1 totel/motcl lax "I elephonc Rivcrboal TOJAI TAXES ACENSES AND I'I'RMI3'S Business Occupalional Alcoholic beverage Chain store Plumbing l'3cclrical 3 axi cab Air conditioning Bingo Animal control "IOIAI, BUSINI!S5 Non-business Building Garage sales Brake tags "1 O]AI. NON-IIUSINI'SS "1 (1"1AI. LICliNSES AND PI{RMI'I'S NJ'I!R(i()VI!RNMI!N'I AI. From slate "1 obacco lax Parisb Iransporla0on fund Parish road fimd Video poker Other state grants Fronl other local government subdivisions Jefferson Council on Aging Jefferson Parish 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND SCIIEDULE OF REVENUE.S - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30.1998 
ACTUA $ 816,881 12,892,814 84,527 1.140.928 1,162,856 140,000 263,478 103,191 457,454 7.609.586 

949.153 
85,385 5,005 324,302 

321,647 361,265 182A14 697,874 807.443 
41,755 211.000 103 AI. INq ERGOVERNMENTAL 2,623,098 

AI)JUS1 MEN'I 30 BUDGETARY BASIS I~UDGE'I ARY 
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$ 816,881 12,892,814 84,527 1.140.928 1,162,856 140,000 263,478 103,191 457,454 7.609.586 
1,206,280 140,000 262,125 101,839 457,669 7.445.125 

VARIANCI FAVORABI.I (UNFAVORABI I) $ 
(43,424 1,353 1,352 (215 164.461 24,671,715 25,009,396 (337,681) 

,949.153 
85,385 5,005 324,302 

657,478 75,362 72,510 32,906 23,058 28,223 14,923 3OO 525 
68,957 6,813 319.900 395.670 

321,647 361,265 182,114 697,874 807.443 
41,755 211.000 2.623.098 

321,646 383,453 237,126 625,735 

6,428 1,808 4.402 

(22,188) (55,ol2) 72,139 807.443 
31,000 10,755 211.000 ,809,960 813.138 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUNI) SCI IEI)U!.E OF REVENUES - BUI)GE'I AND ACTUAl. (CONTINUI~I)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUA $ 10,915 38,870 24.740 22,062 3~356 15,342 40,050 57,369 34,816 80,417 455 7]4 61.000 "IO'IAI CIIARGES FOR SERVICES 390.106 NliS AND FOI~.I:Iil I'tlRliS lmcs Forlcinucs I)WI fines Reinstatcmcnt R:cs "10TAI. FINES AND FORI:I~I 1 URliS N'IERI~8"I ON INVESTEI) FIINI)S MISClil .I .ANI~OIlS l)onatiolls Rents ~.)thcl investmenl income Olhcr "10qAL MISCEI ,I ,ANEOUS "10TAI Rt';VI!N UES 

,338,525 148,963 10304 9.088 

2,897 10,320 92,799 28,388 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GFI ARY BASIS IRII)GETARY 

$ 
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$ 10,915 38,870 24.740 22,062 3,356 15,342 40,050 57,369 34,816 80.417 455 714 61.000 
390,106 
,338,525 148,963 10,104 9.088 
506.680 

6,600 40,793 25,313 18,633 3,500 18,000 45,000 49.026 16,000 66.100 4,000 750 61.000 
354.715 
,276,825 147,708 16,914 7.000 
448,447 

2,897 10,320 92,799 28,388 6,250 50,000 19,680 
$ 31,750,903 

VARIANCli FAVORAIII,I'. (UNFAVORAIII3) 4,315 (I,923) (573) 3,429 (]44) (2,658) (4,950) 8,343 18,816 14,317 (3,545) (36) 
35,39 
61,700 1,255 (6,810 2,088 
58,233 (166,366) 

$ 

2,897 4,070 42,799 8,708 58,474 



GI NI(RAI GOVliRNMEN3 Pclsannc] Supplies Service chatgcs Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND SCIJEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30. 1998 
ACI'UAI, 2,919,1 104,3 4,385,') 739.? 
AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 6,360 (22,764) (115,437) TO] AI, GENI~RAI~ GOVERNMI!NT $ 8,148,929 $ (131,841) 

I'UBI,IC SAFI "1Y Persoancl Supplies Service charges ('apilal oullay 30"1AI, P[IlII.I( SAFI~TY 
$ 8,032,738 564,738 2,092,715 1,950,334 
$ 1,810,647 560,814 105,909 109,552 

$ 119,297 (8,098) (478,906) 

$ 2,919,101 110,687 4,362,979 624,321 
$ 2,978,364 130,957 4,949,478 761.554 

VARIANCE FAVORAIIIJ~ (UNFAVORAIII Jl) $ 59,263 20,270 586,499 37,233 $ 8,017,088 $ 8,820,353 $ 803,265 
$ 8,032,738 684,035 2,084,619 1.471.428 $ (367,707) $ 12,272,818 

$ 3,537 2,269 (35,996) "IOTAI. I'tJlll,IC WORKS $ 2,586,922 $ (30,190) 
{AI.'III AND WEI.I:ARI: I'crsonncl Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 

$ 596,648 149,164 23.493 
TO'IAI. IIEAI.TII AND WEIJ:ARI" $ 769,305 
CUI.'IIJBI AND RIiCRliATION I'crsonnel Supplies Service charges ( apital Otltlay 

$ 2,460,492 278,446 951,886 168,991 "10] AI, CuI,q'URI~ AND RI CRI ATION $ 3,859,815 

438 
438 
2,376 2,194 2,297 
6,867 
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$ 1,810,647 564,351 108,178 73,556 

8,745,737 781,663 2,288,193 0,118,846 
712,999 97,628 203,576 8.647.418 $21.934.439 $ 9.661.62 

$ 1,980,565 625,466 134,976 131.422 
$ 69,918 61,115 26,798 57,866 $ 2,556,732 $ 2,872,429 $ 315.697 

$ 596,648 150,602 23.493 
$ 770,743 
$ 2,460,492 280,822 954,080 171,288 
$ 3,866,682 

$ 606,441 157,540 26.627 
$ 790,608 
$ 2,507,221 290.664 1,430,272 292,870 

9,793 6,938 3.134 
$ 19,865 
$ 46,729 9,842 476,192 121,582 
$ 654,345 



TRANSI'I Personnel Supplics Service charges Capital outlay qOTAL TRANSI3 
MISCIil .I ,ANEOUS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capi(al oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUIS1ANA GENERAL FUND SCIIEDULE OF EXPFND1TURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30. 1998 
ACTUA 

857.436 
"IO'IAI. MISCFLI.ANEOUS $ 1,944,224 
"1 O'1AI. EXPI!NI)I I URES Personnel Supplies Service charges f~apilal oullay "1 ()q AI 15XI~I!NI)ITURI:S 

$15.906.414 1,657.489 9,825,988 2,968,635 

ADJUSTMENT "10 BUDGFTARY BASIS BUI)GETARY VARIANCE FAVOP.AIU.I (UNFAVORABI E) 
408.806 431,453 22,647 

86,788 ,597,188 $ 86,900 1,584,000 
$ (260.248) $ 1,683,976 $ 1,670,900 
$ 133,008 (286.647) (628,042) $ (781,681) 
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5,906,414 1,790,497 9,539,341 2,340,593 $ 29.576,845 
$ 16,905.228 1,986,290 10,844,999 11,304,692 $ 41.041,209 

$ 22,647 

$ (13,076) 
998,814 195,793 1,305.658 8.964.099 464,364 



 
CITY OF KENNER, 1.OUISIANA GENERAl. FUND ('OMBINING SCI1EDLJLI! OF I)EPARTMEN] AI. IiXPENI)I'I I)RES - BUI)GITI AND ACTUA GENERAl. GOVIiRNMEN'I FUNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUAl $ 496,344 27,030 94,912 33.186 'IO'IAI. I!XPIiNI)ITUI~.FS $ 651.472 

XI'ENI)I'I'LIRI(S Personnc] Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 
ACTIIAI $ 158,089 8,405 17,068 1.408 "I O'1AI. 1 X PliNI)H'U RES $ 184.970 

ADJUSq'MEN3 30 BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GH'ARY 
4,179 218 

MAYOR'S OFFIC 

$ 496,344 31,209 95,130 33.186 $ 655.869 

AI)JUS] MEN] '10 BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY $ 158,089 8,405 17,068 1.408 $ 184.970 
CItlEF AI)MINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
ACJ'UAI 21 1 I 
,515 ,766 ,540 .125 3OIAI, I!XPlINI)ITURIIS $ 241.946 

AI)JUS3 MIiN3 TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GE I'ARY 

$ (1,510) 
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11,515 3,766 11,540 13.615 $ 240,436 

$ 506,771 43,300 115,490 81,271 $ 746,832 

57,085 9,411 20,548 4,305 $ 191,349 

$ 211,806 5,545 12,761 36,246 

VARIANCI! I:AVORABI J( (UNFAVOI(ABI,E) 10,427 12,091 20,360 48.085 90.963 
VARIANCI FAVORAIII,I (UNI:AVORABI.E) 004) 006 480 897 $ 6,379 
VARIAN( t I:AVORAIII.I (UNI:AVORAIII.E) 291 ,779 ,221 .631 



EXPENI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service cba~gcs ( apilal oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl FUND COMBINING SCItE1)ULE OF I)EPAR'I MENTAl. I'XPENI)ITURI'S - BUDGE'I AND AC'I UA GI!NBRAI. GOVERNMENT FUNCTION (CONT1NUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUAL $ 355,768 17,602 19,0.31 18,925 

FINANCE 
ADJUSTMEN f 3"O BUDGETARY BASIS 1]UDGI'TARY $ $ 355,768 17,671 19,031 18.925 

VARIANUE |;AVORAI~,I ,I (UNFAVOI{ABI,I) $ 4,415 529 6,015 3.115 TOTAI.I'XPENI)ITURI.:S $ 411,326 $ 69 $ 411,395 $ 435,469 $ 24.074 

IiXI'ENI )1'1 I.IRES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oulla3 
ACI"UAI $ 185,328 2,567 20,530 44.632 "IO'IAI. EXPENI)ITtIRtLS $ 253,057 

IiXI~IINI)I'I'URES I'ersonnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTtlA $ 192,438 3,988 26,170 37.694 TO'IAL IiXPliN1)ITURliS $ 260,290 

(Continued) 

PURCI 1ASING 
AI)JUSTM11NT TO I]UDGETARY BASIS I]UDGETARY $ 1,948 (39,602) $ (37,654) 
PERSONNEl 

$ 185,328 4,515 20,530 5.030 

AI)J US1MEN'I TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 42 (14,396) $ (14,354) 
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92,438 3,988 26,212 23,298 $ 245.936 

$ 184,702 4,006 20,940 6,721 $ 21&369 

$ 191,657 4,560 30,297 24,862 

~AKIANCI FAVOI{AI]I,Ii (UNFAVOI{ABI.li) $ (626 (509 410 .691 $ 960 
VARIANCE FAVORABI.I,, (UNFAVORABI,I!) $ (781) 572 4,085 1,564 $ 5.440 



I~XPI~NI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal outlay 

CI'IY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GFNERAI~ FUND COMBINING SCI IEDULE OF DEPAR] MENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 3(I. 1998 

ACTUAL 

TOTAl. FX PliNDITURES $ 198,769 

liX PI'2NI)ITURI~S I'crsonne[ Supplies Service charges ( apital outlay 
ACTUA $ 60,083 7,818 197,294 

] OTAI. I'XPIiNI)I'I URES $ 265,195 

ACTLJA $ 46,222 1,416 12,355 
TOTAl, F~XI}ENI)ITURI~S $ 59,993 

((ontinued) 

PLANNING 
ADJUSTMEN'I TO BUI)GI"I ARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY 

(7) 707 $ 700 
DAqA PROCESSING 

78,298 2,006 15,876 3,289 $ 199.469 

AI)JUSTMENJ TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 
(45o) 

$ (45o) 
CIVIL SERVICli 

60,083 7,368 97,294 

$ 200,632 

$ 60,041 7,200 197.620 
$ 264,745 $ 264,86 

ADJUSTMENT 20 BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GIi] ARY $ 
$ (499) 

46,222 1,416 11.856 
59.494 
$ 46,169 1,895 13.720 

VARIANCE FAVOIC.AIII,E (UNFAVOI~.AIII .E) $ (632) 934 .182 
$ 
VARIANCE FAVORABI t! (UNFAVORAIII.E) (42) 068) 326 

VARIANCE I"A VORAI~LI'~ (UNFAVORABI.I!) $ (53) 479 864 
$ 2,290 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBINING SCI tFI)UI .E O1: I)EPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURI/S ~ BIJI)GI'71' AND ACTUA GENERAl. GOVERNMENT FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUAL 
GENERAl. MUNICIPAl. EXPENSE 

523,766 19,139 933,277 543.956 ,l O'1AI. EXPI!NI)ITURES $ 5,020,138 

XPENI)I'111RES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital ouday 30,IAI. I'XI)I!NI)ITURES $ 

~XPENDITURES ]'ersollnel Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 

ACTUAl 

ACTLIAI $ 511.250 10,583 37,690 42,250 TO'I A1. EXPENI)ITURES $ 601.773 

ADJUSTMEN'I TO IIUI)GETARY BASIS IIUI)GETARY $ (22,525) (40,808) $ (63,333) 
I~MERGENCY RESERVE 

$ 523,766 19,139 3,910,752 503.148 $ 4,956,805 
ADJUSTMFNT "10 BUDGETARY BASIS BUI/GETARY 

$ 
MAGISTRATE'S COURT 

$ 

ADJ USTMF.NT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 
(19,828) $ (19,207) 
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$ 582.566 

$ 534,799 19,900 3,938,248 525,918 

$ 500,000 
$ 500,000 

$ 547,485 14,000 47,750 57,223 $ 666,458 

VARIANCE I AVORAIII .E (UNFAVORAII13") 
27 22 
33 61 96 70 

FAVORAIII,E (UNFAVORAIII.I';) 
$ 

VARIANCE FAVORAI~I .E . (UNI:AVORAII1.1~) $ 36,235 2,796 10.060 34.801 $ 



XI't~NI)ITIIRES I'crsonncl Supplies Servicc chargcs Capilal outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA GENERAL FUNI) COMBINING SCtt[:DULE OF I)EPARTMEN'I AI. EXPENDITURES - BUI)GE'I AND AC] UAI GI'NERAI. GOVERNMENT FUNC3'ION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 
TOTAl, - GENFRAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION 
ACT(IAI $ 2,919,101 I04,327 4,385,743 739.758 "I O'1AI , EXIWNI)IT[JRES $ 8,148,929 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGF~TARY tJASIS IIUDGETARY $ 6,360 (22,764) (115,437) 
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2,919,101 110,687 4,362,979 624,321 
$ 2,978.364 130,957 4,949,478 761,554 

VARIANCE FAVORAIII,E . (UNIAVORAIII,F) 59.263 20,270 86,499 37,233 803,265 



~XPENI)I'I URES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl, FUND COMBINING SCt IEI)UI.E OI: DEPARTMENTAl, EXPENDITURES - BUI)GEI AND ACTUA PUBIJC SAFETY t:UNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1998 

AC] UAL 889,612 101,275 780,652 116,165 3 O'IAI. I:XPENI)ITURF, S $ 1.887.704 

ACTUAl $ 3,938,737 223,401 1,096,295 1,660,307 TOTAl, EXI'ENI)ITURES $ 6,918,740 

EXPENI)ITURI~S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAl. 834,091 34,566 32,545 13.161 3 O] AI. EXPENI)ITURI'S $ 914,363 

POI.ICE ADMINISTRATION 
ADJUSTMENT TO IIUI)GE'IARY BASIS BUDGE3 ARY $ 3,198 (9,643) (80,616) $ (87,061) 
ROAD POL1CE 

$ 889,612 104,473 771,009 35,549 $ 1,800,643 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGEJARY BASIS IRII)GF'I ARY 
107,722 333 (490,137) $ (382,082) 

POLICE DETECTIVES 

$ 938,737 331,123 096,628 170.170 $ 6,536,658 

ADJUSTMENJ 1"O BUDGETARY BASIS I~UI)GI:TARY 
6,044 918 56,089 63.051 
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$ 834,091 40,610 33,463 69,250 $ 977,414 

$ 924,554 108,000 799,500 125.000 $ 1.957.054 

$ 4,336,483 374,000 1,238,800 1.700.000 $ 7,649,283 

$ 826,915 43,500 41,000 16,000 

VARIANCI'. FAVOI~.ABI 3 UNI:AVORABI,E) 4,942 3,527 8,491 9.451 56.4 
VARIANCI! ]:AVORABI.E (UNI:AVORABI.I() 397, 42, 142, 529. 
46 77 72 313 2,625 

VARIANCI' EAVORABI ,E (UNI:AVOI~.AIH,li) (7,176) 2,890 7,537 53,250) 



iXI~IiNDH'tIRFS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUNI) COMBINING SCI tI:IJUI.E OF I)liPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUI)GET AND ACTUA PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUAl $ 456,242 13.766 6.432 TO'I A1 . I';XPI!NI)IT[IRIIS $ 476,440 

iXPliNI)H'URI!S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAL 13 69 16 30 ] (J'l AI. EXPIiNI)H'URES $ 586,228 

$ AC] UAI, 22,643 610 
'10TAI. I~XPI~NDITURI~S $ 23.253 

POLICE COMMUNICATIONS 
AI)JUSTMENT TO UI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 

$ 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS $ 274 38.421 
POLICE RANGE/SWAT 

$ 456,242 13,766 6,432 
$ 497,621 16.500 

BUI)GI~TARY $ 399,213 94,443 4,716 126,551 $ 624.923 

ADJUSTMEN] TO BUDGIITARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 24,297 610 

$ 
$ 8,803,700 

32,000 3.000 

VARIANCE I:AVORABI,I~ (UNI:AVORAIII.E) $ 41.379 2.734 3,568 47.68 
VARIAN( E EAVORAIII.I (UNFAVORAIII.I.,) 144,036 28557 7,284 7,998,900 

VARIANCE I:AVORAIiI,Ii (tJNFAVORAIII.E) $ 7,703 2,390 
$ 1.654 $ 24,907 $ 35.000 $ 10.093 
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EXPI~NI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUNI) COMBINING SCttI~DULF OF DEI'AR3MENTAL F.XPI!NDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAl I'UBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUAL $ 57 4 3 ,51 ,21 ,98 ,84 
8 7 2 q OqAI. EXP12NDITURI';S $ 665,558 

IiXI'ENI)ITUR|SS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 

POLICI~ TRAFFIC AND RESCUE 
ADJ US'IMENJ TO B I./I)GI'YI'A RY BASIS BUI)GFTARY $ 575,51 43,21 37,98 8,84 $ 665,558 

CODE ENFORCEMENT - ADMINISqRATION 
ACTUA 

"IOTAI EXPI'NDITURES $ 1,022.312 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY $ 
(2,663) $ (2,663) 
$ 808,871 16,594 139,550 54.634 $ 1.019.649 

CODE ENFORCEMENT - INSPEC]]ONS 
ACTUA $ 130,454 15,113 360 

"10"1AI. EX PENI)ITURES $ 145,927 

(Continued) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 405 294 
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$ 130,454 15,518 654 
$ 146,626 

$ 6 5 4 7 
147 000 000 000 

VARIANCI., FAVORAB1.1,. 0.)NFAVORABI.Ii) 42,629 7,789 5,013 66.158 

$ 853,666 17,515 146,867 67,395 

VARIANCE FAVORAIfl.li (UNFAVORAtll .li) $ 44,795 921 7,317 12,761 

$ 145,102 16,148 4.026 
$ 165,276 

VARIANCIi I:AVORABI.E (UNFAVORAtII.li) 4,648 630 3,372 
8,650 



FX PI'NI)ITIIRIiS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

Cl'n( OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA GENERAl. FUND COMI~INING SCItEI)UI.E OF DEI~ARTMI,;NIAI EXPENDITURES - BL/I)GET AND ACTUA PLIBI.IC SAFETY FUNCTION (CON'I INLIEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

$ 

TOIAL - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION 
ACTUAl 032,738 564,738 092,715 950.334 TOqAL EXPI!NI)ITLIRI'S $ 12,640.525 

ADJUSTMEN'I qO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 119,297 (8,098) (478,906) 
032,738 684.035 084.617 471.428 
$ 8,745,737 78],663 2,288,193 10.118.846 $ 21.934.439 

VARIANCE FAVORAIII.E (UNI:AVORABI,E) 712,999 97,628 203.576 8.647.418 9.661.62 



iXI'FNI)ITURI'S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMBINING SCtIEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPFNI)ITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAl PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION year Ended June 30. 1998 

AC1 UAI $ 175,515 53,699 6.276 
"IOJAI, EXPI'NI)ITURI~S $ 235,490 

"XPI+NI)I'I URI'S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 

VARIANCE ADJUS'IMENT TO FAVORAF~I.ti BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY BUI)GET (UNFAVOI~,AI~I.I:) $ 175,515 53,699 (466) 5,810 $ 178,225 54,371 7.805 2,710 672 1.995 
(466) $ 235,024 $ 240,401 $ 5,377 

PARKWAYS 
VARIANCI" ADJUS'IMENT TO FAVORABI.E ACTUAl. 13UDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY BUI)GET (UNFAVORABI.I') $ 511,430 39,000 6.739 

TOTAl. I~XPI~NIM3 URES $ 557.169 

"XI'I'NI)I'I URFS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAl $ 351,807 54,299 1.537 

1"O3A1. F.XPENDITURFS $ 403,643 

(Conlinued) 

232 $ 511,430 39,232 6,739 $ 576,208 45,913 7.990 
$ 232 $ 557A01 $ 630 
DRAINAGE 

64,778 6,681 1.251 
72,710 
VARIANCI:. AI)JUSTMENT TO FAVORAB1,1" 13UI)GETARY BASIS BUDGETARY P, UI)GET (UNFAVORAI~I,E) 

984 $ 351,807 55,283 1.537 $ 416,274 73,925 2.100 $ 64,467 18,642 563 
984 $ 408,627 $ 492,299 $ 83,672 
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:XPENI)ITIJRI:S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENFRAI. FUND COMBINING SCttFI)ULI: OF I)t4pARTMENTAI. EXPENDITURES - BUDGE] AND ACTUAl PUBIJC WORKS FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 1998 I'UBHC WORKS - VEI IICLE MAINTENANCE 
ACTUAl 218,120 290,947 41.452 

"1 O'1 A1. I!XH~NI)H'URES $ 550,519 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGE] ARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 
1,070 2,735 $ 218,120 292,017 44.187 

PUBLIC WORKS - BUILDING MAINTI4NANCI" 
AC'I'UAL 278,235 93,512 1.942 

'1 ()'I A1. EXPI!NI)I I'URI:S $ 373,689 

XPI:NI)HtII~.I:S Persollnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

AI)JUSTMFNT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY $ 278,235 94,490 1.942 

$ 232,397 310,000 58,750 
$ 601,147 

$ 297,058 97,050 2,900 
$ 978 $ 374,667 $ 397,008 
PIlBI3C WORKS ADMINISTRATION 
ACTUAl. $ 275,540 29,357 47,963 109,552 TO] A1, l:Xl'liNl)13 URI~S $ 462,412 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUI)GI!TARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 273 (35,996) 
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$ 275,540 29,630 47,963 73.556 $ 426,689 
280,403 44,207 55,431 131,422 

VARIANCE I:AVORABI,I! (IJNI:AVOP.AIII.E) 4,277 7,983 4,563 

VAR1ANCI,. I:AVORABI,E (UNI:AVORABI,E) 8,823 2,560 958 

VARIANCE I:AVORABLIi (UNI:AVORABI J~) ,863 ,577 ,468 .866 84.774 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LO[11SIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBINING SCl IEDULE OF DI!PARTMEN'I AL EXPENDITURIiS - I~UDGET AN D ACTUAl. PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year l'nded June 30. 1998 
"10TAL - PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION 
ACTUAL $ 1,810.647 560,814 105,909 109,552 "IOTAI. EXI'IiNDITURIiS $ 2,586,922 

ADJUSTMI:~qT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GF] ARY $ 3,537 2,269 (35,996) 
$ 1,810,647 564,351 108,178 73,556 

$ 1,980,565 625,466 134,976 131.422 
VARIANCI' FAVORABI 1' (UNFAVORAII1.1 169,918 61,115 26,798 57.866 
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~XPI'NI)ITURI'S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMBINING SCI IEDIJLE OF I)EI'ARTMI~N'I AI. I;XPF.NDI'I URI;S - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl liEALTH AND WELFARE FUNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1998 
COI)E ENFORCEMENT - HUMANE 
ACTUAL $ 71,435 2,176 591 

"IO'IAI. EXPFNI)ITURES $ 74,202 

"XI'I~NDITURFS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUA $ 40,094 86 42 

TOTAl. I'XPENI)ITtJRt'S $ 40,222 

I'XPt~NI)ITURI~S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital oullay 
ACTUAL $ 147,733 16,405 13.402 

TOTAl. I~XPENI)rI'UR['S $ 177,540 

(Continued) 

A1)JUSTMENT 1"O BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 

FOOD BANK 
ADJUSTMENT 1"O BUDGETARY BASIS 

COUNCIL ON AGING 

$ 71,435 2,176 591 $ 73,311 2,849 2.869 
$ 79,029 

$ 40,094 86 42 $ 41,180 245 42 

VARIANCF FAVORABI,E (UNFAVOII.ABI.E) 1,876 673 2,278 
4.827 

VARIANCE FAVORAI~I,I" (UNFAVORAIII,F) 086 159 
$ 40,222 $ 41,467 $ 1,245 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 
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$ 147,733 16,405 13.402 $ 150,203 17,230 13.958 
$ 181.39 

VARIANCE FAVORABI,I~ ((INFAVORABI~I~) 2,470 825 556 
3.85 



EXH~NI)H'L)RES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA G F~NERAL FUND COMI~INING SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMEN'I AE EXPENDITURES - HLIDGET AND ACTUAl IIEAL3H AND WELFARE FUNCTION (CONI"INUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUAL $ 78,734 250 2.118 
qOJAI. I~XH'NI)ITURES $ 81.102 

~XPI~NI)ITUIZES I'ersonnel Supplics Servicc charges Capital outlay 
ACTLJAI $ 256,852 128,716 7,340 

"1 O'1AI. I'XPENI)ITURES $ 392,908 

XPENI)H URI'S Personnel Supplics Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAl $ 1,800 1,531 

"10"1AL I'XH'~ND1TURES $ 3,33 

HANDICAPPEI) SERVICES 
AI)JUSTM FN'I TO BUDGF'I ARY BASIS I~UI)GETARY I~UI)GET 

MAINTENANC 

$ 78,734 250 2,118 $ 78,456 375 2.454 
$ 81,285 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GFTARY I~Lll)GET 
438 
438 

CEMETI'RIt'S 

$ 256,852 130,154 7,340 
$ 394,346 

$ 261,491 135,273 7.304 
$ 404.068 

VARIANCt" FAVORAHI,Ii (UNFAVORAI~I,E) (278) 125 336 

VARIANCE FAVORAHI.I" (tlNFAVORAIII.E) 4,639 5,119 (36 

VARIANCE AI)JUSTMENT TO FAVORAIiI.E BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY BUDGFT (UNt:AVORABIJ~) $ ,800 ,531 
3,33 
$ 1,800 1,568 
$ 3,368 



~X PI'NI)I I UII.I';S Personnel Supplies Servicc chargcs Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBINING SCIlEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAl. EXI~ENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAl I IEA171"tt AND WELFARE FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30. 1998 
TOTAl, - IIEAI.Ttl AND WELFARE FUNCTION 
AC]'UAL $ 596,648 149,164 23.493 

TO]AL I'XI'I~NI)ITURES $ 769.305 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUI)GFTARY BASIS BUI)GETARY BUI)GE] 
438 $ 596,648 150.602 23.493 $ 606,441 157,540 26,627 

VARIANCF FAVORABIJ (UNI:AVOP, AI~I $ 9,793 6,938 3.134 
438 $ 770,743 $ 790,608 $ 19.865 

85 



XI>ENI)H URI~S Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBINING SCI II:I)UI.I~ OF DEPARTMENTAl. I'XPENI)H'URES - BUI)GI'] AN[) ACTUAl CUI.TURI" AND RECREATION FUNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUAl, $ 73,529 10,369 46 
'IOTAL I'XPI~NI)H'IJRFS $ 83,944 

XITNI)ITURES Pcrsonncl Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAL $ 26,495 3,641 17,262 

TOqAI. I'XPENI)I]URES $ 47,398 

ACTUAl. $ 52,483 1,609 376 
TOTAl, FXPENI)ITURES $ 54,468 

LEISURE SERVICES 
VARIANCE ADJUSTMENT TO FAVORAIiI,I BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY BUDGET (UNFAVORAB: 

60 
CULTURAl, AFFAIRS 

$ 73,529 10,529 46 $ 73,280 II,000 20 
$ 84,300 

(249) 471 (26) 

VARIANCE ADJUSTMENT TO FAVORABI.I" BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY BUDGE'I (UNFAVORABI.E) 

IUMANITIES AND MUSEUMS 

$ 26,495 3,641 17,262 
$ 47,398 

$ 27,280 3,641 19.006 
$ 49.927 

785 744 
$ 2,529 
VARIANCI" ADJUSTMENT TO FAVORABLE BUI)GETARY BASIS BUDGI:/I'ARY BllDGET (UNFAVORAltlJ5) $ 52,483 1,609 376 

$ 54.468 
$ 54,285 1,650 350 802 41 (261 
$ 56,285 $ 1,817 



~XPI!NI)I1 URFS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA GENERAL FUNI) COMBINING SCHEI)ULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPI']NI)ITURI/S - BUI)GI~T AND ACTUAl CUIfI'URE AND RECRI'ATION FUNCTION (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUA 
556 

TOTAL IiXI'FNI)ITURI~S $ 556 

ACTUAL $ 2.482 
"1 O'1AI, I'XPI!NI)I1 URES $ 2,482 

ACJ UAI 44,227 3,089 90,193 
"10"1 AI, EXPE, NI)ITLJRI~S $ 137.509 

CITY MUSEUM 
ADJUSTM F, NT 30 BI.JDGETARY BASIS $ 

RAILROAD MUSEUM 
556 
$ 556 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 

$ 
WI LDLIFF~ MUSEUM 

635 
$ 635 

$ 

VARIANCI FAVORABI,E (UNFAVORAIII,t!) 

VARIANCI FAVORABI,F (UNI:AVORAIII~I() 
2,482 15,941 13,459 

ADJUSTMENT 3"0 BUDGETARY BASIS BUIJGETARY 
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$ 44,227 3,089 90.193 52,689 3,068 99.625 
$ 155,382 

$ 13.459 
VARIANCIi FAVORAIiI,E (UNFAVORAIII,E) 8,462 (2D 9.432 
$ 17.873 



"XI'IiNI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMBINING SCIIEDULE OF DEPARTMEN'|'AL EXPENDITURES - BUDGE'I AND AC'I UA CUII"URt'; AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUE1)) "*'ear Ended June 30. 199g 

ACTUAl $ 85,792 111,7061 
"10TAI, I~XPI'~NI)ITU RES $ 74,086 

"10q AI, I~XPI~NI)Iq'URFS $ 

iXPFNI)ITURFS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

ACTUA 

ACTUAL 03,735 1,380 3.060 
"IOTAI. IiXPENI)ITURES $ 108,175 

MARD1 GRAS MUSEUM 
ADJUSTMENT TO P,U DGliTARY BASIS BUI)GETAI',Y 

$ 
SAINTS MUSEUM 

$ 85,792 (11,706) 

ADJUSTMENq TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

TOURISM 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

88 

$ 103,735 1,380 3,060 

$ 89,432 794 
$ 90,226 

$ 
150 

04,510 1,487 3,320 
$ 109,317 

VAI/dANCE FAVORABI.I ((INFAVORABI,I!) 3,640 2,500 
6,140 

VARIANCI I:AVORAIII ,li (UNFAVORAIII,E) 

VARIANCI FAVORABI,li (IINFAVORABIAi) 775 107 260 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl, FUND COMHINING SCI]F.DUI.E OF DEPARTMEN'I AI. EXPENDITURES - BUDGH AND ACTUA CUH'URE AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUIiD) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUAl 
(374) 33.769 

FESTIVALS 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 
(30) 

TOJ'AI~ EXPENI)ITURI{S $ 33,395 $ (30) 

I~XI)I!NI)II URliS Personnel Supplies Service charges Capilal outlay 

$ (374) 33.739 
SCIENCE CI:NTER AND PLANETARIUM 
ACTUA $ 27,641 30 49.000 

"I O'1AL I~XI'ENI)ITURES $ 76,67 

ACTUAL 958 149 383 131 
038 997 447 879 TOTAI. I!XPENI)ITURES $ 1,623,36 

(Continued) 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 

RFCREATION 

$ 27,641 30 49.000 
$ 76,67 

ADJUSTMF.NT "10 BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 
2,898 2,490 
5.388 

89 

$ 1.628.749 

$ 33,260 
$ 33,260 

$ 28,690 30 49.888 
$ 78,608 

969,391 158,662 428,554 217.920 

VARIANCE FAVOI~.AI~LI (UNI:AVOIC.AB1,E) 
374 479) 

$ 005) 
VARIANCI! FAVORA11LI! (UNFAVORAIU.E) 049 888 
$ 1,937 
VARIANCli I:AVORAI~LI~ (UNFAVORABI,E) $ 11,35 5,76 42,61 86,04 45.778 



:XPliNI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMIHNING SCttI3DUI,E OF 1)EPARIMENTA1, EXPENDITURES - BUDGE'I AND ACTUAl CUI~TURIi AND RECREAq'ION FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30. 1998 
COMMUNITY SFRVICE - CITY PARK 
ACTUAl. 

TOTAl, FXI'ENDITURFS $ 13 

ACTUAL 856,116 92,754 124.021 
TOTAl, IiXPIiND1TURES $ 1.072,89 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GEI'ARY 

RECREATION MAINTENANCt 
13 

AI)JUSTMENT TO IJUDGF.TARY BASIS BUI)GFTARY 
(I,014) 902 

$ (1121 
$ 856,116 91,740 124.923 

$ 15 

$ 872,654 93,302 455.956 3 

VARIANCI FAVORAIII,E (UNFAVORAIH,Ii 

2 
VARIANCI! FAVORAIIIJ (tINFAVORABI J~) 16,53 1,56 331.03 

$ 1,072,779 $ 1,421,915 $ 349,136 
RECREATION LEISURF SERVICE 

ACTUAL 
8.523 6,292 

"10TAI, I'XPFNI)ITURI;S $ 14.815 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGI!TARY $ 247 396 $ 8,770 6.688 10.187 7.190 
VARIANCE FAVORAIII Ji (UNFAVORAIII,Ii) $ 1,417 502 

643 $ 15.458 $ 17.377 $ 1.919 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAl, FUND COMBINING SCIIEI)UIJ: OF DEPARTMENTAI~ EXPENI)H'URES - BUDGET AND ACTUAl CULTURE AND RECREATION FUNCTION (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

COMMUNITY SERVICE - ADMINISTRATION 
ACTUA 

"lO'lAl, liXPENI)H'URES $ 529,92 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY $ 85 (I,564) 2,297 
232,436 7,500 251,394 39.409 
$ 23 31 7 
,010 ,622 ,583 .947 

VARIANC1, FAVORAIB,I (UNFAVORAIIlJ) 2,574 122 64,189 35,538 818 $ 530,739 $ 633,162 $ 102,423 
TOTAl, - CULTURE AND RI!CREATION FUNC] ION 
ACTUAL $ 2,460,492 278,446 951,886 168.991 "10TAI, FXPI~NI)ITURES $ 3,859,815 

(Continued) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GETARY 
2,376 2,194 2,297 6,867 

91 

$ 2,460,492 280,822 954,080 171.288 $ 3.866.682 
$ 2,507,221 290,664 1,430,272 292,870 

VARIAN('E I:AVORAI~1,1' (UNFAVORABI,E) 
4 6,729 9,842 6,192 1,582 $ 4,521.027 $ 654,345 



~XI'ENI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges ('apilal oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, 1.OUISIANA GENERAl. FUND COMBINING SCtIEI)UI.F OF DEPARTMENTAL I~XPEND1TURES - BUI)GI'T AND ACTUA TRANSIT FUNCTION Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUAl. $ 408,806 
q O'1AI, I'XI'I'NDITURES $ 408.806 

TOTAL - TRANSIT FUNCTION 
ADJUSTMENT "IO BUDGI(TARY BASIS VARIANCE I"AVORABI.I'; (UNFAVORABI.E) $ $ $ 408,806 431,453 22.647 

$ 408.806 22.647 



IiXPI:NDITURES I'ersonnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND COMFqNING SCttEI)ULE OF I)EPAR'IMEN] AL EXPENDITURES - I~,UDGET AND ACTUA MISCELLANEOUS FUNCTION Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUA $ 74,952 1,597,188 
TOJAI, EXPENI)ITURES $ 1,672A40 

t~XI'ENI)ITURI~S Personnel Supplies Service charges (apital outlay 
ACTUA 

TOTAl, EXI>ENI)ITURI~S $ 11,g36 

IiXPI:NI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 
ACTUAI $ 260,248 

TO'IAI, EXPENI)ITUI~J'~S $ 260,248 

INSURANCE 
AI)JUSTMENT TO BUI)GETARY BASIS I~UI)GETARY 

PAY INCENTIVES 

$ 74,952 1,597,188 

ADJUSTMENT TO I~UI)GETARY BASIS BUDGETARY $ 11,836 

$ 75,000 1,584,000 
$ 1,659,000 

$ 11,900 
$ 11,836 $ 11,900 

ADJ USTMEN'I TO BUI)GETARY BASIS BUI)GISTARY 

93 

VARIANCE I:AVORABI,I (UNFAVORAII1,E) 48 (13,t88) 
$ (13,1401 
VARIANCIi FAVORABI ,li (UNFAVORAFII.F) 

VARIANCE I:AVORABI J (UNFAVORABI,Ii) 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA GENERAl, FUND COMBINING SCHEI)ULE OF DEPARTMF.NTAL YXPENDITURIiS - BUI)GET AND ACTIJAI MISCEI.I.ANEOUS FUNCTION Year Ended June 30. 1998 
TO'I AL - MISCEL1,ANI'~OUS FUNCTION 
AC'IUAL 
857.436 

TOTAl, EXI'IiNDITURES $ 1,944,224 

AI)JUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 
597.188 
$ 1.683.976 

$ 86,900 1,584,000 
VARIANCI' FAVORAB1,1, (UNFAVORAIII,E) 112 (13,188 

$ 1,670,900 $ (13,076) 



(TIllS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY) 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenues (other than special assessments, expendable "trusts, or revenues for major capilal projects) that are legally restricted "to expenditures for specific purposes. 
ONE PERCENT SALES TAX OF 1984 FUND The One Percent Sales Tax of 1984 Fund accounts for the proceeds of sales taxes generated by a 1 perceut sales tax increase. These funds are to be used to fund a municipal homestead exemption, police protection and various other city services. 
COMMUNITY DEVFLOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND The Community Development Block Grant Fund accounts for grants received from the Federal Community Block Grant Program. 
GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL, ROADS AND BRIDGES, STREET LIGHTING, AND FIRE I)I';PA RTM t';N'I" FUNDS The Garbage Collection and Disposal, Roads and Bridges, Street Lighting, and Fire Department Funds account for the proceeds ofad valorem taxes which are specifically dedicated for the functions performed by each of these funds. 
DRUG ENFORCEMENT FORFEITURE FUND The Drug Enforcement Forfeiture Fund accounts for funds received from the federal government related to property seized in drug arrests to be used for police purposes. .OCAL I,AW ENFORCEMENT GRANT FUND The Local Law Enforcement Grant Fund accounts for grants received from the Department of Justice for the Loca Law Enforcement Block Grant. 
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ASSliTS Cash l'quity in pooled cash and investments Invcstnlents Receivables lntergovenuncntal Interesl Other l)uc from otber funds Prepaid items TO'I AI, ASSETS 
JAI~II,I'IIES AND FUNI) BAI,ANCE 

"1 O'1A1. I.IABII.I'I IliS Fund balance Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for prepaid items Reserved for Section 108 loans Reserved for restricted expenditures Unreserved Designated for subsequent year expenditures Undesignated TO] AI. FUNI) IIALANC[:, 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SPFCIAL REVFNUF FUNDS COMBINING BAI.ANCE SHEET June 30, 1998 

SPECIAL REVENUIi ONE PERCENq SALES TAX OF 1984 

706,622 
675,684 

COMMUNITy I)EVEI~OPMENT BLOCK GRAN] 
48,551 220,327 930,245 2,336 2,153 1.400 

$ 
2,382,306 
2,382,306 

TOTAl. I.IAIMI JTIES AND FUND ItALANCE $ 2,382,306 

Tbe accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

9,468 7,690 9,716 724,972 2,140 753.986 
2,442 1,400 240,000 

451.026 

GARBAGIi COLLECTION AND DISPOSAl 
83,312 
ROAI)S AND BRII)GFS 

244,544 170,462 734,374 

30,850 
53.103 83.953 
$ 24,497 10.384 585,966 10.753 631.600 
02.774 

02.774 



FUNDS WITtl BUI)(]11TS S']'RFH .I GI ITI NG 

73,538 

$ 
FIRE )FPARTMI~N'I 
687,210 968,204 
404 676,360 

59,205 1,340 89,717 21.828 
17,832 87,966 604,244 710,042 

448 3.192 

448 
,351,885 267,059 622,136 

$ 48,551 870,522 1,188,531 2,636,867 247,284 2,432,571 1.400 $ 7,425,726 
$ 141,852 7,690 109,406 3,782,961 792,068 
109,856 1,400 240.000 
973,434 267.059 2,591,749 

SPECIAl, REVENUE FUNI)S Wl'l tlOUT BUI)GET DRUG IiNFORCEMIiNT FORFEITURI{ FUND 
477,257 49.973 

7,160 
8,633 
25.793 
82,525 
418.912 
501.437 

I.OCAI, LAW ENFORCEMI!N'I GRANq FUND 
90,384 716,192 920,495 188,531 

247,284 2,432,571 1.40/) 

7,346 
8,410 
5,756 

74,628 

166,358 7,690 109,406 3,800,004 792.1168 
192,381 1,400 240,000 593,540 
973,434 267.059 

73,538 $ 2,332,178 $ 7,425,726 $ 527,230 $ 190,384 $ 8,143,340 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE |'IJNDS COMBINING STATI~MEN'I OF REVENUES, EXPENDI'I tIRES, AND C11ANGES IN FUND BAI ANCI!S Year Ended June 30. 1998 

RliVENUI!S "I axes lntergovernmenlal Charges for services Illlcrest Miscellmleous "10"1AI, RIiVIiNLIE8 iXI'IiNI)H URES Public safe/)' Public works Culture and recrcaliorl Llrban development TO'I AI, I!xPIgNI)ITURI~S EXCI'SS (I)FFICIIiNCY) OF REVIiNUES OVER ([INI)IiR) I~X I'IiNI)H'LIRI(S OTIII'R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfers in Opcraling Iransfers oul 

SPECIAl. RFVENUI. ONE PERCI~N'I SALES TAX OF 1984 $ 9.672,922 
9,672,922 

9.672,922 

COMMUNITY DEVEI.OPMI{N I BLOCK GRANT 
045,333 12,134 61.620 9.087 
91,297 136,369 885.600 
5,82 
61,774 (9,672,922) (134,727) '1 O'1 AI. OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (9,672,922) (72,953) EXCI'SS (I)FFICIliNCY) OF REVI!NUF.S AND OTIII'R SOURCES OVER (L/NDER) EXPliNIllTURES AND OTIIER USES FUNI) IIAI.ANCIi A'I llEGINNING OF YEAR AT ENI) OF YEAR 
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GARBAGE COH.ECTION AND DISPOSAl. 630,319 ,255,511 13.812 
899.642 

ROAI)SANI) ItRII)(iES 237 
237 
40.315 
40,315 

(292,709) (I ,140,078) 
275,816 1,242,852 
275,816 ,242,852 

(67,132) (16,893) 102,774 
518,158 414,365 02.774 



FUNDS WITH BUDGE'I S'I REE'I JGIITING FIRE DEPARTMENT 482 $ 2,886,183 
482 
942.648 
942,648 

865 102,072 8,063 2,997,183 

3,899,200 
(942,166) (902,017) 
943,614 1,050,000 
943.614 

$ 13,190,143 1,045,333 1,256,376 128,018 69.683 5,689,553 
3,899,200 4,366,611 136,369 885,600 
6,401,773 
3,574,056 (9,807,649) 
(6,233,593) 

448 147,983 168,180 

SPECIAI.REVENUEFUNDS WIqJIOUTBUDGE3 DRUG ENFORCEMENT FORFI~IT[JRIi FUND $ 
12,909 08.042 
50,347 

LOCAl, LAW FNFORCEMIIN3 GRANT FUND $ 13,190,143 1,045,333 1,256,376 147~731 177.725 
58.634 

(51,830) 

4,008,181 4,366,611 136,369 885.600 9,396,76 

(9,807,649) 
(51,830) 186,954 

474,153 2,423,569 430,833 226,458 3,080,860 $ 1,448 $ 1,622,136 $ 2,591,749 $ 501,437 $ 174,628 $ 3,267,814 
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CITY OF KENNER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS COMIIINING SCI IEI)UI.E OF REVENUES, EXPENI)ITURES AND CIIANGES IN FUNI) BAI .ANCES ~ SPECIAl. REVENUE FUNDS WITI I ANNUAl. IIUDGETS - BUI)GH AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30. 1998 

REVENUES "1 axes hllcrgovernmental Charges for services Inleresl Miscellaneous TOTAL RI!VI'NUES ~XPENDI'I URES Public safcty Public works ( ulture and rccreafon Urban dcvelopmcnl 

q O'/'AL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNI)S WITtl ANNUAL ItUI)GE'I'S ADJUS'IMENT TO BUI)GETARY ACTUAl. BASIS BUI)GETARY $13,190,143 1,045.333 1,256.376 128.018 69.683 5.689.553 
3,899,200 4,366,611 136,369 885.600 

$ 

(108,547) 48,826 2,259 

$ 13,190,143 1,045,333 1,256,376 128,018 69.683 5.689.553 
3,790,653 4,415,437 138,628 885.600 

$.13,373,998 1,805,226 1,263,156 64,685 35.111 6,542.176 
5,036.940 5,562,398 581,971 1,268,205 q O'I'AI . EXPI!NIB I URES 9,287,780 (57,462) 9,230,318 12,449,514 iXCESS (I)EFICII'NCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNI)FR) liX PI~NI)ITURIi8 OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES Opcra0ng Iransfcrs ill Operating transfers out TOTAl. OTI IER FINANCING SOURCIiS (USIiS) 

6.401.773 
3,574,056 (9,807,649) 

6,459,235 4,092,662 
3,574,056 (9,807,649) 4,308,585 (10,035,357) 

VARIANCE FAVORABLI (UNFAVORAIII.I!) $ (183,855 (759,893 (6,780 63,333 34,572 
1,246,287 1,146.961 443,343 382,605 

(734,529) 227.708 
~XCESS (I)EFICIENCY) OF REVENL/ES AND OTIIER SOURCES OVER (UNI)ER) EXPF.NI)ITI/RliS AND O'lt IFR USES 168,180 57,462 225,642 (1,634.110) 1,859,752 FUND IIAI.ANCE A'I BEGINNING OF YEAR A'I END OF YEAR 2,423,569 $ 2,591,749 $ (109,816) 
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2,256,291 2,256,29 $ 2,481,933 $ 622,181 $ 1,859,752 



RIWENUES ~I axes Sales lax 

CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA SI~ECIA1, REVENUI~ FUNDS - ONE PERCENT SAI~S TAX OF 1984 I:(.JND OF REVENtJES, EXPENI)ITURES, AND CtlANGES IN FUNI) BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUA Year Ended June 30. 1998 

ACTUAl 
$9.672.922 TOq AI, REVI~NUES 9.672.922 EXIq~NI)ITURES Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAl, t~XI~ENI)ITtJRI~S EXCFSS OF RIWENUES OVER EXPENI)ITURES 9.672.922 OTIIER FINANCING USES Operating transfers oul (9,672,922) EXCFSS OF RIWI~NUES OVER EXI>ENI)ITLJRI!S AND OT]IER FINANCING USES I:tJNI) BAI,ANCE A'I BEGINNING OF YEAR AT FND OF YI~A|~. 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGETARY 
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$ 9,672,922 9,672,922 

9,672,922 
(9,672,922) 

$9,900,630 9.900.630 

9,900,630 
(9,900,630) 

VARIANCI~ I:AVORABI3~ (UNFAVORABI,I:) 
(227,708) 

227.708 



 
CH'Y OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SPECIAl. REVENUE FUNI)S - COMMUNITY I)IiVI~I.OPMENS" BI.OCK GRAN3 FUND SCHEDUI.E OF REVENUES, EXPI~NI)H'URES, AND CltANGES IN FUND BA1.ANCE - FIUI)GET AND ACTUAl. Year Fnded June 30. 1998 

RIiVI~NUES Intcrgovcrnmenlal Community development block granls llome program lntcrcsl Miscellaneous TO] AI, REVENUES iXI'I~NI)ITURES Public works Cullurc and recreafon Urban devclopmen! "I O'1 AI, I!XI)ENI)I3'URES 

A(71 UA 
$ 942,256 103,077 12,134 61.620 9.087 
91,297 136,369 885.600 

5XCliSS OF REVI'NUI!S OVER IiXIqSNI)Iq'tIIU~S 5.82 O3 IIER FINANCING SOLIRCES (USI(S) Operating Iransfcrs in 61.774 Opcraling transfcrs out (134.727) "I O'1 AI. OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USF~S) (72,953) 

AI)JUS'I MENT TO BUDGE'I ARY BASIS BUI)Gli3 ARY 

2,259 

,256 ,077 ,134 .620 9.087 
91,297 138,628 885.600 

1,527 277 12 31 
04 22 85 11 848,522 
92,109 581,971 ,268,205 

61,774 (134,727) 
(72,953) IiXCESS (DI!FICII;NCY) OF REVI!NUISS AND OTtlER SOURCI'S OVL:R (UNI)EI~.) I~XPENI)I3 URES AND OTIIER LJSFS (67,132) (2,259) (69,391) FUNI) IIAI.ANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 518.158 A3 ENI) OF YEAR $ (2,441) 
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(93,763) 
113,490 (134.727) 
(21,237 

517.976 517.976 $ 402,976 

VARIANCI FAVORABH( (UNFAVORABI,E) 
(585,548) (174,345) (st) 3o,5o9 
812 443,343 382.605 826,760 
97,325 
(51,716) 
(51,716) 

45.609 



EXPENI)ITURI!S Public Works Capital oullay "10TAL P/JBIJC WORKS Cullure and Rccrcation Servicc ehargc Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA REVENUE FUNDS - COMMUNITY I)EVELOPMt';Nq BLOCK GRANI FUNI) SCI IEDULE OI: EXPENI)ITURI~S - BUDGE'I AND AC] UAL Year Ended June 30, 1998 

ACTUA 
$ 91,297 91.297 
30.282 06.087 "l OTAI, CUI,TURE AND RI(CREATION 136,369 

"l OTAI, URBAN I)IiVEI.OPMEN3 885.600 TO'I AI, I~XPENI)ITURI~S 

AI)jI.JSTMEN4 TO BUI)GE3 ARY BASIS IJUI)GE'I ARY 
$ 
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$ 91,297 91,297 
32,541 106,087 
238.163 15.163 632,274 885.600 

VARIANCE FAVORAI}I J (UNFAVORABI,I!) 
$ 92.109 $ 812 92A09 
37,876 544.095 
581.97 
239.282 15,186 013337 

812 
5.335 438.008 
443,343 
I.I19 23 381.463 382.605 5,525 $ 1,942,285 $ 826,760 



 
CI3Y OF KENNI:,R, LOUISIANA SPI'ICIAL REVENUE FUNDS - GARJ~AGE COLLEC'I ION AND I)ISPOSAL FUNI) SCItEDULE OF REVI~NUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CI IANGES IN FUND BAI.ANCI~ - BUDGET AND AC'I UAL Year Ended June 3(1, 1998 

RI VENLJI!S "1 axes Ad valorem tax Charges for services Garbagc fees and penalties Interest 

ADJUSTMENT "10 ACTUAl. BUDGETARY BASIS BUDGE3 ARY 
$ 630,319 $ 1,255.511 13.812 303 AI. I{EVENUES 1,899,642 XI)I!NI)I'I URES Public works ( ontraetual services "I(Yl AI. I"~XIq~NDI'I'U RES 2,192,35 5XCI!SS (I)I FICIENCY) OF REVI NIIES OVEIt. (I.JNI)IiR EXIqiNI)ITURI!S 03 IIEI~. I:INANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in (292,709) 275.816 X(ESS (I)I!FICIENCY) OF RI VENUES AND O'I'IIER SOURCES OVER (UNI)ER) EXPENI)HIIRES (16.893 I:UNI) BAI.AN( t', A3" BEGINNING OF YEAR A'I END OF YEAR 
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VARIANCE FAVORABI.I (UNFAV()RABI .E) 
$ 630.319 $ 622,130 $ ,255.511 13.812 899.642 
2.192,35 

.262,306 12,500 896,936 
2,192,351 2,608,139 
(292,709) (711,203) 

431,258 

8,189 6,795 1,312 
415.788 415.788 
418.494 

411,365 



REVENtJES 3axes Ad valorcm lax 303AL REVENUES I!XPIiNI)H URES Public works Personnel Supplies Service chargcs Capital oullay "lOq AL EXPENI)I] (JRES 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA SPECIAl. REVENUt FUNI)S - ROADS AND BRIDGES FUND SCI IEIJULE OF" REVENUES, EXPENDHURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCt - BUI)GET AND ACJ UAI Year Ended June 30, 1998 

AC1UA AI)JUSTMEN'I 10 BUDGIi3 ARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY 
237 
622.963 325,392 191.960 
40,315 

(2,100 171 02.603 
237 
620,863 325,563 191,960 102.603 
661,106 330,313 689,876 147 524 

EXCESS (I)IWICIENCY) Ol RIiVliNUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENI)H URES (I,140.078) (100,674) (I ,240,752) (I ,828.819) O'1 IIER FINANCING SOURCES Opera0ng transfers in EXCESS (I)I FICII NCY) OF REVI,;NUES AND O] IIER SOURCES OVER (UNI)ER) EXHiNI)H URES 102,774 6100,674) 2,100 FUNI) BAI,ANCE A1 BEGINNING OF YIAR A'I ENI) O1: YEAR (2,100) (2,100) 

105 

$ 

828 819 
2,100 

VARIANCE FAVORABI,E (LINI'AVORABI,E) 
$ 237 237 
40,243 4,750 497,916 44 921 587.830 
588 067 
2.100 
2,100 



RIWENUES "laxcs Ad valorem tax "]O1 AI. REVENL/ES iXIqiNI)IT[JRES Public works Personnel Supplies Servicc charges Capilal Oullay 

CITY OF KENNER, I,OUISIANA SPECIAl, REVENUE FUNDS - STREE'I I,IGIITING FUND SCI IEI)UI,E OF REVENUES, EXPENDI1 URES, AND CI IANGES IN fUND BALANCU - BUI)GET AND ACTt/AL Year Ended June 30.1998 

TOq AI, EXPENI)ITURI;S 

ADJUSTMF.NT ~10 ACTUAL I~LIGEq'ARY BASIS BUI)GE'I ARY 

87,798 38,627 744,962 71,261 942,648 XCIiSS (I)IiFICIENCY) 01: RI VENUliS OVER (LJNI)ER) liXPliNI)ll URI~S (942,166) OqIIER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in 943.614 

448 

51.848 
(X(!IiSS (I)IiFICIIiNCY) Ol: REVENUES AND O] IlliR SOURCES OVER (UNI)IiR) EXPI!NDI'I URIiS 1,448 51,848 FUNI) IIAI,ANCE A'I BEGINNING OF YEAR A'I END OF YEAR 

87,798 40,075 744,962 17.965 
115,227 46,800 821.806 49.498 

(890,318) (I,033,331) 

(53,296) (53,296) (53.296) $ 1,448 $ (I,448) 
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VARIANCI FAVORAIIIJi (tJNFAVOP, ABI,li) 
482 482 
27,429 6,725 76,844 31,533 42,53 
43 013 

53,296 



REVENUI~S "1 axes Ad valorem tax Service charges Fire reports lnlerest Miscellaneous "1 O'1AI, RI VENUES EXI'ENI)I] URES Public safety Personnel Supplies Service charges Capital outlay 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SPECIAl. REVENUE FUNDS - FIRE DEPAR] MENI FUNI) SCIIEDUI.I O1: RI"VENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGI!S IN I, UND IIALAN( - BUDGET AND AC'I UAI. Year Ended June 30, 199g 

"10"1AL liX Pt~N DITURES 

ACTI.JAL 
$ 2,886,183 865 102,072 8,063 2.997.183 
3,104,585 40,706 585,405 168,504 

AI)JI./STMI!NT TO BUDGETARY BASIS BUI)GE3 ARY 
$ 

115 (147) (1o8,515) (108,547) 

$ 2,886,183 865 102,072 8,063 2.997.183 
3,104,585 40,821 585,258 59.989 3,790,653 

$ 2,851,23g 850 40,000 4.000 
3,153,472 120,159 650,319 1,112,990 5,036,940 liXCliSS (I)I!FICII!NCY) OF RI~VI NUES OVER (UNDER) I!XI'I~NI)I'I URliS (902,0173 108,547 (793,470) (2,140,852) O'I IIER FINANCING SOURCES Opcraling transfers ill 050.000 

VARIANCI FAVORAIH,E (UNFAVORABI.I!) 
34,945 15 62,072 4.063 01.095 
48,887 79,338 65,061 053.001 ,246,287 
,347,382 

liXCliSS (I)IIFICII NCY) OF REVI!NLIES AND OTIII!R SOURCES OVER (UNDER) 1 XIq~NI)ITURES 147,983 108,547 256,530 (1,090,852) 1,347,382 FUNI) I~AI,ANCI~ A'I Ill,GINNING OF YI'AR A3 END OF YEAR 474,153 (111,700) 1,362,453 1,362,453 $ (3,153) $ 1,618,983 
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,347,382 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
The Debt Service Funds are used to accumulate monies for the payment of principal, interest, and fiscal clmrges on tile City of Kenner's general obligation, special tax bonds, and special assessment debt with governmental comnlJtmenl. 
GENERAL I)EBT FUND The General 1)ebt Fund accounts for the tax levy needed to comply with tire interest and principal redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following paving certificates, excess revenue and sales tax bonds: Series A of 1990 - Paving Certificates Sales Tax Refunding Bonds Series 1992 Sales Tax Bonds Series 1994 Sales Tax Bonds Series 1995A Excess Revenue Bonds Series 1996A and 1996B AD VALOREM TAX BOND FUND The Ad Valorem Tax Bond Fund accounts for the property tax levies needed to comply with the interest and principa redemption requirements of bond indentures for the following bonds: General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 1992 
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ASSETS Current assets (:ash Equity in pooled cash and investments Investments lntergovernmenlal Special assessments receivable Accrued interest receivable Due from other funds TOTAl, ASSETS 
ABIIATII'S AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities Deferred revenue 
TOTAL I.IABILITIES Fund balance Reserved for debt service TOTAl. FUNI) BALANCE TOTAL IAABII,ITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BAI.ANCE SHEET June 30. 1998 

GENERAL DEBT 
13,011 6,099,091 691,642 58,543 7,572 61,462 6,931,321 

58,543 
58,543 
6,872,778 6,872,778 
6,931,321 

The accompanying notes arc all integral part of this statement 109 

AD VALOREM TAX BONDS 
227.600 7.149 
98.875 333.624 

97,366 
97,366 
236,258 236,258 
333,624 

227,600 20,160 6,099,091 691,642 58,543 7,572 160.337 7.264,945 

55.909 
55,909 
7,109,036 7.109.036 

$ 7,264,945 



 
CITY OF KENNER. I.OUISIANA DEBT SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMEN'I Ot: REVENUES, EXPF.NDI'I'URES. AND CIIANGI'S IN I:UNI) BAI.ANCI'S Year Ended June 30. 1998 

REVI'N[W~S Taxes Special assessments Interest on invested funds Miscellaneous TOI AI. IU~VENUI:,S :XPFNI)ITURES Debt service l'rincipal Interest alld fiscal clmrge.s Agent fees Miscellaneous "1 O'1AI, liX PFNI)ITUI~d~S 

GENERAl. I)F.BT 831,583 29,271 414,304 101,355 
3,010,029 2,502,094 

I'XCESS (I)I~FICIENCY) O1: I(t-VI!N[JF.S OVEI', (UNI)FR) EXI'I.;NI)Iq UI~,ES (I,147,610) O'II IER FINANCING SOURCI!.S (USES) Operaling transfers in Operaling transfers out TO'I AL OTttEI~. FINANCING SOURCI'S (USES) ~XCESS (I)I{FICIENCY) OF RFNENUES AN[) OTIIEI', SOURCES OVER (UNI)EI',) FXIq~NI)ffUI',ISS FUNI) BAI.ANCI{ Aq BI(GINNING OF YEAR A3 ENI) OF YEAR 

62,908 (7,446) 

7.852 
6.864.926 6,872,778 
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AI) VAI.OI~,EM TAX BONDS TOTA 264,391 8.566 
272.957 
90,00(I 98,766 1.500 
290,266 

253.567 $ 236,258 

095.974 29,271 422,870 101.355 
3,200,029 2,600,860 1,500 12.000 5.814.389 
(I,164.919) 
1,162.908 (7,446) 

(9,457) 
7.109.036 



 
CITY OF KENER, LOUISIANA I)Ela;3 SERVICE FUNDS - GENERAL I)EB'I FUNI) SC11H)UI.E OF RI~VENUES, EXI'ENI)ITU]~.I';S, AND CHANGES IN FUNI) BAI,ANC - BUI)GET AND ACTUAl, Year Ended June 30. 1998 

REVI'NUES Taxes Sales tax Special assessments Interest on invested fimds MiseeBaneous TOTAl. RI'VI;NUt'S "Xlq~NI )H'UI~.I':S l)cbt service Principal InleresI Miscellaneous 'I OI'AI. I'XI'I~NI)ITURI'S I'XCI'SS (I)I'FICII'NCY) OF I(EVI'NUI'S OVI'R (UNI)ER) I'XPI'NI)ITUI~.ES OTIIISR FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating Iransfers in Operaling transfers oul TOTAl. OTIIER IqNANCING SOURCES (USI'S) I:,XCESS OF RI'VENUI'S AND O'H 1ISR SOURCI'S OVER FXPFNI)H'URI'S FUNI) BAI.ANCF AT BI{(ilNNIN(i O1: YI'AR AT ENI) OF YFAR 

ACTUAI 
831,583 29,271 414,304 101.355 

3,010,029 2,502,094 12,000 

3,882,124 330,000 101.355 

3,075.079 2,552,316 12,(100 5.639.395 
(I,147,610) (1,325,916) 
1,162,908 (7,446) 

7.852 

,340,86 
,340,86 
4,945 

6,864,926 6,864,926 6,872,778 
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6,879,87 

VARIANCE FAVORABI,I': (UNFAVORABI,E) 
(50,541) 29,271 84.304 
63.034 
65,050 50.222 

78,306 
(177,953) (7,446) 
(185,399) 
(7,093) 
(7,093) 



 
CITY OF KFNNI~R, I.OUISIANA I)EI~T SERVICE FUNI)S - AD VA1.OREM TAX BONDS FUND SCI IEI)UI.E OF RF.VI~NUI'S, EXPI;NI)ITL/RES, AND CtlANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL Year Ended June 30. 1998 

RI';VENUI:.S "1 axes Ad Valorem tax Interest on invested funds TO'I'AI. REVI(NUI~S "XPI~NI)ITLIRI'S Debt service Principal Interest and fiscal charge Agent fees "10'I'AI. EXIq~NI)ITURI';S ~XCESS (I)I*;FICII'NCY) OI: I/.EVENUES OVI,;R ([/NI)I;R) I~XI'I'NI)Iq'URES I.JNI) BAI,ANCI" A] BEGINNING OF YEAR A3' ENI) OF YEAR 

ACTUAl 
264,391 8.566 272,957 
90,000 98,766 1,500 290,266 

253,567 236,258 
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258,439 11.000 269.439 
90,000 98,766 1.500 290.266 
(20,827) 
232,740 

VAI{IANCI'; FAVOItABI.Ig (t INI.'AVO1J, AI~I .E) 
5,952 2,434) 3,518 

3,518 
3,518 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with tile acquisition, renovation and improvements of capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
GENERAL CAPITAl. PROJECT FUNDS General Capital Projects Fund accounts for projects originally funded by the General Fund and the Wastewater Operations Fund, Also included are projects funded by riverboat fees. 
CAPITAl. PROJECTS FUNDED WITH BOND PROCEEDS Capital Projecls Funded wilh Bond Proceeds accounts for projects originally funded by fire 1987A Series Bond proceeds, tile 1987B Series Bond proceeds and the 1988 Series Bond proceeds. These bonds were refunded by the Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 1992, Also included are projects funded by loans from LDEQ and by proceeds from the Excess Revenue Bonds Series 1996A and 1996B. 
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ASS1"] S Cash Equity in pooled cash and investments Investments Receivables lntergovernmeraal Interest Other Due fionl other funds TO'I At, ASSETS ABIIATIES AND FUND BAI,ANCE ]abilities Accounts payable ( onlracts payable Retainages payable Due to other funds 'OTAL I.IAIIlI.ITII'S Fund balance Reserved for encumbrances Unreserved Designated for capital additions and improvements Undesignated TOTAl, FUNI) BA1,ANCI 10TAI, I.IAI~II.1TIES AND FUNI) BAI.ANCF 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SI 1EET June 30, 1998 

GENERAl. CAI'ITAI. I~I{OJEC'I'S 
430,639 442,733 3,658,036 213,275 466 920.060 5,665,209 
443,766 42,539 152,210 638,515 
996,189 

5,026,694 
5.665,209 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement. 114 

CAI'ITAI. PROJECTS FUNDEI) WITI I ~ONI) Plt.OCI'IeDS TOTA 
29 85.219 878.608 
375 
964,23 
144,843 36,025 243,085 423,953 
26,463 

964,23 

430,668 527,952 4.536.644 213,275 375 466 920.060 6,629,440 
588,609 78,564 395,295 062.468 
022.652 
4,544,320 
5,566,972 
6.629.440 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I.OU1S1ANA CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNI)S COMBINING STATEMI-NT OF I/EVI:.NUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUNI) BAI.ANCI'S Year Ended June 30.1998 

REVI~NDES Intergovernmental Interest Miscellaneous TOq AI, RI';VI;NUES I{XPI'NI)ITUI.IFS Capital outlay General government Public safety Public works Cuhure and recreation TOI AI. I~XPI(NI)ITURI'S I'XCESS (I)I~FICII{NCY) OF REVI~NUI'S OVI'R (UNI)I';R) I.:X PI'NI)ITUIU'S OTIII?R FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Operating transfer in Operating transfers out Proceeds from I,DI';Q loan TOTAl. OTI IER FINANCING SOURCES 

GENERAI, CAPITAL PROJECTS 575,685 328,360 30.000 934.045 
173,440 ,864,233 ,398,486 ,709,236 5,145,395 

CAPITAl. PROJECTS I:UNI)EI) WIT11 BOND PROCFFI)S TOTA 
77,472 
77.472 
2,000 
2,658,371 2,660,37 

575,685 405,832 30.0(10 
175,440 1,864,233 1,398,486 4,367,607 

(4,211,350) (2,582,899) (6,794,249) 
5,576,535 (I,487,296) 
4,089,239 

200,009 (62,443) 
37,566 

5,776,544 (I,549,739 
I~XCFSS (I)I'FICIFNCY) OF REVENUES AND OTI IER SOURCI'S OVER (UNI)F.R) F.XPI'.'NI)ITURI'S AND O'/'HER USES (122,111) (2,445,333) (2,567,444) qANI) BAI.ANCI{ AT BI:~GINNING OF YI';AR A3 END OF YEAR 5,148,805 2,985,6 5.026.694 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, 115 

540,278 5,566,972 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that arc financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the government's council is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the government's council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability 
DEPARTMENT OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS FUND The Department of Wastewater Operations Fund accounts for the sewer services provided to the residents of the City of Kenner. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing, and related debt service and billing. Effective July 1, 1995, this department was privatized. CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS FUND The Civic Center Operations Fund accounts for the operations of the Pontchartrain Center. Principal revenues of the fund are rental charges, commissions and governmental subsidies (hotel/motel taxes and cable television franchise fees). 
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ASSI!] S Currenl assets Cash Equity in pooled cash Receivables (net, where applicable, of allo'~,'ances for uncollectibles) hltergovernlnental Service charges Other l)uc from other funds Prepaid expenses Refundable deposits "10TAI, CURREN1 ASSETS 
Properly, plant, and equipment l.and and improvements Buildings and improvements Funfiturc and fixtures Vehicles and field cquipmenl ( onstruclion in progress 
Jess: accumulated depreciation 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA ENTERI'RISE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEFI June 30. 1998 

NI"I i'ROPt"RT~, PI,AN'I AND EQUIPMEN'I 
"10"I'AI. ASSFTS 

The accompanying notes ale all intergral parl of this slatemenl 

DEPARTMEN'I OF WASTEWATER OPERATIONS 
65,209 

750,580 
1,825,937 59,748,821 148,597 983,929 14.145.696 

CIVIC CF.NTER OPERATIONS TOIA 
372,322 323.415 
43,802 55,304 30,657 45,389 
070.889 
5,311,74 6,470,93 2,812,43 

76,852,980 24,595,103 

117 

3,537,039 

537,531 323.415 
143,802 167,885 130,657 111,360 403,150 3,669 
7,137,678 76,219,752 2,961,028 983,929 14.145.696 

21,058,064 ?3,664,497 
$ 76,485,966 



,IAIIII,I'I II!S AND FUNI) EQUITY 3abilities Current liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of mortgage payable Curren't porlion of notes payable Accrued liabilities Deposits on future events I)tle 1o other funds l)eferred revenue qO1AI. CURRIiN] I.IAI31LITIF.S .ong-term liabilities Conlpensated absences Mortgagc payable (net of current portion 3'Oq AI. I.ONG "1 IiRM 1JABILlq'IES "1 O1AI, I JAIIII,1TIliS Fund equity Contributed capital Ad valorem tax bonds Sales tax bonds Excess revenue bonds Federal governll~ent State government Municipal government Rate payers TO'I AI. CONTRII~UTIil) CAPITA 
Retained earnings (deficit) "10TAI. FUND EQUITY 

DEPAR'I M[:NT OF WAST[:WATER OPERATIONS 
36,559 1.624 

2,116 23.673 25.789 487.932 
6,346,000 4,040,723 

CIVIC CENTER OPERAqlONS 
$ 97,459 3,736 20,520 104,076 384 

21,518,00 630.48 32,416,765 3,900,000 2,039,279 3,536~041 7.863.943 
(14,234,391) 53.869,081 TO'I AI, I,IABII,ITlliS AND FUNI) EQI.II'I Y $ 54,357,013 
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24.187.76 

134,018 1,624 3,736 23,325 104,076 311,908 109.631 688,318 
2,116 23.673 
714.107 
6,346,000 35,558,724 630,481 32,416,765 5,939,279 3,536,041 7,863,943 92,291,233 
(16,519,374) 75,771,859 $ 76,485,966 



 
CH'Y OF KI'NNER. I.OUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT Of RI'VENUI"S, EXPENSES AND CHANGI'S IN RE'I AINEI) EARNINGS (I)I;FICIT) Year 1"nded June 30. 1998 

OPI~RATING REVENUF, S lnlergovernmentM Charges for services Miscellaneous TOTAl. OI'ERA'I ING RIiVI'NUES OH'RATING I~XH'NSF.S Personnel expenses Supplies and other expenses Building and maintenance expenses Outside services "I ransporlalion Insurance premiums General expenses Depreciation ()lhet q O'I AL ()Pt'RATING IiXH~NSI'S OI'ERATING I.OSS NON-OPERATING RF.VI'NUI~S (EXI)ENSES Ad valorem taxes 1 Iolel/molel taxes (:able television frmmhise fees ] IltC[~sl income Interest expense TOTAl. NON-OH~RAq'ING RF.VENUI'S 
NI'T LOSS RIiTAINI'I) EARNINGS (I)EFICIT) AT Ill'GINNING OF Yt';AR AT I'NI) OF YEAR 

The accompmlying noles are an integral part of tiffs statemenl 

DEPARTMENT OI WASTEWATFR OPERATIONS $ 4,358,131 20 

496,463 57.756 

CIVIC CENTER OPI'RATIONS TOTA 13,961 82,617 5.387 
12,309 399,111 ,282,574 58,032 513,796 31.195 

$ 13.961 5,540,748 5.407 
54,35(I 14,179 470,170 5,825,351 300 58,032 2,010.259 88.951 

(I,866,424) (1,095,052) (2,961A76) 
448,662 
4,528 (2,553) 450.637 
(12,818,604) 

365,184 498,148 30,448 (768 893.012 
(202,040) 

448,662 365,184 498.148 34,976 (3,321) 

(2,082,943) 04,901,547) 
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OI'ERA] ING REVENUES Charges for services Sewerage service charges Tie in fees Inspection fees Induslrial pretreatment fees 

CITY O1' KENNER, LOLIIS|ANA ENTERPRISE FUND - WASTEWAq ER OPERATIONS SCIIEDULI! OF REVENUES AND CHANGES IN RE3 AINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) - BUDGE1 AND ACq UA4 Year Ended June 30,1998 

$ 4,256,671 86,110 5,720 9,630 +10"l AI, C]IARGES fOR SERVICES 4,358,13 
q OqAI. OPERA'IING REVENUliS 4,358,15 OPERATING EXPENSIJS Petsom~el expenses Supplies and other expense Operating supplies and purchases Building and maintenance expenses Outside services "I ransportalion Insurance premiums General expenses Depreciation Olher "IO'IAI, OPERATING EXPENSES OPERA'I IN(i INCOME (LOSS) NON-OI'ERA'I ING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Ad valorem taxes ]nleresl income Interest expense "1 O'1AI, NON OI'IiRATING RIiV EN'OI;S 
NE'I INCOME (LOSS) RE] AINEI) EARNINGS (I)EFICI'I A'|" 13EGINNING OF YEAR AT ENI) OF YEAR 

54,350 1,870 71,059 4,542,777 300 
496,463 57.756 
448,662 4,528 (2,553 
450,637 

ADJ TO BIJDGE] ARY BASIS BUI)GE] ARY 
$ 

(I,496,463) (5,220) (1,501,683) ,501,683 

$ 4,256,671 86,110 5,720 9.630 
$ 4,405,416 71,869 7.986 
20 
54,350 1.870 71,059 4.542,7?9 300 
54,196 1,563 98,259 4,539,763 300 

VARIANCI FAVORAIILE (UNFAVOF, ABI, 

27,140) 980 
(t54) (307) 27,200 (3,014) 

52,536 706,919 654,383 
448,662 4,528 (2,553) 
(914,729) 443,067 6~00 4,252 

450,637 453,319 

678.108 549.988 
5,595 (I,4721 (6,805) 

(1,415,787) 1,501,683 85,896 (461,410) 547,306 
3,870,04 
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37,333 $ 590,027 $ 547,306 



OPERA'I ING REVIiNLIli8 hltcrgovcnmenlal Charges for services Renlal charges Parking Cow,cessions ~ Btering Miscellaneous Electrical Reimbursed services Ad veflising Security 

CIJY OF KENNER liN3 IiRPRISE FUND - CIVIC CI!NTER OPERATIONS SCIII~DULI! OF REVENUES, I!XPENSES AND CIIANGES IN RE3 AINIiD EARNINGS (DEFICI'I - BUDGE] AND ACI"UAL Year Ended June 30. 1998 

"IO'IAI CIIARGI S FOR SIiRVICIiS 

AC3 UAL 

82,617 5.387 "IOIAI OPIiRAqlNG R| VliNIJliS 1.201,965 
()PIiRA'I ING I(XPI NSES Supplies and other expenses Building and maintenance expense Oulsidc services I nst~ranc~ preln 01ms Gcncral expenses I)cprcciaholl Othcl 

12,309 399,111 282,574 58.032 513,796 31.195 

AI)J 30 BUI)GI( I'ARY BASIS BXIDGI~'I ARY 3.96 

82,617 5,387 

620,000 56,000 75,000 52,000 11,500 44,000 125.000 9,200 42,500 035.200 3,200 
12,309 399,111 ,282,574 58.032 
31.195 
23,500 451~00 ,236,050 59500 

VARIANCI FAV6)RAI~I,I~ (UNFAVORAlll li) 3.06 

47,417 2 187 63.565 
1,191 1.889 6,524) 1468 
31,195 "1 O'1 AI, OPI!RATING IiXIqiNSES 2,297,017 (513,796) 1,783,221 1,770,050 (I 317 OPIiRA'I I N(; I,OSS ( 1,095,052) 513,796 (581,256) (731,650) 150,394 

NON-OPI~RA'I ING IIEVENUI~S (I XPtiNSES I Iolel/inOle] taxes Cable television franchise fees Intercst income Inleresl expense 
365,184 498,148 30,448 (768) "l OI AI. NON-OPIiRATING RIiVENUES 893.012 NI!7 INCOME (LOSS 

365.184 498,148 30,448 (768) 
353,570 459,796 12,450 1,614 8,352 7,998 (768 67.196 311.756 94.166 217.590 

RE'I AINH) EARNINGS (I)EFICI'I) A'I BEGINNING Ol' YEAR (2,082,943) 3,023.243 940,300 940,300 $(2,284,983) $ 3.537,039 $ 1.252,056 $ 1,034,466 $ 217,590 
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lnercasc (decrease) in cash and cash equivalcnls: Cash flows from operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities: Depreciation Change in current assets (increase) decrease: Receivables l)ue from other funds Intcrgoverlmlcntal Prepaid expenses Change in current liabilities increase (decrcasc): Accounts payable I)efcrred revenue Accrued liabilities l)uc to other funds Deposits oll future events ( ompcnsatcd absences TO'I AI, AI)JUSTMENTS Nct cash provided by (used for) operathlg activities Cash flows from noncapital financing activities Ad valorem taxes 110tcl/motel taxes (able television franchise fees Net cash provided by noneapital financing activities 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA I~NTEI(PRISI! FUNI)S COMBINING S]ATI~MENT OF CASH FLOWS Year Ended Junc 30. 1998 

I)I!PARTMI'Nq O WASTEWATFR OPERATIONS 
$ (1,866,424) 
496,463 
196,157 702 
9,760 (463 925 167.248 (38) 512,993 
(353,431) 

448,662 
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CIVIC CI!NTER OPIRATIONS TO'IA 
(I,095,052) 

19,026 (19,155) (86) 
23,845 (20,449 
528,147 
(566,905) 
365,184 498.148 
863.332 

2 (1 (35 
183 702 155 847 
33,605 (20,912) 925 167,248 11,170 (38) 
(920,336) 
448,662 365,184 498.148 
311.994 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMEN] OF CASI1 FLOWS (CONTINUEI)) Year Ended June 30, 1998 

Cash flows from capilal and related financing activilies: I'rincipal payments - note payable Principal payments - mortgage payable Principal payments - capital lease payable Interest payments Acquisilion of property, plant, and equipment 

DEI'AR'IMENT OF WASTEWATI'R OPERATIONS CIVIC CENTER OPERATIONS 
$ (7,852) 
(768) 

(7,852) (I,619) 63,321) (178,748) (270,276) Net cash providcd by (used for) capital and related financing activities (95,700) (187,368) (283,068) Cash flows from investing activilics Interest received Nel cash provided by investing activities Net increase ill cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
4,528 
4,059 61.150 

30,448 30.448 139,507 556,230 
34.976 34.976 143,566 717,380 (ash and cash equivalenls, end of year $ 165,209 $ 695,737 $ 86fl,946 

Reconciliation to balance sheet accounls: Cash $ Equity in pooled cash and investments Casb and cash equi\,alents, end of year $ 165,209 
Noncash investing, capilal, and financing activities: Contributions of capital Acquisitions of property, planl, and equiplnenl through capital contribulions Net effect ofnoncash aclivilies 

$ 900,406 (900,406) $ 

"lhe accompanying notes ate an intcgral part of this statement 123 

$ 372,322 323.415 

,235,57 

$ 537,531 323,415 860~46 

(1,235,571) (2,135,977) $ $ 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of tile government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. SEI,F-1NSURANCE FUND The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to provide automobile properly damage and worker's compensation for which the City is self-insured. EALT] I INSURANCE FUND The 1 lealth Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to pay the health insurance premiums 
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ASSETS Cash Investments TOTAl, ASSETS 
ABII,ITIES AND FUND EQUITY IAabilities Accounts payable Estimated claims payable Due to other funds TOq'AL LIABILITIES ]:und equity Retained earnings 
TOTAL FUND EQD1TY 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET June 30. 1998 
SELF- NSURANCE FUND $ 489,611 3.314.699 
$ 3.804,310 
$ 787,751 1,833,628 
2.621.379 
1.182.93 1,182,931 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 3,804,310 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of this statement 
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HEALTH INSURANCE FUND $ 88,716 
$ 88,716 
800 744 2,544 
86.172 86.172 
$ 88,716 

$ 578,327 3,314,699 
$ 3,893,026 
$ 789,551 1,833,628 744 2,623,923 
,269,103 1,269,103 
$ 3,893.026 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS Year Ended June 30, 1998 

OPI'~RATING REVENUES Charges for services OPFRATING I:X PF, NSI~S Outside services Insurance claims Insurance prcnliums 
TOTAL OPIZRATING EXPENSES OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) NON-OPERATING REVENUE Interest revenue TOTAl. NON-OPERATING REVENUE 
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS RF, TA1N FJ) EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

SELF- NSURANCE FUND $ 1,783,976 
942,565 098,751 
2,041,316 (257,340) 
59.178 59.178 

HEALTH INSURANCE FUND $ 2,424,206 
2,382,600 
2,382,600 41,606 
2.693 2.693 

$ 4,208,182 
942,565 1,098,751 2,382,600 
4.423.916 (215,734) 
61.87 61,87 

(98,162) 44,299 (53,863) 
,281,093 41,873 1,322,966 $ 1,182,93 
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$ 86,172 $ 1,269,103 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA INTERNAL SI'RVICE FUNDS COMBINING STATI'MI'N'I OF CASII I"I~OWS Year Ended June 30. 1998 

INCRI'ASE IN CASII AND CASII 15QUIVAI.ENTS: Cash flows from operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Change m assets and liabilities: Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase ill accrued expenses Decrease in duc to otber funds 
Net cash provided by operating aclivilics Cash flows from investing activities: Purchases of investnlent securities Proceeds from maturities of investments Interest received Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year (?ash and cash equivalents, at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stalement 

SELF- NSURANCE FUND llEAI.TII INSURANCE FUNI) TOTAI 
$ (257,340) $ 41,606 $ (215,734) 
(80.864) 532,485 
451.62 
94.28 
(12,822,915) 12,330,246 156,126 
(336,543) 

1,800 (2,081) 
41,325 
2,693 
2,693 

(79,064) 532,485 (2,081 ) 451.340 
235.606 
(12,822,915 12~330,246 158,819 
(333,850) 

(142,262) 44,018 (98,244) 
631,873 44,698 676,57 489.6 
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$ 88,716 $ 578,327 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individual, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. 
FIREMEN'S, PENSION AND RELIEF FUND The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for the retirement annuity payments as appropriate amounts and times in the future. 
AD VAI.OREM TAX COLLECTION FUND The Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund accounts for property taxes billed and collected on behalf of al City. 
AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND The Airport Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the proceeds of sales taxes generated from a special 2% sales tax assessed within the Airport Taxing District, and to distribute to the appropriate taxing bodies. 
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ASSETS (:ash Equity in pooled cash and investments ]nvestments Receivables (net, where applicable, of allowance for uneolleetibles) Ad valorem taxes lntergovernmental Interest Other Prepaid expenses TOTAl. ASSETS 
L1AIIlI.ITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities Accounts payable Due to other funds Due to other governments Refunds payable TOTAL LIABILITIES 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA FII)IJCIARY FUNDS COMBINING BALANCE SHEET June 30. 1998 

Fund balance reserved for employees' pension benefits TOTAl. FUNI) BA1.ANCE TOTAl. LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 129 

PENSION TRUST FUND 
FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF $ 149.075 10,657,214 
85,541 34,127 586 
$ 11,026,543 
8,285 
8,285 
11,018,258 1,018,258 $ 11.026.543 



AGENCY FUNDS 
AD VALOREM TAX COLLECTION AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND 62,132 $ 
202,334 

$ 1,264,466 
5,933 245,205 13.328 ,264,466 

,264,466 

267,291 
267,292 

$ 89,097 178.195 
267,292 

267,292 
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$ 211,207 1 10.657.214 
1,202,334 267,291 85,541 134,127 586 
$ 12,558,30 
$ 14,218 1,334,302 178,195 13,328 1,540,043 
1,018,258 11,018,258 $ 12,558,301 



ADDITIONS Contributions: Participants Employer: City of Kcnner Slate of Louisiana - fire insurance lax Total Contribulions 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PENSION TRUST FUND STATEMENT OF CIIANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS Year Ended June 30, 1998 

nveslnlenl Income: Net appreciation in fair value Interest l)ividends Total ]nvestmcnl hlcomc l.ess Investment Expense Net Investment Income 
Tolal Additions 
1)EI)UCTIONS Members' benefits Refunds to terminated employees Conlinued service incentive Administrative expenses 
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS NET INCREASI PLAN NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
AT END OF YEAR 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement] 31 

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF 
227.033 
339.576 34.067 700.676 
417,984 344,987 95.527 1.858.498 31.58 1.826.917 
2.527.593 
653,979 38,216 2,448 37,063 
731,706 795,887 
9,222,37 
11.018.258 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL1TES - ALL AGENCY I:UNDS Year Ended June 30. 1998 
AD VALOREM TAX COLLECTION FUND 

ASSI'TfS Cash Ad valorem taxes receivable TOTAl. ASSETS ABIIATIES Accounts payable Due to othcr funds Refunds payable TO'I'AL 13ABILITIES 

BALANCE JULY 1, 1997 ADDITIONS $ 36,222 1,210,252 $ 1,246,474 
$ 3,889 1,229,257 13,328 $ 1,246,474 

$ 5,049,598 5,143,207 $ 10,192,805 
$ 2,044 5.033.630 
$ 5,035,674 

AIRPORT SALES TAX FUND 

BAI.ANCE DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1998 $ 5,023,688 5.151.125 
$ 10,174,813 
$ 5.017.682 
$ 5,017,682 

$ 62,132 1,202,334 
$ 1,264,466 
5,933 245,205 13.328 $ 1,264,466 

ASSF/I'S Equity in pooled cash and investments Due from olher governments 
TOTAl, ASSETS IAABIL1TIES Due to other funds Due lo other governmenls TOTAL LIABILITIES 

(Continued) 

BALANCE JULY 1,1997 ADDITIONS $ 1 239,477 $ 239,478 
$ 79,826 159,652 $ 239,478 
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$ 267,291 $ 267,291 
$ 89,097 178.195 
$ 267,292 

BALANCI" DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30. 1998 $ 239.477 $ 239,477 
$ 79,826 159.652 $ 239.478 

267,29 $ 267,292 
$ 89,097 178,195 $ 267,292 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISJANA COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS (CONTINUt'I)) Year Ended June 30. 1998 
TOTALS-ALLAGENCYFUNDS 

ASSI'TS Cash Equity in pooled cash and investments Ad valorem taxes receivable Due from other governraents TOTAl. ASSETS ABILITIES Accounts payable Due to other funds Due to other governments Refunds payable TOTAl, IAAI~ILITII,',S 

BALANCE JULY 1, 1997 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 
$ 36,222 I 1,210,252 239,477 $ 1,485,952 
$ 3,889 1,309,083 159,652 13.328 $ 1,485,952 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

BALANCE JUNE30.1998 
5,049,598 $ 5,023,688 $ 62,132 5,143,207 267,291 $ 10,460,096 
2,044 5,122,727 178.195 

$ 5,302,966 
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5,151,125 239.477 $ 10,414,290 
5,097,508 159,652 
5.257.16G 

,202,334 267.291 



GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 
Tile General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for fixed assets which are not used in Proprietary Fund operations or accounted for in Trust Funds. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SCI 1EDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCES June 30. 1998 

GENERAl, FIXED ASSETS l.and Buildings Improvements other than buildings Furniture, fixtures and equipment Vehicles Construction in progress TOTAl, GENERAL FIXED ASSETS NVISSTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS FROM General fund revenues General obligation bonds and notes Federal grants State grants Parish grants Gifts Special assessments Riverboat fees TOTAL INVESq'MENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
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11,245,980 13,905,807 36,661,010 11,489,216 10,303,019 6,318,641 89.923,673 
35,655,726 17,793,699 10,755,292 1,123,682 263,000 638,662 15,072,274 8,621,338 89.923.6?3 



 
C|TY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SCIIEI)UI.I" OF GENERAL FIXED ASSE'I S - BY FUNCTION AND ACIIVITY June 30, 1998 

; UN('3 ION ANI) AC]IVI]'Y 
10] AI, GENI RAI (IOVERNMEN] 

IMPROVI ;MEN3 g OTIIER "111AN BUILI)INGS BUILDINGS 
$ 1,340,948 $ t,584,021 $ 12,500 

3g0.990 
Public ~orks Adll,dlistrafon lleautificalion Garbage Roads and bridges Sttcel ligh0ng [)lalllage Vehicle and btJddd~g llla01[ellarlce 

.546.209 

.009.267 171.679 
2.727.155 
20,810 95,252 

462.765 22.465.104 177.778 718.279 22.270 

784.747 
$ 332.420 $ 7.330.736 40.036 261.143 96.74~ 30.502 
5.949.230 73.941 
2.070.243 

10] AI. I>UItI.IC WORKS 216.664 216.062 23 846.196 2.368.07d 989.905 27.636.90 lea0h and welfare Ilumanc Cotmcil ou agit~g Removal of architectural ba~icrs Food bank notlSillg aulhorily 3 O'1 AL I II ,~,I q ] I AN D Wl{I ,YARE Culture at~d reoca0oll Admhfstra0on and maintenance Recreation Mtlseums 

53.t32 83.205 Ig,350 46.950 218.470 254.687 
20.409 5.919.263 1.328.757 

2~74 2.155 
254.000 29.606 470.349 6.925.193 8.170.703 754.850 1.694.534 402.181 370.691 ]OJAI. CUI.1 URI AND RECREAIION 7.268.429 8.873.727 ] ransd artd urban development Community developmenl ~1 rallsil 217.263 277.631 273.872 3OIAI qRANSI I AND URBAN DEVELOI'MEN3 494.894 273.872 ~103 AI, GENERAl, FIXEI) ASSE1 S AI,I,OCA'I I~1) ]O FUNC'I IONS ConslrUClion ill progress TO3 AL GICNERAI, FIXI'~I) ASSE3 S 
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8.602.490 
597.788 597.788 

$ 36.661.010 

21.945 68AH 
g'0.356 725.592 145.833 337.963 79.868 920.197 22307.972 3.876.031 ,595,890 563,664 26,904,200 

38.735 59.513 59,513 
187,17 277.63 464.802 

$ 11.489.216 $10.303.019 g3.605.032 6.318.641 $ 89.923.673 



 
CITY OF KENNEIt., LOUISIANA E OF CI IANGES IN GENERAl, FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY Year Ended June 311, 1998 

FUNCTION AND ACI'IVI'I Y General government AdminiszraOon Fl~cted officials Clerk of court Planning and zoning 
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 7/01/97 
7,01~ 166 231,489 55,640 29,541 

DEDUCTIONS & DEPAR] MENTAL GENERAl, FIXEI) ADI)13 IONS 3 RANSFERS ASSETS 6/30/98 

]OqAl GIiNERAL GOVERNMEN'I 7,326,g36 392,292 Public safcb' Police Regulatory inspection (3vii defense Brake tag Fire department 3rafllc Code enforcemenl ]O'IAI PUBI.IC SAFETY Public works Administration |~eau/iflcatit~n Garbage Roads and bridges Strecl righting I)rainagc Vebielc and building mainlenance q OIAI, PUI{I IC WORKS leahh and welfare Ilumanc Council on aging Removal ol architectural barriers Food bank I lousing authority 7OJAL IIIiAI,TI{ AND WELFARE Culture and recreation Adnfnislrmi~n and mainlenancc Recreation Museums TOTAl, CUIII'URE AND RliCREA3 ION 3 ransil and urban dcvclopnlenl Community development "1 ransit 

355,207 47 750 

21,945 495,621 183,205 18,350 719,72 
862,140 6.284,027 3386.179 20,932,346 
1,187,171 277.631 703 A[, I'RANSI I AND URBAN DEVELOPMEN3 1,464,802 "1 O3 AI, GIiNERAI, FIXEI) ASSE] S AII,OCA3 El) 3'O FUNC'I IONS 

3 O'I AI, GENERAl, FIXEI) ASSE'I S 

26.43 
63,397 71,261 
261.089 
4,316 2.155 
6.47 
137,924 5,823,945 9 985 

9,356,333 10,848,495 2,637,458 (7,167,3121 
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$ 7,330,736 261,143 96,747 30,502 
4,263,235 111,884 5,869 58,065 4,370,388 176,882 168.086 9.154 409 

27,636,90 

1~00,064 22,107,972 3,796.164 
187,17 277.63 464.802 



GENERAL LONG - TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP 
~ ~ "gqeen~raa 1Dreebvt e nAuC e" ~ ~ ~a ta Gar ~r PUo b~e~fids slhe fga ge~ ~u nb~ nd s a~d~ ~lt~ ~ ~ iTf iln~d~gv'il~um] 
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CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA SCIIEDULE OF GENERAL I.ONG-TERM DEBT June 30. 1998 

Amount Available and to be Provided for the Payment of Long-Term Debt 
SERIAL BONDS Amount available in Debt Service Funds Amounl to be provided for retirement of general obligation special lax bonds, and special assessment debt with governmental commitment 
Total available and to be provided for serial bond retiremen NOTES PAYABLE Amount available in Special Revenue Funds COMPF, NSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE Amount to be provided from governmental funds CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE Amount to be provided from governmental funds 
Total amount available and to be provided 

General Long-Term Debt Payable SERIAL BONDS PAYAB1.E General obligation and special tax bonds Special assessment debt with governmental commitment Total serial bonds payable NOTES PAYABLE COMPENSATEI) ABSENCES PAYABLE 
CAPI'fAL LEASES PAYABLE Total general long-term debt payable 
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$ 7.109.036 
40,909.508 
48,018.544 
240.000 
741.292 
632.16 
$ 50,631,997 

$ 47,960,000 58.544 48,018,544 240.000 
741,292 632.16 $ 50,631,997 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



997 996 995 994 993 992 
$ 9,222 7,042 6,554 6,128 5,677 5.193 

CITY OF KFNNER, LOUISIANA REQUIRED SUPPLEMEN'/ARY INFORMATION SCItEDUI.F. OF FUNDING PROGRESS (In thousands of dollars) FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUNI) June 30. 1998 

Actuarial Accrued l.iability (AAI,) Entry Age (h) $ 13,673 12,217 15,605 14,783 13,737 12,662 

Funded Ratio (a/b) 67.45% 57.64% 42.00% 41.45% 41,33% 41.01% 

Unfunded AAL (UAAI,) (b-a) Covered Payroll (c) $ 2,523 2,224 2,049 1,940 1,964 1.959 

UAAI. as a l)ercenlagc of Covered Payroll ((b-a)/c) 176.42% 232.69% 441.73% 446.13% 410.39% 381.27% 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued liability, and unfunded actuarial accrued liability in isolatiol cml be misleading. F.xpressing aeluarial value of assels as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of the Fund's funding slatus on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over tiara indicates wbether the Fund is becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage the stronger the Fund. Trends in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability and almual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfimded actuarial accrued liability as a perccnlagc of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids in the analysis of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, thc smaller Ibis percentage, the slronger the Fund. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEI)ULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS AND TREND INFORMATION (In thousands of dollars) FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND lune 30, 1998 

Year Ended June 30 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 

Annual Pension Cost (APC)* $ 473,643 437,313 430,767 410,377 380,186 373,215 

Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Net Pension Obligation 

* Tile information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as pan of the actuarial valuations al the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 
Valuation date Actuarial cost method Amortization method Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: Investment rate of return: Before administrative expenses After administrative expenses Projected salary increases Inflation rate 
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6/30/97 Entry age Level percent open 30 years 
Accrual method of accounting and recording investments at amortized cost 
8.33% 7.51% 
3.0% - 6.0% 3.0% 



Belly Bonura Terry McCarthy Marc Johnson John 1". Lavarine, Jeannie Black Michelle Branigan Philip L. Capilano 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF COUNCILPERSON'S COMPENSATION Year Ended June 30, 1998 

NUMBER OF DAYS SERVED COMPENSATION 365 365 365 365 365 365 365 
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$ 23,837 23,41o 19,643 18,952 19,808 18,951 18,953 



STATISTICAL SECTION 



 
CITY OF KENNI'R, LOUISIANA GENERAl. GOVERNMENTAl, EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION (1) LAST TEN FISCAl. YEARS (UNAUDITI{D) 

FISCAl. GENERAL PERCENT YIAR GOVERNMEN1 OF TO'I AL $ 6,476,557 
6.959,069 

g,772,634 8,282,770 

235 175 183 219 188 192 210 21 4 182 184 

PUI]I.IC SAFETY $8,730,769 9,575,704 9.744A 52 
0.004,115 1342.25 I 2,406.268 5.896,29"/ 7,268,441 

PERCENT OF TOTAl 316 34 4 32 9 299 311 354 355 397 380 37.3 

I ) Includes Oeneral, Special Revenue Funded with Taxes and Debt Service Funds 
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PUBLIC WORKS 

5,432.066 5.868.097 
6,933.135 6.862,236 

I II',AI.'I 11 PERCENT ANt) PERCEN I OF "10TAI. WELFARI OF TO'I AI $ 449,632 467.559 547,913 609,521 634,838 626.316 609,811 701,860 764,698 769,305 



 

CUL'I URE AND PERCI~N] PERCF-NT DED'I PERCEN'I MISCEL- PERCEN] RECREA1 ION OF TOTAl, TRANSIT OF TOTAL SERVICE OF 3"OTAL LANEOUS OF TOTAl 2,178,591 2,506,347 3,131.412 3.422,618 2,808.260 2,664,04 I 2,992,872 3,170,484 3,332,990 3.859.815 

79 $154,814 90 430,186 06 370.830 0 8 447,001 8 7 386.300 8 3 352,921 8 6 391,628 77 344,149 7 3 408,919 87 408.806 

4,601,989 4,687.944 4.836,827 5.914.097 
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58 $1,050.624 65 1.069,870 5.8 1,287.275 5 2 1.215,427 84 1,296,067 3 0 1,325,103 1 2 1,450,042 0.5 1,628,349 51 1.566,591 3 I 1,944.224 

38 43 38 40 41 41 40 34 44 

27,612,930 27,845,959 29,661.948 31,726,784 32,178,996 32,064,963 34,979,184 41.039,471 45.435.750 

I~iRCEN7 OFJY)]AI 000 000 000 O00 000 000 O00 O00 000 000 



FISCAL YEAR 1989 1990 
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 
1998 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT CLASS (1) LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

PERSONNEL SERVICES $ 11.903.63 
3.184.843 3.531.586 3,856,23 
5.531.624 7,085.934 8.224.696 
19.721.760 

PERCENT OF TOTAL SUPPLIES 43.1 44.3 
44.5 42.7 43.] 44.8 44.4 41.6 40.] 
44.5 

$ 1,192,27 06.030 
1,182,805 89.214 612.958 466.075 600.026 785.418 
971.065 2,062,214 

PERCENT OFTOTAI 4.3 4.0 
4.0 3.7 5.0 4.6 4.6 4.4 
4.3 4.7 

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue Funded with Taxes and Debt Service Funds 
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SERVICE CHARGES $ 7.866.77 
9,341,758 9.885.847 ,281,678 9.907.774 0,097,822 876,714 3,245,138 
3,036,954 13,540,666 

PERCENT OF TOTAl 28,5 
33.5 33.3 35.6 30,8 31,5 34.0 32.3 
28.7 30.5 



CAPITAl, OU'ILAY $ 2.283.8 458.835 720.509 887.479 
887.936 969,627 2.067.010 4,603,597 5,324,829 3,208,400 

PERCENT OFTOTAL 8.3 1.6 2.4 
2.8 2.8 6.1 5.9 I 1,2 1.7 7,2 

DEBT SERVICE $ 4,366,446 4,601,989 4,687,944 
4.836.827 5,914.097 4,172,086 3.903.810 4,319,384 6,878,206 5.814.389 

PERCENT OF~OTAL 
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$ 27,612,93o 27,845,959 
29,661.948 31,726,784 32,178,996 32.064.963 34,979,184 41,039.471 45,435.750 
44,347,429 

PERCENT OFqOTAL 



I ISCAI, YEAR 
21,466,867 23,441,033 
27.960A48 38,610,266 41)95,51~ 40,676,884 41,957,832 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA GENERAL GOVERNMENT RFVENUES BY SOURCE (I) LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITFD) 
LICENSES CIIARGES PERCEN'I AND PERCEN] IN] ER- PEICCI N'I |'OR PERCI N'I OF 10'IAI, PERMITS OF 103AI, OOVERNM[,NqAI. Ol ] O'IAL SERVICIiS O1' '10 IAI 779 $1,347,595 763 1,436,385 75.3 1,698,454 812 1,848,219 80.8 1,963,613 817 2,183,193 84.1 2,226,695 829 2,3~1,946 82.1 2,341,773 81.5 2,363,845 

53 $ 2,059,051 5,3 2,345,398 60 2,298,138 6 4 891,987 64 1,402,234 6.4 1,252,423 49 1,754,334 4.8 1,856,581 47 2,286,365 4.6 2,623,098 

Includcs General, Special Revenue Funded wilh lnxes and Debl Service Funds. (2) Inleresl prior Io 1991 is included in miscellaneous 
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FINIS AND FORF|37 UR[:S $ 532.231 600.562 875,969 808,182 911,586 1,011,839 1,127,429 1,121,222 1,304,823 1,506 680 

PI RCEN'I OI 101AI 21 22 31 2.8 30 30 25 23 26 29 

SPECIA[ PERCEN1 ASSESSMENTS OFTOqAI $ 
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'IOIAI $ 25,491,080 27,313.154 28.511.937 28,863.060 30,885,112 34.237,164 45,886,999 49,641,525 49,540.300 51,494,918 



FISCAl YIAR IOTAI. MILI.AGES 22.23 2223 22 23 2223 2422 23.36 2336 2336 2187 2170 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PROPERJ Y lAX I.EVIES AND COLLEC] IONS LAS1 TEN FISCAI YEARS (UNAUDI'I ED) 
(i) NON IOMESq EAD EXEMPl "lAX LEVY 4,291,457 4,322,962 

4,945,61% 5,077,528 5,143,207 

TAX COI.I.F;C'I IONS AND AI)JUSTMEN'I S 
4,103,848 4,167,543 4,332,766 4,488,199 4,430,768 4,768,588 4,918,121 5.005.049 

(I) qhe City Council implemented a $7,500 ttomestead Exemption beginning with fiscal year 1986 149 

I'ERCENI OF LEVY COLI.EC] fiD & ADJUSTED 9719 97.32 9471 94.2g 90 49 94 98 94 67 9642 90 86 9731 

] O'I A1 OUTS'lANDING I)EI INQIJliN7 2AXES RECEIVAIII,I 712,951 ,034,706 ,207,600 ,083,950 ,314,752 ,279,679 ,396,007 ,372,837 ,2t0,252 ,222,334 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA ASSI'SNEi) AND ESTIMATI:.D AC'|'UA|, VALUI5 OF "I AXABLI" t'ROPERTY (3) LAS3" TEN FISCAl, YEARS (UNAUDH'|'D) 

:ISCAI. YEAR REAl, ESTATE 989 990 991 992 993 994 995 996 997 998 

NOTES 

PERSONAL PROPER3"Y TAX SA1,E I'UBLIC SERVICE CORPORATIONS $ 219,817,716 $29,256,713 $ 9,605,186 $ 22,823,46 224,009,875 30.829,750 7,849,376 22,358,090 216,726,680 33,932,081 6,176,486 215,215,880 7,222,086 214,287,450 37,366,492 5,379,716 29,995,049 214,159,570 41.904,031 5,224,996 5,271,656 29,250,567 220,803,770 50,596,941 3,990,386 28,614,918 58.195.479 30.995,528 241,398,331 60,938,732 3,699,541 30,195,387 

(I) Assessed values are established by tile Parish Assessor by December of each year at 10 percent of assumed markcl value for real properly and 15 percent of assumed market value for other properly. A revaluation of all property is required to be completed ever5, four years. The last revaluation was completed for December 1996. 2) The City Council implemented a $7,500 homestead exemption beginning with the fiscal year 1986 (3) Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. 
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RAII,WAY ROI,I,ING S'I OCK (i) "10TAL ASSFSSMENTS (2) HOMESTFAD EXFMPT NON-IIOM['STEAI) EXEMPT TOTAl, I;S'I'IMATEI) AC] UAI, VA1,U $ 281,526,386 $ 88,477,675 $ 193,048,711 $ 2,641,585,580 285,064,291 90,599,205 194,465,086 2,673,292,777 283,960,419 89,045,160 194,915,259 2,636,080,013 287,976,576 89,127,460 198,849,116 287,064,197 89,362,880 2,645,985,200 292,604,600 90,309,400 202,295,200 2,681,979,220 292,031,881 91,683,35(I 200,348,531 2,678,495,093 92.339.680 330,565,379 98,398,673 336,276,911 99,263,364 
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211,712,725 232,166,706 237,013,547 
2,776,329,887 
3,058,838,980 



 
CITY OF KENNER, I ,OUISIANA PROPERLY ~IAX RA~I ES - DIREC1 AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMEN'I S (PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) LAST TEN FISCAl YEARS (UNAUDI1 ED) 

CITY OF KENNER PARISI 
SPECIAl, I)EBT WASTEWA q ER ( I ) COLI ,ECTION I.EVY GENERAl. REVENL1E SERVICI:~ OPI/RATIONS POLrlICAI. YEAR YEAR FUND I,'UNDS FUNDS FUND qO7 AL SUI~DIVISIONS 1 O1A 

(I) Sourcc: Jefferson I'arish Asscssor 
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7103 85 54 6595 4603 7645 7574 7285 6762 6762 68 86 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS OF AD VALOREM TAXES June 30, 1998 (UNAUDITED) 

TAXPAYER TYPE OF BUSINESS 1997 ASSESSED VALUATION 1997 TAX AMOUNT Bell South Telecommunicatons Telephone Utility $ 7,841,080 $ 162,339 Southwest Airlines Freeport McMoran CF Kel|ner Associates Treasure Chest Casino Enlergy Corporation 
Della Airlines Slerik Company Treasure Chest Casino Recreational Barge Kenner ltotel Ltd. l'annership 

Air Carrier 6,663.940 Oil & Gas Exploration 5,008,653 
Retail (Mall) Casino 
Electrical Utility Air Carrier Shopping Center 
Casino Hotel 
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4,880,000 
3.561.489 3,279,803 2.873.790 2,761,530 
2,251,166 2,075,460 
$ 41,196.9 

144,608 108,688 
105,896 77,284 
71,172 62,361 59.925 
48,850 45,037 
$ 886,160 

I'ERCt'NTAGI OF TOTAl, ASSESSED VALUAI'ION 2.3 2.0 1.5 15 
1.0 0.9 0.8 
0.7 0.6 



FISCAL YIAR 

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 NOTES 

CURRENT AND 1)EI.IQUENT ASSESSMEN'I S I)UE A3 BEGINNING OF YEAR 
$ 527,387 359,169 597,813 551,902 503,495 452,496 410,602 373,250 343,979 314.708 

CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISlANA SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS LAS'I TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

ASSESSMENTS LEVIED DURING YEAR 
O) CURRENT AND 1)ELIQUENT ASSESSMEN'] S COLLECTED DURING YEAR PAVING ASSESSMENTS $ 168,218 292,714 54,070 45,911 48,407 50,999 41,894 37,352 29,271 29~71 39,258 SEWERAGE ASSESSMENTS 

) Collections include total payouts of individual assessments (2) Balance outstanding does not include interest receivable on delinquent assessments 
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RATIO OF COLLECTIONS TO AMOUN1 DUE 
(2) "lO] AI ASSESSMEN I S OUTS] ANI)ING AT END OF YEAR 
359,169 597,813 551,902 503.495 

314,708 275.450 



Assessed value Dcbl limit - 35% of assessed value (1) Total bonds payable Less: Special assessment bonds Sales lax bonds 

CITY OF KENNER, 1,OU1SIANA COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN June 30, 1998 (UNAUDITED) 

Amount available for repayment of general obligation and excess revenue bonds 
]olal debt applicable to limitation l.egal debl margin 

NOTES 

$ 48,018,544 (58,544) (41,290,000) 
1,862,373 

$ 336,276,911 
$ 117,696,919 

8.532,373 $ 109,164.546 

(1) Louisiana R.S. 39:562 allows a maximum of 10% of the assessed valuation for bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the total assessed value for all purposes. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA RAIlO OF NE'I LONG-TERM DEBI TO ASSESSED VAI,UI" AND NET LONG-TERM I)EBI" PER CAI'll'A LAST TEN FISCAl, YEARS (UNAUI) ITI';D) 

I"ISCAI. (I) YIAR POPUI,AI'ION 75,631 72,033 72,033 72,252 75,317 72,700 72,300 73,765 74,002 74.180 

ASSESSED VALUE 0N "l I IOUSANI)S) 
DEB] DEBT PAYABLE SERVICI FROM NEI MONIES EN] ERPRISE LONG-3 ERM AVAH,ABLE REVENUES DEIYI $ 281,526 $39,545,000 $ 5,448,617 $ 285,064 283,960 287 977 

38,402,720 6,309,734 36,843,448 35,189,176 38,394,904 
51,141,547 51,048,494 

3,241,665 3,192,081 4,171,332 6,111,699 7,118,493 7.109.036 

Source: l,ouisiana ]ech University for 1988-1989 and 1991-1998; US Census Bureau for 1990 Census (2) Includes all long-term general obligation bonds, sales tax bonds and special assessment certificates 
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32,092,986 31,809,612 30,976,181 35,153,239 
45 029.848 
40,909,508 

211 1 26 1 20 076 2 25 1 58 2 42 481 329 217 

Ntil ONG 1 }RM I}liB'l PER CAPI'I A $ 45(183 44553 441 60 428 72 466 74 466 14 501 54 610 45 593 63 55149 



 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT 3"O GENERAL GOVERNMENTAl, EXPENDITURES LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAl 1989 1990 
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 
1996 1997 1998 

NOTES 

(2) INTEREST AND FEES TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 
(1) TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES $1,501,696 $ 2,813,624 $ 4,315,320 $ 27,700,79 1,566,120 3,035,869 4,601,989 27,845,959 

698,676 2,989,268 4,687,944 29,661,948 931,340 539,119 943.527 
2.905.487 4.836.827 31.726.784 3,438.906 4.978,025 32,178.996 2,223,884 4,167,411 32,064,963 729.405 2.174.405 3.903.810 34.979.184 

2,010,033 2,309,351 4,319,384 41,039,47 4,155,441 2,722,764 6,878,205 45,435,750 3,200,029 2,614,360 5,814,389 44,347,429 

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue Funded with Taxes and Debt Service Funds. (2) Excludes bond issuance costs 157 

RATIO OF DEBT SERVIC1{ TO TOTAl, GENERAl, EXPENI)ITURI~;S 15.58 16.53 
15.80 15.25 15.47 13.00 11.16 
10.52 15.14 13.11 



Jefferson Parish Public School Syslem "lotal direct and overlapping debt 
Ralio of dirccl and overlapping debt to taxable assessed valuation )irect and overlapping debt per capita 

N03]~S 

CH'Y OF KENNER, LOUISIANA COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERI,APPtNG DEBT June 30, 1998 (UNAUDITED) 

]NDEBTIr~d )N ESS AS OF 
NET AD VAI,OREM 3AX BONDED DEIYI OUTSTANDING 6~30-98 $ 1,595,000 2-31-97 

PERCENTAGE APP| ,ICAB| ,E TO "ItlE CITY (1) 00.0% $ 5,00% 
AMOIIN l APPI,ICAB|,I TO 311E CH'Y 

82,834 

$ 

(I) The percentage of indebtexlness of the City's ovcrlapping political subdivisiot~s v,'as determined by dividing the City's assessed v aluatiol~ subject to taxation by tile Iolal assessed valuation subject to taxation of the overlapping subdivision. 
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4.2% 190 



FISCAl. YEAR 989 990 
991 992 993 994 
995 996 997 998 
NOTES 

(J) POPULATION 75,631 72,033 
72,033 72,252 75,317 72,700 
72,300 73,765 74,002 74.180 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUDITED) 
(2) PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 15,863 17,101 
17,489 18,340 19,100 20,170 20,170 
20,170 21,973 (4) 

(3) UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 6.4% 5.2% 
5.6% 6.2% 5.9% 6.4% 5.0% 
4.3% 3.8% (4) 

(1) Source: Louisiana Tech University for 1987-1989 and 1991-1998; U.S. Census Bureau for 1990 Census 
(2) Source: United States Census Bureau, Regional Economic Information System. Figures apply Io Jefferson Parish, in which the City of Kenner is an incorporated municipality. (3) Source: Louisiana Department of Labor for calendar years. Figures apply to Jefferson Parish, in which the City of Kenner is an incorporated municipality. (4) Information not yet available 
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NOTES 

FISCAL LX_E_&R_ 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA PROPERTY VALUE AND PRIVATE CONSTRUCTION PERMITS AND VALUE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (UNAUD1TED) 

(1) ASSESSED PROPERTY VAL~ $ 281,526,386 285,064,29 283.960,419 287,976,576 287.064.197 292,604,600 292.031,881 304,052,405 330,565,379 336,276,9 

(1) Assessed values from fifth table presented (2) Source: City of Kenner Code Enforcement Department. 
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CONSTRUCTION PERMITS (2) NUMBER OF BUILDING PERMITS 852 842 687 647 535 439 605 695 636 693 

VAI.UU $ 57,948,288 26.127.495 32,872,520 37,945.405 27.975.909 30,302,337 36.140.565 74,900,927 32,283,893 66,281,179 



Date of Incorporation: December 13, 1913 Form of Government: Itome Rule Charter Mayor-Council Form 
Average Elevation: -5 Feet Area: 15 square miles Number of Street Lights: 6,705 Number of Itousing Units Occupied: 26,998 
Vacant: 2,203 Fire Protection 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS June 30, 1998 (UNAUDITED) 

Rating: 3 on a scale of 1 1o 10 with 1 being the highest (Louisiana Property Insurance Association) Number of Stations: 5 
Number of Commissioned Firemen: 83 Number of Pieces of Equipment: 17 Police Protection Nmnber ofStalions: 2 
Number of Commissioned Policemen: 142 
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Sewerage Treatment Treatment Capacity: 18.25 MGD 
Number of Treatment Plants: 3 Number ofl,ow Lift Stations: 76 Number of Miles on Collection System: lg3 Discharge Point: Mississippi River Culture and Recreation 
Art Gallery Number of Museums: 6 Number of Theatres: 4 Number of Parks: 2 Number of Gymnasiums: 9 
Number of Playgrounds: 11 Number of Tot-Lots: 17 Number of Wheelchair Tracks: 3 Number of Employees 
Civil Service: 207 Unclassified: 517 
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN'I'S CONSULTANTS, A PROFESSIONAL CORPORA]ION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ EO. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebewe.com 

INDEI'ENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROl, OVER FINANCIAl. REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMEI) IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT .4UDITING STANDARDS 
1 lonorablc Mayor and Members of the Council (;it3' of Kenner, I ,ouisiana Wc have audited the financial statements of City of Kenner, Louisiana as of and for tile year ended June 30, 1998, and bave issued our report thereon dated December 14, 1998, which was qualified because insufficient audil evidence exists to suppmt the City of Kenner's disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue. Except as discussed in tile preceding sentence, we conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and tile standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governnwnt Auditing Standards, issued by tile Comptrollel General of the United States. 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether tile City of Kenner's financial statements are flee of matcrial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laves, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial stalenlent amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not all objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Kenner's internal control over financial repolting m order to dcterlninc our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not 1o provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain mailers involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of Kenner's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 98-1 through 98-3. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal connol components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses, llowever, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider items 98-1 and 98-2 to be material weaknesses. We also noted other mailers involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the City of Kenner, Louisiana in a separate letter dated December 14, 1998. 162 



This report is intended for the information of management, file Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, fcderal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not li~uited. 
December 14. 1998 
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REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.corn 

INI)EPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPI,ICAIH,E TO EACII MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCOI{I)AN(TE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
llonorable Mayor and Members of tile Counci City of Kenncr, Louisiana 
We have audited tile compliance of file City of Kenner, Louisiana with the types of compliance lequizelnents described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supldement that arc applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1998. "lhe City of Keuner's majol federal programs are identified in the summary of a~ditor's results section of the accompanying Schcdnle of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and glauts applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Kenner's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Kenner's compliance based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standmds; the standaxds applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrollei General of the United Slates; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States', Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standalds and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abonl whethel noncompliance with the types of compliance requiremenls referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Kenner's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedutcs as wc considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opiniou. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Kenner's compliance with those requffements. la om opinion, the City of Kenner, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refcrlcd to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30~ 1998. ulerual Control Over Compliance Ttlc management of the City of Kenner, Louisiana is responsible for establishing and maintainiug effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regtdations, contracts and grants applicable to federal proglams. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Kenner's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our atlditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal conuol over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
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We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation thai we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect City of Kenner's ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable requilcmcnts of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying Schedulc of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 98-4. A n'taterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal conuol components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course of perfonning theil assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, the reportablc condition described above as 98-4 is considered to be a material weakness. This report is intended for the infornlation of management, the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, federal awazdiug agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
l)ecembei 1.4, 1998 
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CI]Y OF KENNER, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OI ]~,XPENDI3 UES OF FEDERAl AV.'ARI)S Year Ended June 30.1998 

l)I I'AR]MI:N30I HOUSING AND URBAN I)EVt IL)Pb, SIN] I)ircct Proglams Community I)~velopmenl Block Grant ('onlnlunily I)evelopment Block Grant qotal Direct Pfogranls 

Passed ]hrough Stale Deparlmenl of SocM Straiten. Of flee of C~m~ul~ity See'ices I mugtncy Shellt~ Granss Program '1 oral Passed "lllrough Slate Deparlment of S~cial Services. Office of C~mlunhy 5;~lvices 1 O'IAI I)I PARTMEN10~t IIOUSING AN URBAN I)I:VEI.OPMI:N7 S I)1 I'ARq MENI OF JUS1 ICE PHssed qhrough l.ouisiana Conlmisslon orl l.a~ I nlbreelnenl Streel Gsag Reduction P[ogtsrll Sired Gang Reduction PI ogranl q o1~1 Passed ]llrough Louisiana COllllllission on lsw l]lfor~cmeld Oftk~ of Conuuunity Oriented Policing Selvices Cops Al~d I't ogram Cops Universal IIifing Progr#nl' ('op~ M~,e '%' lolal Office of Commundy Orienled I',licing Su vice:~ OB~ce of Justice Proglams Local Law En foreemel~t Block Granf 1 oral Ofl~ce of Jusllce Pfogranls 70"IAI U S DEI'AR1M[ N1 OF JIJSTICF NAq IONAI IIIGFIWAY "IRAIIIC SAFETY ADMINIS] RAIlON Passed l~iotl~h l.ouisiana Jlighway Safely Conln0ssiorl Kel~net Police Pat[ols Over Safe Streels I ver)~ here (POSSE) 707A1 NATIONAl. fllGII~/AY "IRAFFIC SAI'[q Y AI)MINIS3 RA'I ION 

CH)A NUMBER 
4218 4218 
4.239 4.239 4239 

GRANT NUMBI R "I()]AI GRANI AWARD REVENUE AND R[ CHPqS R[:('OGNIZI 1) FI:I)I RAI AND GqIIt:R I:XPI:NI)n UBI:g 
B-96-MG22.0008 $ 1.051.000 $ 584.840 $ 584.840 B-97-MC-22*0008 1.031.000 337.069 337.069 
M93-I)C-22-0207 M~d-DC-22-0207 M95-I)G22-0207 

921.909 
6319) 23.128 85.348 08.157 

921 909 
23.640 84.517 108.157 

14231 I}OA~ 37~fil33 40.12g 15.250 15.756. DSS#06588 

6710 6710 6710 

95-BT-B07*OI0 97-B7-B 07-010 
96-CC-WX-0081 96-CC-WX-0081 9%CM-WX-1090 

20.000 $ 15.000 $ 15.000 16.000 
165.982 851.156 397.274 
224.680 

5,000 
t3.832 325.215 350.000 689.047 

5000 
13,832 325.215 350000 68994~ 

17.500 $ 5,251 $ 5.251 
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$ 5.251 $ 5)5 



 
C]]Y OF KENNER, L OUINIANA SCHEDU[.I OF ISXPENDI3 URES OI I EDI RAt AWARDS (CON1JNUED Year lnded June 30. ] 998 

I }l~l ItM I MEROI N('Y t4ht4hOE',llN3 AGENCY Passed '] hrough Mililary Depanmenl Office of I me+tlency Pleparedrless: Ila~td Mitigation GiatL( Progr~n (Section 404) IO1 AI. l I I)ERAL I MERGI NCY MANAGI MI NI AGESCY ItldREAU O] JUS]IC}: ASSISqANCII Passed 1 hrough louisiana Conlnllssion on i.a~ 1 nfo)cclnent Muhl Jurlsdic6onal ])rug I]Morcernent 1 ask lotto 
1OIAI IIUR} AU OI JUS1 ICI ASSIS'I ANCI: I'a~sed I hlough l oulslana Depallulcnl of 1 ranspol(allon and I)evelopmenl loyola l)Hve Improvemenls (I)BI, WBI Set Aside Piolect, thl)an System P)ojecl) rOIAI US DI;PAR1MENI OF 1 RANSPOR] A'T ION 
S OIIICI Ol I:I)U('AIlON Passed I hrough St~le Dcpaltn)ent (Jo~crrlo*'s Safe and l)lug=I tee SCllOOls ~,,d ('o,,,n, unltles AEI Gove3)mr's Safe ~nd DJ.g-I Jec Schools ond ( on)rnunifies Act 
"I(HAI lED[ RAI IINANCIA ASSIS'I ANCI 
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CITY OF KENNER, I.OUISIANA NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAl. AWARDS June 30. 1998 
NOTE A - SCOPE OF AUDIT PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS OMB CIRCUI.AR A-133, "AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS" AND TIlE SINGI.E AUDIT ACT OF 1984 AND 1996 AMENDMENTS All federal grant operations of the City of Kenner, Louisiana, are included in the scope of the single audit. Those programs which were major grants and which were selected for specific testing included: Community Development Block Grants (CFDA No. 14.218) COPS Universal Hiring Program (CFDA No. 16.710) COPS More '96 (CFDA No. 16.710) The Department of tlousing and Urban Development has been designated as the City's oversight agency for tile single audit. 
NOTE B - FISCAl. PERIOD AUDITED 

NOl"E C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BASIS OF PRESENTATION The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Grant revenues are recorded for financial reporling purposes when tile City has met tile qualifications for the respective grants. Several programs are funded jointly by State of Louisiaua appropriations and federal funds. Costs incurred in programs partially funded by federal grants are applied against federal grant funds to tile extent of revenue available when they properly apply to the grant. 2. ACCRUED AND DEFERRED REIMBURSEMENT Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the City. Conseequently, timing differences between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at the beginning and end of the year. Accrued balances at year end represent an excess of reimbursable expenditures over cash reimbursements received. Generally, accrued balances caused by differences in tile timing of cash reimbursements and expenditures will be reversed in the remaining grant period. NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE In l)ccember 1992, City of Kenner issued a long-tenn note for and $700,000. The proceeds were to be loaned in accordance with the HUD Section 108 Loan Guarantee program. The loan did not materialize, therefore, the proceeds have been invested to finance the payment of the note payable. The investment is accounted for in the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund. The long term note is payable over a period of 6 years with interest payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 6.59% to 6.83%. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA NOTES. TO SCttEDULE OF EXPENDITURES or: FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) June 30. 1998 
NOTE D - NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED) At June 30, 1998, the note payable had an outstanding balance of $240,000, and is recorded in the General Long- Term Debt Account Group. ]'he following is a schedule of future payments on the note as of June 30, 1998 totaling $256,595, which includes interest of $16,595: YearEnding June 30, 1999 2000 
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Future Minimum Payments $ 127,326 129,269 $ 256,595 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 
A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 1. The auditor's report expresses a qualified opinion (related to the Year 2000 issue) on the general purpose financial statements of the City of Kenner, Louisiana. 2. Three reportable conditions disclosed during the audit of the financial statements are reported in tile Independent Auditor's Report opt Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial R~7~orting Based on an Audit ~f Financial Statements Perf~rmed in A~rdance with G~vernment Auditing Standards. Findings 98-1 and 98-2 are reported as material weaknesses, 3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Keuner, Louisiana were disclosed during the audit. One reportable condition relating to the audit of the major federal award programs is reported in the Independent Auditor ~" Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major l'rogram and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133, The condition is reported as a material weakness. 5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Keuner, l,ouisiana expresses an unqualified opinion. 6. Audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for the City of Kenner, Louisiana are reported in lhis Schedule. 7. The programs tested as major programs include 
Community Development Block Grant COPS Universal Hiring Program COPS More '96 8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000 9. City of Kenner, Louisiana was determined to be a high-risk anditee FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT Renortable Conditions 98-1. Bank Reconciliations Condition Bank reconciliations were not performed on a timely basis. Criteria: 

CFDA Number ld.218 6.710 6.710 

Interred controls should be in place that provide reasonable assurance that all bank accounts are reconciled on a monthly basis. 170 



Effect 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1998 

Because of the failure to perform bank reconciliations on a monthly basis, unrecorded deposits and or disbursements may not be identified timely. Reconunendation The ivquirement for performing timely monthly bank reconciliations on all bank accounts should be enforced. Response We concur with the recommendation. This occured due to personnel changes during the year. Bank reconciliations have now been assigned to another employee and we will ensure that bank reconciliations will again be performed on a timely basis. 
98-2. Manual Checks Condition: Proper procedures for recording manual checks are not being followed Criteria: nternal controls should be in place that provide reasonable assurance that all manual checks are entered nto the general ledger. Effect Because of the failure to properly record manual checks in the general ledger, we identified 43 manual checks that were not included on the check register. A majority of the checks were not issued and therefore, had no effect on the general ledger. However, six of the checks were issued and needed to be recorded. Recommendation Procedures should be implemented to ensure all manual checks are recorded on a monthly basis Response: We concur with the recommendation. This also occurred due to personnel changes. Procedures have been implemented to account for all checks and to make sure all checks issued are recorded. 
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98-3. Self-Insurance 
CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1998 

As noted in the prior year, the City currently has a third party administrator handling tile processing of claims for the General Liability, Auto and Worker's Compensation Self-Insurance programs. The current accounting system calls for tile administrator to provide the City with "loss reports" detailing claims incurred, claims paid, and reserves on claims each month. We noted that the loss reports were not being reconciled to the actual disbursements as recorded on the City's general ledger. 
Internal controls should be in place that provide reasonable assurance that all disbursements from these self-insurance programs are properly reflected in the loss reports. Effect Because of tile failure to reconcile the loss reports to the actual disbursements as recorded on the City's general ledger, certain amounts were either not recorded on the administrator's computer system or were recorded incorrectly. Recommendation 3~le claims administrator should reconcile tile loss reports to the check registers which are submitted monthly to the City on all self-insurance programs, since these check registers are used for recording acltlal disbursements on the City's general ledger. Response We have instructed our claims administrator to reconcile the loss reports to the check registers on a monthly basis for all self-insurance programs. C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT QUESTIONED COSTS U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 98-4. COPS Universal I tiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 Reportable Condition: Condition: Procedures are not adequate to ensure all requests for reimbursements are received Criteria Internal controls should be in place that provide reasonable assurance that al reimbursement requests are received. 
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Effect 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1998 
QUESTIONED COSTS 

A reimbursement request in the amount of $96,000 for the period April 1997 - June None 1997 has not yet been received nor was identified as outstanding. Recommendation Procedures should be implemented to ensure all reimbursement requests are received and recorded on the general ledger. Response: We concur with the recommendation. Such procedures will be implemented immediately 98-5. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No, 96-CC-WX-008 t Condition: Twelve (12) officers were hired under the COPS Universal Hiring Program. One of these officers was hired prior to fhe grant award date. Criteria Eligibility for tile program requires all officers to be hired after the grant award date. In addition, the federal award specifies a time period during which the entity may use the federal funds (period of availability). Effect The total salaries and benefits for this officer in the amount of $23,000 per year may be disallowed. $ 23.000 Cause Procedures in place for the hiring requirements of officers under the COPS Universa Hiring Program were not followed. Recommendation Procedm'es should be implemented to ensure these requirements are nlet. Response Procedures will be implemented to ensure officers hired under the COPS program are newly hired (after the grant award date). 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 
98-6. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 96-CC-WX-0081 
Condition The local share match has not increased during the grant period, nor has tile federal share match decreased. Criteria Matching contributions may be applied at any time during tile life of tile grant provided that the full matching share is obligated by the end of the grant period. In addition, as a percentage of the total, the local share must increase every year during the grant period and the federal share must decrease. Effect 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

The local share increase/federal share decrease matching requirement is not being met. None 
Procedures are not in place to ensure that the requirements are met for the local share increase/federal share decrease. Recommendation Procedures should be established to ensure the local share increases every year during tile grant period and the federal share decreases. Response: The recommended procedures will be established 98-7. COPS More '96 - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No. 97-CM-WX-1080 Condition: A COPS More '96 grant was awarded to the City for the purchase of equipment. A disbursement for equipment in the amount of $350,000 was reimbursed by the grantor. However, the disbursement was made prior to the grant award date. Criteria Eligibility for the program requires all reimbursable costs to be made after the grant award date. In addition, the federal award specifies a time period during which the entity may use the federal funds (period of availability). Effect The costs are subject to being disallowed. 174 $ 350,000 



Cause 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) For the Year Ended June 30. 1998 

Procedures in place to ensure eligibility of costs under the program were not followed Recommendation Procedures should be implemented to ensure these requirements are reel Respnnse Procedures will be implemented to ensure tile requirements for reilnbursable costs are nlel 98-8. COPS Universal Hiring Program - CFDA No. 16.710; Grant No.96-CC-WX-008 COPS More '96-CFDA No. 16.710: Grant No. 97-CM-WX- 1080 Condition The Financial Status Reports are not being filed on a timely basis 
The Financial Status Reports are to be completed on a quarterly basis. These reports are to be filed within 45 days of'the end of each quarter Effect: The financial reporting requirements are not being met. Cause 

QUESTIONED COSTS 

Procedures are not being followed to ensure all financial reports are filed in a timely mamler Recommendation The responsible personnel should file the reports timely Response: n the future, reports will be filed in a timely manner 
TOTAl, U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
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None 



 

CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit Findings For the Year Ended June 30. 199g 
A. INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS 
Payroll Condition The City did not maintain accountability of all payroll checks in a sequential manner. In addition, proper procedures for voiding payroll checks were not being followed. Current Status: The City now uses sequential payroll checks for proper accountability. Proper procedures arc now in place for voiding payroll checks. Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1998. 97-2 SelGInsurance Condition As in the prior year, the City has a third party administrator handling the processing of claims for the General Liability, Auto and Worker's Compensation Self-Insurance programs. The current accounting system calls for the administrator to provide the City with "loss reports" detailing claims incurred, claims paid, and reserves on claims each month. We noted that the loss reports were not being reconciled 1o tbc actual disbursements as recorded on the City's general ledger. Current Status No significant improvements have been made in reconciling the loss reports to the actual disbursements as recorded on the City's general ledger. This finding is included in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (98-3) at June 30, 1998. B. FINDINGS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 97-3 Payroll Current Status: As discussed at Finding 97-1, accountability of payroll checks, including those for the payroll charged to federal awards, is now being maintained and proper procedures are now being followed for voiding payro checks. Accordingly, this finding is cleared at June 30, 1998. 
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CITY OF KENNER, LOUISIANA Corrective Action Plan For the Year Ended June 30. 1998 
Management's corrective actions are described in tile management response to each of the auditor's conlpliance and internal control findings as reported iu the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The contact person responsible for the corrective actions is the Director of Finance, Duke P. McConnell. All corrective actions are expected 'to be completed by, June 30, 1999. 
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December 14, 1998 

REBOWE & COMPANY CERTIFIED PUB1AC ACCOUNTANTS CONSULTANTS 
3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ EO. Box 6952 ~ Melairie, LA 70009 Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Council City of Kenner, Louisiana We havc audited the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Kelmer, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 1998, which was qualified because insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City's disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue. As part of our audit, we considered the City's internal control in order to determine the nature, timing and extent of our auditing procedures for the propose of expressing an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control. However, during our audit we became aware of matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal control and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter sunnnarizes our comments and recommendations regarding these matters. We previously reported oll the City's internal control in a separately issued report entitled Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated December 14, 1998. We will review the status of these matters during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed many of these recommendations with various City personnel and have included their responses. We will be pleased to discuss these recommendations with you in further detail at your convenience, perform any additional study of these matters, or assist you in implementing the recommendations. 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, and others within the City. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. Sincerely 



COMMENT 
YEAR 2000 COMPUTER ISSUE 

The Year 2000 Computer issue results from a computer's inability to process year-dale data accurately beyond the year 1999. Except in recent years, computer programmers consistently have abbreviated dates by eliminating the first two digits of the year, with the assumption that these two digits would always be 19. Thus January 1, 1965, became 01/01/65. Unless corrected, this shortcut is expected to create widespread problems when the clock strikes 12:00:01 a.m. on January 1, 2000. On that date, some computer programs may recognize the date as January l, 1900, and process data inaccurately or stop processing altogether. Additionally, the use of abbreviated dates may cause failures when systems currently attempt to perfonn calculations into the year 2000. 
The Year 2000 issue presents another challenge. The algorithm used in some computers for calculating leap years is unable to detect that the year 2000 is a leap year. Therefore, systems that arc not year 2000 ready may not register the additional day, and date calculations may be incorrect. Furthemaorc, some software programs use several dates in the year 1999 to mean something other than the date. Examples of sueh dates are 01/01/99, 09/09/99, and 12/31/99. As systems process information using these dates, they may produce erratic results or stop functioning. 
We understand that the City recognizes the issue but needs to assess the effect of the Year 2000 issue on its systems. Therefore, we recommend that you take the necessary actions to rcmedialc or replace, and test all systems that may be negatively affected by the Year 2000 issue, particularly mission-critical systems. This project should be monitored closely to ensure completion before mission-critical systems begin to fail. Such failures may be evident before January 1, 2000. If the City of Kenner fails to take timely and appropriate action, it may experience costly and significant application-program failures that could prevent it from performing its normal processing activities. Depending on the extent of system failures, noncompliance could have catastrophic consequences for the City. 
Also, the City of Kenner should implement additional verification procedures to test the accuracy of information received from its vendors, service providers, bankers, and other third-party organizations with whom it exchanges date-dependent information, because these organizations also must become year 2000 ready. The City of Kenner also should satisfy itself that vendors, service providers, bankers, and other third-party organizations will not experience problems relating to the Year 2000 issue that could affect City of Kenncr's operations or cash flows. 



RESPONSE 
YEAR 2000 COMPUTER ISSUE (CONTINUED) 

The City has contracted with their computer consultants for establishing a Year 2000 project. A $30,000 budgel was approved for the Assessment Stage which is scheduled to be completed by March 1, 1999. Upon completion of the Assessment Stage, the systems will be remediated, tested and validated. The Administration does not feel that the City will experience ally adverse consequences due to the year 2000 issue. 



COMMENT 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the Community Development dcparlmcnt processed all invoices through the City's centralized accounts payable system. Therefore, all federal funds would now be received on a reimbursement basis. Upon our review of the requests for reimbursement from HUD, we noted all requests were made during the period February through June 1998, resulting in a significant receivable from the federal government and payable to the General Fund at June 30, 1998. We recommend that all requests for reimbursement from HUD be prepared on a timely basis. This would free up General Fund monies for other purposes. RESPONSE During the year, HUD changed to a new computer system (ID1S) for its draw down requests. As a result of this change, HUD was late in adding the City's grant award and projects to the system. Until the grant award and projects were added, there were no funds to be drawn down against. The City's grant award and related projects have been added to the computer system and requests for reimbursement from HUD will continue to be made on a timely basis. 



COMMENT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Proper procedures for recording accounts payable at year end are not being followed. We noted approximately $504,000 of payables during our search for unrecorded liabilities which were not included in the accounts payable listing at June 30, 1998, but were later included in the financial report. Personnel should be adequately trained as to the proper procedures for recording accounts payable at year end. RESPONSE The City's financial reports are maintained on a cash basis during the year and arc converted to accrual basis at year end in connection with the audit. This error occurred due to a change in accounts payable personnel during the year resulting in an incorrect listing of accounts payable for year end reporting purposes. We have trained the new personnel as to the proper procedures for recording accounts payable at year end. 


